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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Form 10-K contains certain forwalabking statements within the meaning of Sectiof 2f the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
amended, regarding, among other things, the aat@ipfinancial and operating results of the Compdor this purpose, forwardoking
statements are any statements contained hereiarihaiot statements of historical fact and inclumé,are not limited to, those preceded k
that include the words, “estimate,” “could,” “shdyl “would,” “likely,” “may,” “will,” “plan,” “inte nd,” “believes,” “expects,” “anticipates,”
“projected,” or similar expressions. Those statements are sutnjidmown and unknown risks, uncertainties anceofactors that could cat
the actual results to differ materially from thasmtemplated by the statements. The forward lookifigrmation is based on various fact
and was derived using numerous assumptions. Impdidators that could cause the Compangttual results to differ materially from th
projected, include, for example:

° general economic, market or business conditi

° the ability of the Company to generate sufficiaales to generate operating profits, or to sell pobslat a profit

° the ability of the Company to raise funds in theufa through sales of securitit

° whether the Company is able to enter into bindigige@ments with third parties to assist in producteiwork developmen
° the ability of the Company to commercialize its elepmental products, or if actually commercializedpbtain commerci

acceptance therec

° the ability of the Company to compete with its catiors to obtain market shai

° the ability of our Company to receive reductionsnirthe credit card companies of transaction priaegssharges in tt
future;

° the ability of our Company to obtain reduced priciinom its manufacturers for its ePort devicestia future as current

anticipated by our compan

) whether our Compar’'s customers lease or purchase ePort devices fottire at levels currently anticipated by our comy

° whether the Comparng’customers participate in the Jump Start prograthe future at levels currently anticipated by
company;

° the ability of the Company to obtain sufficient éisnthrough operations or otherwise to repay its débgations, or to fun

development and marketing of its produ

° the ability of the Company to obtain approval sfpending patent applicatior
° the ability of the Company to satisfy its tradeigations included in accounts payable and accriabdities;
° the ability of the Company to predict or estimasefuture quarterly or annual revenues and expegises the developing a

unpredictable market for its products and the lafckstablished revenue

° whether our shares would continue to meet thellityi requirements for continued listing on The SBAQ Stock Marke
LLC;

° the ability of the Company to retain key custonfessn whom a significant portion of its revenuesié&ived;

° the ability of a key customer to reduce or delaschasing products from the Company; :

° as a result of the slowdown in the economy andiertightening of the capital and credit markets, astomers may modi

delay or cancel plans to purchase our productenices, and suppliers may increase their pricediae their output
change their terms of sa

Although we believe that the expectations refledétethe forwardliooking statements are reasonable, we cannot giagrduture results, leve
of activity, performance, or achievements. Actueduits or business conditions may differ materifgm those projected or suggeste
forward-looking statements as a result of vari@aatdrs including, but not limited to, those desedlabove and in the “Risk Factosgction o
this Form 10K. We cannot assure you that we have identifiedhalfactors that create uncertainties. Moreovew risks emerge from time
time and it is not possible for our managementréajet all risks, nor can we assess the impact oisiks on our business or the extent to w
any risk, or combination of risks, may cause actaallts to differ from those contained in any farddooking statements. Readers shoulc
place undue reliance on forward-looking statements.
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Any forward-looking statement made by us in thigrkdlO-K speaks only as of the date of this FormK1QJnless required by law, \

undertake no obligation to publicly revise any fard-looking statement to reflect circumstancesvents after the date of this Form KQar to
reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events.
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USA TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

P ART |

| tem 1. Business.

OVERVIEW

We are a leading provider of technology-enableditsmis that facilitate electronic payment transatti and valuadded services within t
unattended Point of Sale (“POSfarket. Since our incorporation in 1992 in the Cammealth of Pennsylvania, we have designed
marketed systems and solutions that facilitatetelaic payment options, as well as the ability eanotely monitor, control and report on
results of distributed assets such as vending mashikiosks, personal computers, photocopiers,lambry equipment. Historically, the
distributed assets have relied on cash for payimethie form of coins or bills, whereas, our systeatisw them to accept catshsed paymer
such as through the use of a credit card. We deeivenues from both the sale, lease and rentallloP@S terminals and transaction fee
installed products. As of June 30, 2010, the Comgead approximately 82,000 devices connected todts/ork. During the year ended J
30, 2010, the Company processed approximatelyrB6li®n transactions totaling over $67.6 milliompresenting a 65% increase in transa
volume and a 44% increase in dollars processed fin@nprevious fiscal year ended June 30, 2009.

Our solutions consist of POS electronic paymentiasy proprietary operating systems, certified paymsoftware and reporting ¢
communication capabilities. Our solutions are dblg@rocess traditional magnetic stripe credit apbitdcards, as well as contactless / r
frequency identification (“RFID”) devices. Our pmigtary POS solutions enable electronic micro-paytsat unattended POS locations.

Our customers are primarily vending machine owaeis operators; business center operators, whidtdadotels and audio visual compar
commercial laundry operators servicing collegesyensities and multfamily housing; brand marketers wishing to provtteir products ¢
services via kiosks or vending machines; and egeignmanufacturers that would like to incorporate natworked devices (e.g. rem
monitoring, reporting and control as well as casélpayments) into their products. The functionadityur solutions includes the flexibility
execute a variety of payment applications on algiggstem, transaction security, connectivity apgiocompliance with certification standa
and centralized, accurate, real-time sales andhtowe data to manage distributed assets.

The Company also manufactures and sells energy gearment products which reduce the electrical poweasoemption of equipment, such
refrigerated vending machines and glass front esptus reducing the electrical energy costs &ssatwith operating this equipment.
derive equipment revenues from our energy managepneducts through the sale of the product.

We have an 18 year history in our industry, a receggd brand name, value proposition for our custsinend reputation of innovation in
product and services. We believe that the foregpogijtions us to capitalize on industry trends.

THE INDUSTRY

We operate in the electronic payments industryrance specifically the unattended POS market. Olutisas facilitate electronic payments
industries that have traditionally relied on casinsactions. In addition, our solutions providec&tEic monitoring and online reporting
distributed assets. We believe there are four imgusends which will drive growth in demand foreetronic payment systems in general
more specifically within the markets we serve:

[ the shift toward electronic payment transactiorss @amnay from cash and checl

[ the increase in both consumer and merchant/opetatoand for electronic transaction functional

[ improving POS technology coupled with declining idevmanufacturing and technology costs;

[ increased market sponsorship from industry paditip (e.g., card associations (e.g., MasterCard/&sa), card issuers (e.

American Express, Bank of America, Citibank, DiseQy payment processors) leading to increased rmadaption.
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Shift toward electronic payment transactions and away from cash and checks

There has been a shift away from paper-based methfodayment, including cash and checks, towardstmnicbased methods of payme
While consumers continue to use checks and caphytdor goods and services, there is a migratigratds the use of catthsed payment
purchase items. According to The Nilson Reportewsand research publication on consumer paymestgrsg, electronic payment transac
volume surpassed papeased transaction volume for the first time in 20€@ntinuing the trend of migration of consumemngactions fror
paper-based to electronic payments. According éoibcember 2009 Nilson Report, U.S. the four caskd systemseredit, debit, prepa
and electronic benefits transfegenerated $3.59 trillion. Payment transactions gusiredit cards, debit cards, prepaid cards and E&T:
totaled 66.74 billion in 2008—up 6.7%. By 2013,dthased purchases are projected to be at nearlytr$#ldn with over 89 billion transactiol
projected for this same period.

Consumer Payment Systems

in the U.S. Electronic
Cards
510 =
Volume ($Trillions) ™ Paper
58
56
34
¥3 ‘04 ‘05 ‘06 ‘07 ‘OB ‘09 10 "11 12 13
ﬁﬂ\
40% :
Market Shares
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D 2009 The Nilzon Report

Increasein Consumer and Merchant/Operator Demand for Electronic Payments

Increase in Consumer Dema. The unattended, vending and kiosk POS markehistsrically been dominated by cash purchases. Men
oftentimes, cash purchases at unattended POSdosatepresent a cumbersome transaction for theuomrsbecause they do not have
correct monetary value (paper or coin), or the oorer does not have the ability to convert theishiito coins. We believe electronic payn
system providers such as us that can meet consudansind within the unattended market will be ableffer retailers, card associations, ¢
issuers and payment processors an expanding valpegition at the POS.

Increase in Merchant/Operator Dema. Increasingly, merchants and operators of unagéméyment locations (e.g., vending machines, |
kiosks, mobile business centers, etc.) are utdiztectronic payments alternatives. Several ofQbmpanys customers have been able to ¢
increased revenue of their distributed assets girdhis expanded market opportunity. Furthermoveneys have demonstrated the abilit
increase price with little to no decline in tran$ae volume. In addition, electronic payment systgmovide merchants and operators téak
sales and inventory data utilized for back-offieparting and forecasting, helping the merchantparator to manage their business.

Increase in Demand for Networked Ass. According to M2M Magazine (M2M, “Is it Touchingud Everyday Lives?”’November 18, 200:
there are over 50 billion machines capable of beiatyvorked. The potential of machines such as mhoticks and home appliances
billions of machines that contain data is large andtinues to grow. Networked assets provide imgdowternal business processes sut
energy management systems capable of collectimgndsic information and communicating with the @ter's host information system
optimize energy consumption. Networked assetslzse the ability to remotely monitor merchandiseniximize sales and track inventon
real-time. In addition, networked assets providiiale information into consumer’purchasing patterns and payment preferencesiafj
operators to more effectively reach and satisfysoomers. Networked assets allow information to batrebzed and reported in electro
format enabling the data to be more accuratelythotbughly analyzed and digitally presented andlabie online. According to the M2
Magazine the networked asset industry is in it€@asy and electronic solution providers that cavisle interconnectivity between distribu
assets offer consumers, retailers, machine operaod manufacturers an expanded value propositjooptimizing the capabilities of
distributed asset.
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POS Technology | mprovements and Decreasing Costs are I ncreasing Adoption of Electronic Payment Solutions

Advances in Computir. History has shown that advances in microprocgssichnology, storage capacity and software arbliggincreasin
complexity and functionality of electronic paymeystems at unattended POS locations. Such advareexpanding the range of services
functionality offered by electronic payment systemduding credit and debit, prepaid cards, giftdsaand loyalty card programs, electrc
bill payment and electronic check truncation. ldiidn, advances in technology, computing and tlemunications over the past decade
reduced the cost of production and operations afensophisticated electronic payment systems, tlyeretbucing the barrier of adoption
merchants and operators.

Wireless Connectivity and Reliabilits«dvancements in wireless technology are providasjdr transmission of transaction data at a lowst
enabling more advanced payment and other vatlgeed applications at the unattended POS. Majecaeimunications carriers have expar
their communications networks and lowered fees. fohegoing have opened new markets for electroajarent systems, many of which h
been primarily caslenly industries such as vending, kiosks, mobileiness centers and quick service restaurants. Weveethat lowe
production costs, combined with increased consudegnand, will lead to increasing merchant and operatioption of electronic P(
solutions at unattended locations.

Card Innovation at the POSRecent industry developments such as the emezgefnoontactless/RFID have resulted in the POS roéap ar
important area of differentiation for card assdoiad, card issuers and payment processors. As #kemnfor issuing credit cards has bec
more saturated in the U.S., card associations ardiissuers are differentiating their brands byagxiing their offerings. Payment proces
are also differentiating themselves by expandirairtbfferings as front-end authorization and backt clearing and settlement have bec
more commoditized. Card associations, card issaegspayment processors are differentiating thderioigs, in part, by offering valuadder
applications and incorporating innovative techn@edncluding contactless / RFID.

Increased Market Sponsorship

Key Industry Constituents Continue to Drive MarReteptance. U.S. card associations, card issuers and payprenessors continue to Ic
for innovative strategies to increase market opputy and search for new ways to differentiate theands by expanding their electrc
payment offerings. Unattended POS terminals the¢ fiaditionally been dominated by casdised payments represent a significant growtt
for industry participants to increase market oppaitty by converting casbased industries to electronic payments. In addittbe recet
emergence of payment technologies such as Tap & Gmaytat-thepump and other POS solutions at unattended or mddiiations such
taxi cabs, restaurants and vending, represent nigeing shift to electronic payments for everydagnsactions. We believe that contin
innovation within unattended POS markets by largganizations within the electronic payments industill drive increased mark
acceptance and overall market growth.

Increased Participation from Card Associatio. According to KioskCom 2008, less than 5% of tippraximate eight million tradition
beverage and food vending machines in the U.S.pacard payment. With the volume of credit and tetdnsactions exceeding c
transactions, consumers have clearly shown a greferfor card payments. More importantly, the @mated POS market represents a siz
and attractive growth market for card associatiand electronic payment companies. Card associatiane been helping accelerate
conversion of the unattended POS industry fromimamily cash-only industry to a camabtcepting marketplace. For example, the major t
card associations agreed to waive the signatungirezgents for purchases of less than $25 makifaster and more efficient to utilize P
terminals with distributed assets. Additionallye ttard associations are encouraging unattendedel0onic payment technology by seet
this market through purchases of unattended POSretéc payment devices. Specifically, we have g to date, approximately $
million for approximately 22,000 ePa& devices from the card associations. These purchesesin collaboration with owners and opere
of vending machines in the U.S., and in our opirti@ips increase market adoption in the unattend28 Electronic payments industry. (
historical data demonstrates that approximately 28%ll of the transactions on traditional beveragel food vending machines utilizing
ePort® terminals consist of credit/debit card transactions

Favorable LegislationThe revisions to Regulation E by the Federal Res@&liminate the requirement to provide a receiptdebit car
purchases under a specified dollar amount. The efilective August 6, 2007, eliminated the recegmuirement for transactions of $15 or |
Previously, Regulation E required that a paperiptdee made available to consumers for all eledtréumd transfer systems, including small-
dollar transactions such as vending machines irchwbonsumers may not expect a receipt. In manyhe$e environments, the cost
operational challenges of receipt printing limiteé deployment of electronic payment acceptanceibes.
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SPECIFIC MARKETS WE SERVE

Our current customers are primarily in the vendkigsk, commercial laundry and business centerstrgiisectors. While these industry sec
represent only a small fraction of our total manetential, these are the areas where we havedyfieemost traction. In addition to being
primary markets, these sectors serve as a proobdept for other unattended POS industry appdioati

Vending.According to Vending Times Census of the Indust®p@ annual U.S. sales in the vending industrycsesere estimated to
approximately $47.5 billion. According to this cessthere are an estimated 8 million traditionaldsage and food vending locations in
U.S. and 30 million locations worldwide. The markegment that can be addressed by our emadosolution consists primarily of venc
products retailing for $1.00 or greater. Per censtasistics, the overall market growth is 5% to @#mually, while the addressable ma
segment for our end-tend solution is growing more rapidly at 9% annualyrrently, our network supports only approximatéi% of the
total traditional beverage and food vending maikeéhe United States. With the continued shift leceonic payments and the advanceme
mobile and POS technology, we believe the traditidmeverage and food vending industry will expereemgrowth in offering cardbase:
payment alternatives in addition to cash.

Kiosk. According to IHL Consulting Group Market Studytei July 1, 2010, approximately $678 Billion waansacted through selfservice

kiosks in 2009, which represents an increase &fdrom the previous year. Furthermore, IHL projdbist spending at seffervice kiosks wi
grow approximately 10% during 2010 and that demfandelf-service kiosks should push sales at these termioaiser $1 trillion by 201
Kiosks are becoming increasingly popular as selfise “specialty” shops within larger retail envinments. Valueadded services, such
photo enlargement and custom imaging are a promaeample, located within many major retailers.marchants continue to seek new w
to reach their customers outside of retail locatiamd mobile and electronic payment technology nthise expansion more plausible,
believe electronic payment system providers thatssvice the payment needs of kiasksen transactions will be able to offer retailezarc
associations, card issuers and payment processegpanding value proposition at the POS.

Commercial Laundry According to a 2010 Report on Dry cleaning andrdry Services published by Anything Research ctireent size ¢
the laundry services market is $22.4 billion, atticaugh the industry experienced revenue declinesshb in 2009 compared to 2008, Ic
term forecasts for the industry project positivewgth. The Dry Cleaning and Laundry Facilities Istty Profile published by First Reses
dated June 21, 2010, states that the laundry ssniclustry includes about 30,000 companies. Mejonpanies include Coinmach Serv
DRYCLEAN USA, MacGray, and Martin Franchises. The industry includesut 20,000 companies that provide retail lauraing dn
cleaning services, and 10,000 that provide sentizerigh coin-operated laundromats. The daimdry segment is fragmented: the 50 la
firms generate about 40 percent of revenue. Thymseat of the business is made up of both coin-opdees and coimp machines located
multi-family housing developments such as apartsiecindominiums and universities. The Coin Laundisgociation points out that ‘coin
laundries thrive in periods of both growth and ssien. During periods of recession, when home osinprdecreases, the selvice laundr
market expands as more people are unable to affiaepair, replace or purchase new washers andsirgeas they move to apartment hou
with inadequate or nonexistent laundry facilitieEtie selfservice laundry market consists of an estimateghgmy customer base of 86 milli
people living in rental housing, as of the 2000 .UC&nsus. A secondary customer base consists ajvitie2 million resident college a
university students in the US (U.S. Census Bur2804). We reach our target market primarily via slegen largest laundry operators in
us.

Single Cup/Office Coffee Service (OC8)2008/2009, OCS sales posted a 5 percentage gdtine from the prior 12aonth period, markir
the first setback since 2003/2004. OCS revenuedeth$3.9 billion in 2008/2009, according to th®2®utomatic Merchandiser State of
Coffee Service Industry Report, July 2009. Accogdia this same publication, they&ar gain from 2003/2004 to 2007/2008 was the Ist
consistent growth trend in the indussiistory, driven by higher pricing and investmignbetter quality products and equipment, and the
decline in sales was a direct result of declinirgrkgite populations and employer cost cutting. gkdang to the National Coffee Associat
2008 National Coffee Drinking Trends survey, 200@swthe first year that daily coffee consumption agh@dults surpassed soft dr
consumption and its more recent study proved dailysumption of coffee beverages among consumeraimeoh consistent in 2009 with
percent of the overall adult population partakiie have entered into a contract with Starbucksyaunsto which Starbucks will offer coffee
unattended locations using the ePort Cashless p#aysystem.

Business Centel. According to the American Hotel & Lodging Assad@a, the hotel and lodging industry is a nearl\84%Billion industr
with approximately 47,000 hotels in the United 8sadnd 300,000 worldwide during 2008. With the éased globalization of our econon
and the increased need for travel both for persandlbusiness, there remains a demand for unattdngsiness center availability in hot
with ever-greater percentages of travelers neealitgexpecting use of computers, printers, fax nmeshicopiers, and other business services.
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OUR COMPETITIVE STRENGTHS
We believe that we benefit from a number of advgesgagained through our 18-year history in our itqug hey include:

Trusted Brand Namé&he USA Technologies brand has a strong natioqmltagion for quality, reliability and innovation. &\believe that ca
associations, payment processors and merchantatopeitrust our system solutions to handle findnitensactions in a secure opera
environment. Our trusted brand name is best exéegplithrough several ongay exclusive relationships, each averaging threars ii
duration, which we have solidified with severaldae organizations within the unattended POS irmgust

Large Installed BaseWe have a large installed base of unattended P&&@hic payment systems. As of June 30, 2010,asdealpproximate
82,000 connections to our network. Our technologyigdles POS payment solutions as well as tiesd- POS and diagnostic data to
customers. Our customers maintain both the payrselotion as well as the redine data with one provider rather than through tipid
providers. Our installed base supports our saleb raarketing infrastructure by enhancing our ability establish or expand our mai
position. In addition, our large installed baseup&ttended POS electronic payment systems makgwaprietary operating systems a prefe
choice on which third party developers can createier added applications for broad distribution of thaplications. Finally, our install
base provides several opportunities for referratsnbw business, either from the merchant or opedtthe deployed asset or through on
our several strategic relationships.

Attractive Value Proposition for Our Custome. We believe that our solutions provide our custaren attractive value proposition. (
solutions make possible increased purchases byuowars who in the past were limited to the physazdh value omand while making
purchase at an unattended terminal. Rather thaolséa coins or dollar bills to feed a vending mime, customers have the option of pa
by card. We believe our solutions make possibleeimsed convenience and a broader universe of ptenstomers -those with cash
electronic forms of payment. Furthermore, the aafsour solution continues to decrease making it eneconomically attractive for
customers to install our devices in their assets. lstorical data demonstrates that approxima28B6 of all of the transactions on traditic
beverage and food vending machines utilizing owre® terminals consist of credit/debit card transactions

Large and Increasing ScaldDuring the year ended June 30, 2010, we generated licensing and processing fees of $9.31 mil
successfully processed approximately 36.9 milllamgactions accounting for more than $67.6 milliopurchases and, as of June 30, 201(
approximately 82,000 distributed assets such adingmachines, kiosks, copiers, personal compuserd laundry equipment connected to
network. We believe that our scale and footprirel#a us to market and distribute our products reffiectively and in more markets than n
of our competitors, and to provide our customeithiinovative, comprehensive and reliable systelutisns.

Leading Research and DevelopmtOur research and development initiatives focusduting features and functionality to our system sohs
through the development and utilization of our gsxing and reporting network and new technologyeive began operations in 1992,
have been granted 78 patents and currently haygatieht applications pending. We have developedviatie and reliable unattended F
electronic payment devices and solutions over #st peveral years. For example, our most recehtesssvending solution, the ePort EDGE
was made available for sale to our customers dutiegfourth quarter of the 2009 fiscal year. OuwrePortG-8 is an integrated opéce
design, combining the cargader and processor while enabling both magnefiigesand RFID card transactions, and is 65% smé#ilan ou
previous G-7 model.

One-Stop Shop, End-to-End Solutigve believe that our ability to bundle the servizesuded in our cashless payment solution, as asthi
ability to tailor them to individual customer needsakes it easy and efficient for our customeradopt and deploy our technology, and re:
in a service unmatched in the vending market to@dlger cashless payment solutions available imtheket today require the operator to se
their own accounts for cashless processing, mamaggple service providers (i.e. hardware termimenufacturer, wireless network provi
and credit card processor), as well as leavestitadm to implement their cashless systems. Outiealprovides all of the following, under ¢
cohesive service umbrella;

« A broad product line of devices or software, catirsjsof the ePort G8 which can accept multiple ferofi cashless payme
from swipe and contactless and the 2010 N/A-Innovatior-Award-winning ePort EDGE

« Unique payment programs such as our QuickStarlamgpStart programs, which help operators acqueaeRort hardwar
without an uj-front capital investmen

« Our comprehensive end-to-end ePort Connect caghdgssent service which includes merchant accountgewireless SIh
activation, merchant services, o-the-air updates, and 24x7 customer service and suf

« Business deployment planning services to help ¢perauccessfully deploy cashless payment sysfehis program is base
on extensive market data, which helps guide opesatothe locations where cashless vending mackwoetd be most
successful
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OUR GROWTH OPPORTUNITY

Our objective is to enhance our position as a teagirovider of technology that enables electroragrpent transactions and valadde:
services at the unattended POS such as traditi@valrage and food vending, kiosks and commerdialdey. The key elements of our strat
are to:

Leverage Existing Customers/PartneWe have a solid base of key customers across reuttiprkets (vending, kiosk, etc.) that have depd
our solutions. We have worked to build these retethips, drive future deployments, and develop acoited network interfaces. C
customers have seen the benefits of our produatssarvices firshand and represent the largest opportunity to soalesolution. Thes
customers are a key component of our plan to draes.

Expand Distribution in Core MarketWe have worked to develop a strong market presienitee vending and energy markets. Increasing
and distribution to our largest customers is imgotrto the longerm success of the Company, but we are intentlysed on building a broac
base of customers within these core markets teddrg term revenue and value. Our efforts in thgard have led the addition of 5251
customers during the fiscal year 2010.

Further Penetrate Attractive Adjacent MarkeWe plan to continue to increase the functionalitpar system solutions to address the spe
needs of various markets. We currently focus orifipesegments of unattended POS markets, inclutfendjtional beverage and food vend
kiosk, commercial laundry and business center itngdisgctors. We believe we have the ability to pete a much larger addressable mark:
selling or licensing our technologies to equipmeratkers of everyday devices such as toll booths,itiflation and vacuum equipment,
washes and countless other devices. Using wiretbamdreless networks and centralized, sefvased software applications, managers
remotely monitor, control, and optimize a network devices regardless of where they are locatedvbiéed devices enable cash
transactions, sales analysis, remote monitoring ogmimized machine maintenance.

New Product InnovatiorWe are a leading innovator of technology that ezsllectronic payment transactions and valdeéed services at 1
unattended POS. We will continue enhancing ourtswls in order to satisfy our customers and the-@wsumers relying on our product:
the POS. Our product innovation team enhances ¢sgul, size, speed of data transmission, secuauitgf, compatibility with other electror
payment solution providergechnologies. We believe our continued product wiation will lead to further adoption in the unatiexd PO:!
payments market. For example, our new ePo8™Gsolution is 65% smaller than our previous modell the cost of the ePort EDGE™
$199 per device.

Leverage Intellectual Properi. We have been granted 78 patents which assedugaclaims, including claims relating to unattengegmer
processing, networking and energy management deviceaddition, we own numerous trademarks, copysigdesign rights and trade sec
We will continue to leverage this intellectual peoty to add value for customers, attain an incréatere of the market, address compet
and attempt to generate licensing revenues.

Capitalize on High Growth Opportunities in Interiatal Markets. We currently are focused on the U.S. and Canadliarket for our ePc
devices and related network but may seek to establipresence in emerging, high growth electroaioment markets in Europe, Asia
Latin America. In order to do so, we would havdrteest in additional sales and marketing and re$eand development resources targ
towards these regions. Our energy management deliioee been shipped to customers located in the Oa®ada, Mexico, United Kingdo
Germany, France, Japan, Australia and the Philgspin

OUR PRODUCTS

Our products are available in several distinctivdmar configurations, offering our customers flekiy to install a POS solution that best
their needs and customer demands.

Intelligent Vendin¢™. As of June 30, 2010, we have approximately 1B @&Port® and other cashless devices on vending machinekiaskt
operating for use by the general public that anenected to our ePort Conne®t solution. Our ePort Conne® solution for the vendir
industry enables cashless payments at unattend& ve@ding machines. ePort Conn&cts an end to end suite of cashless paymen
telemetry services for the self service retail stdes.

During fiscal year 2008, we introduced our eF®1G-7, which offer features of prior versions of theoaRG series such as the ability to ac
RFID payment mediums, but also includes additidealures including gift, loyalty and prepaid pragraupport, as well as remote upgrade
increased remote diagnostics capabilities. Oustateprovement to Intelligent Vending™ is our eR®rG-8, which provides the same bene
of the G-7, plus important new features at a lopréze. The G-8 solution is 65% smaller than the,@embines traditional maggip and RFII
payment capabilities. In addition, our ePort Edgpféduct became available for sale to customersdutie fourth quarter of the 2009 fis
year. The ePort Edge™ is a one piece design aintkeisded for those in the vending industry who wamiagnetic swif-only cashless syste
at a retail price of $199 per device. The retaiteof the Edge device, under $200, representgrdfisiant decrease in retail price of previ
ePort devices, which retailed above $400 and $30ibgl the 2008 and 2009 fiscal years, respectively.

Kiosk. We provide an ePo® solution that utilizes our ePd&t or software Client, USALiv® , and our comprehensive technology suppor
customer service to offer an electronic paymenioopand web-based remote monitoring and managefoerdll kiosk types. Our ePo®
solution enables Kiosks to sell an increased wanmétitems and at a higher price point as compdcedashenly Kiosks as consumers

typically limited to the amount of available castiHoand. Kiosks permit a host of new services tmbrezavailable at the point-oflemand, suc
as Son’s seltservice, Picture Station kiosks, where consumenspraduce prints from their own digital media. Idd&ion, our ePor®



solution powers the POS solutions for unattendessKproviders such as Merit Megatouch, Fantasyddoatth and AlRserv. In October 20(
Starbucks chose our eP@tmobile solution to deliver their product to customthrough coffee Kiosks.
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Business Expre® was originally developed to provide ssrvice business center solutions to the Hotel ikl industry. With th
introduction of the ePort® SDK and ePort® Transaa@® target market was expanded to include primdrapier dealers and manufactui
The Business Express® solution includes the eP&B& for computer-based transactions such as a ®B@i®, and the ePort® Transact
enables printers and copiers to accept credit &it dards for payment. These products are couplddour customer service support .
ePort Connect® back-end system for payment prawgssid other value-added services.

ePort® Transact®, which became available in Mar@hQ? is the latest version of our original paymeahnology system developed for self-
service business center devices such as printérs@yy machines. It is a cashless-transactiombling terminal that permits customers to
office equipment with a swipe for their credit ahit card. The ePort® Transact® can be sold aaralsione device to hotel, motel and of
locations with business center needs, or to priatet copier dealers and manufacturers to be safldeio customers with the cashless of
already installed.

eTransAct® , which became available in March 2010, is theskatersion of our original payment technology systieveloped for self-service
business center devices, such as fax machinesogiet €, is a cashless transaction-enabling terntiélpermits customers to use office
equipment with the swipe of a major credit carde EfiransAc® device can be sold as a stand-alone unit for customishing to integrate it
with their own office equipment.

As of June 30, 2010, we have approximately 900rBass Express® units installed nationwide with saivefrthe major hotel chains.

eSuds™. eSuds™ is our solution developed for the comimakl@undry industry. eSuds™ offers amngil alert system to notify users regarc
machine availability, cycle completion, and otheter@s and supports a variety of valdded services such as custom advertisir
subscription-based payments.

Our eSuds™ system enables laundry operators tada@wustomers cashless transactions via the useifcredit cards, debit cards and o
payment mediums such as student IDs. In additioneSuds™ service reduces operational costs thratiligration of our remote monitorit
technology, thereby maximizing the scheduling aolvee visits and increasing machine time. The system increases customer satisfe
through improved maintenance, higher machine abitiths specialized services (i.e.,meail alerts to indicate that laundry cycle is fimésgl) an
the convenience of non-cash transactions.

Installations of our eSuds™ product have been cetegl at 56 universities and are serviced on apmpabely 7,400 washer and dr
machines. For example, installations of our eSugeBtiuct have been completed at Carnegie Mellon éisity, Rutgers University, Ce
Western Reserve, Johns Hopkins University, Templeéfsity and others. We are working with resellsisch as BlackBoard, and distribut
such as Caldwell & Gregory, to install eSuds™ #eotcolleges and universities. The Company recestpanded e-Suds into mulémily
housing with CoinMach, a firm which has indicatbdittit operates approximately 850,000 laundry nmaeshin North America.

As of June 30, 2010, we had approximately 800 eSudsm controllers servicing approximately 7,400t and dryer machines.
Energy Management Produc. Our Company offers energy conservation produtEsdrgy Misers”® ) that reduce the electrical pov
consumption of various types of existing equipmexnugh as vending machines, glass front coolers adher “always-on”appliances k
allowing the equipment to selectively operate ipaaver saving mode when the full power mode is rettessary. Each of the Company’
Energy Miser® products utilizes occupancy sensing technologyetermhine when the surrounding area is vacant oupied. The Energ
Miser ® then utilizes occupancy data, room and product &atpres, and an energy saving algorithm to sgkdgtcontrol certain hlgh&nerg\
components (e.g. compressor and fan) to realizetrdal power savings over the lobgrm use of the equipment. Customers of
VendingMiser® product benefit from reduced energy consumptioris¢catepending on regional energy costs, machine, gpd utilization ¢
the machine. Our Energy Misegsalso reduce the overall stress loads on the equiprhelping to reduce associated maintenance costs.
The Energy Mise® family of energy-control devices includes:
VendingMiser®- installs in a cold drink vending machine and i&hkithe electrical power consumption of the vendiaghine.
CoolerMiser™:- reduces the electrical energy used by slidingggta pull open glass-front coolers that contain-perishable goods.

VM2IQ® and CM2IQ®- the second generation of the VendingMigeand CoolerMiser™ devices that is installed diredtiside th
machine and has the capability to control the cgopdiystem and the advertising lights separately.

SnackMiser® reduces the amount of electricity used by norigefated snack vending machines.

PlugMiser™ - reduces the amount of electricity used by all typeplug loads including those found in personahwdular office
(printers, personal heaters, and radios), videadergames, and more.
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OUR SERVICES

Through ePort Conne@® , we offer end-to-end services to support our eBevices and ePort SDK™.
The ePort Conne@® service includes:

Card Processing ServicesThrough our existing relationships with card mssors and card associations, we provide mercltaouat an
terminal ID set up, pre-negotiated discounted faesmall ticket purchases and direct EFTs to ostarners bank account for all settled ¢
transactions as well as ensure compliance witheatiprocessing regulations.

Wireless ConnectivityWWe manage the wireless SIM account activation ritligion, and the relationship with wireless praasigl for ou
customers.

Customer/Consumer Service®Ve support our installed base by providinghdn help desk support, repairs, and replacemeirnpéirec
system solutions. In addition, as the merchaneobrd on all transactions, all inbound billing iirigs are handled through a Béur help des
thereby eliminating the need for merchants andaipes to be bothered with customer billing inqudréed potential chargebacks.

Online Sales Reporting and Remote Managemdifective remote management is essential to effsttive deployment, maintenance
management of unattended POS locations. Via thelll&”online reporting system, we provide reportofgecredit and cash transactions, |
configuration, reporting by machine and region,daye range and transaction type, data reportsgderations and finance, graphical repor
for sales and to customers, and condition monigofiim equipment service as well as activation of mlevices and location redeployments.

Over-the-Air Update Capabilitie®iutomatic over-theair updates to software, settings, and securityopm from our network to our ePort ¢
reader keep our customers’ hardware upldte and enable customers to benefit from any advaent made after their hardware or soft
purchase.

OUR TECHNOLOGY-BASED SOLUTION

We believe that our ability to bundle our produatsl services, as well as the ability to tailor thenndividual customer needs, makes it ¢
and efficient for our customers to adopt and deploy technology, and results in a service unmatéhdte vending market today. This one-
stop-shop solution includes the ePort Coni@a&nd-toend payment and processing services and our cagbdgsnent device or software
distributed assets such as vending machines, kitaksdry equipment, photocopiers or personal cderpu

The Client. The Company offers its customers several diffexd®@vices or software to connect their distributsdets. These range fr
software to hardware devices consisting of contimdrds, magnetic strip card readers, and RFID readde devices or software can
embedded inside the host equipment, such as eP#i"Ssoftware residing in the central processingt wifia Kiosk or Business Cen
computer; it can be integrated as part of the &gatpment, such as our eP@rhardware that can be attached to the door of aingnmdachine
or it can be a peripheral, stand-alone terminalhsas our eTransA® terminal for Copier Express.

ePort® is the Company’s core device, which is currentlingeutilized in vending and commercial laundry apgtions. Our ePo® produc
facilitates cashless payments by capturing the paymedia and transmitting the information to ogtwork for authorization with the paym
system (e.g. credit card processors). Additionphbdities of our ePor® consist of control/access management by authorizeds, collectic
of audit information (e.g. product or service saldte and time of sale and sales amount), diagnogtrmation of the host equipment, i
transmission of this data back to our network febvbbased reporting.

eTransAct® is the latest version of the Company’s originalhtass, transaction-enabling device developed ftrssgvice business cen
equipment such as PCs, fax machines and copiarslaBito ePort® , the eTransAct® capabilities include control/access manager
collection of sales data (e.g. date and time df,ssdles amount and product or service purchaaad)tfransmission back to our network
reporting to customers.

The Connectivity MediumsOur solutions are interconnected for the transfeyur customer’s data through our USALi®enetwork, providin
multiple connectivity options such as phone lingheenet or wireless. Increasing wireless conndgtigptions, coverage and reliability hi
allowed us to service a greater number of custdowtions. Additionally, we make it easy for ourstamers to deploy wireless solutions
acting as a single point of contact. We have catechwith AT&T Mobility in the United States and gers Wireless in Canada in orde
supply our customers with wireless network coverage
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The Network. Our USALive ® network is responsible for transmitting paymenbiniation from our terminals for processing as vas
transmitting sales and diagnostic data for stoeagkreporting to our customers. Also, the netwttkgugh servebased software applicatio
provides remote management information and enalolesol of the networked devicefunctionality. Through our network we have thdiik
to push software and update devices remotely ergabis to manage the devices (e.g., change protonotionality, software upgrades, ¢
change terminal display messages).

USALive ® is the enabler of turnkey cashless payment praogdsr our customers. The network is certified wsveral cashless paym
systems, such as credit card processors and pyaparagement systems, facilitating the authoripatiod settlement of credit cards, d
cards, hotel room keys and student identificatiards. The network also has the capability to adisa®vn payment processing system for ¢
cashless payment media, such adim@stored value or employee payroll deductiore Tietwork authorizes transactions, occurring aththe
equipment, with the appropriate payment systemsamdis approval or decline responses back to teorietd device to allow or terminate
transaction for the purchase of the product oriserhe network consolidates successfully appravadsactions from multiple devic
batches, and then transmits these batched tramisatt the payment system for settlement.

Data SecurityOn January 14, 2009 the Company received notiee ¥sa that it had been accepted as a Complianic&eProvider as a res
of its third party PCI Report on Compliance. TheATSisting on Visa can be found online at http:Audsa.com/download/merchants/cisp-list-
of-pcidss-compliant-service-providers.pdf.

SALES AND MARKETING

The Companys sales strategy includes both direct sales andnethadevelopment, depending on the particular dyosrof each of ot
markets. Our marketing strategy is diversified araiudes media relations, direct mail, conferermed client referrals. As of August 31, 2C
the Company was marketing and selling its prodtetsugh its full time staff consisting of eight fpe.

Direct Sales

We sell directly to the major operators in eacloof target markets. Each of our target marketomidated by a handful of large compar
and these companies comprise our primary custoase. bn the vending sector, approximately ten laggrators dominate the sector; in
commercial laundry sector, seven operators cugrewthtrol the majority of the market. We also walikectly with hoteliers for our eTrans/
® and Business Express® products.

Within the vending industry, our customers inclwigt drink bottlers and independent vending opesatbroughout the United States
Canada. On the soft drink bottler side, we arengiteng to secure additional distribution agreemeartd servicing our existing custorrer’
requirements for cashless locations and the relzgtglork services.

Indirect Sales/ Distribution
We have entered into agreements with resellersiestidbutors in connection with our energy managenpeoducts.
Marketing

Our marketing strategy consists of building oumiokdy creating a company and product presencelasiry conferences and events in ord
raise visibility within our industry, create oppanity to conduct product demonstrations, and cdnsith potential customers one-ame
sponsoring educational workshops with trade asSongsuch as National Automated Merchandiser Aatioa (“NAMA”), to educate tf
industry on the importance and benefits of ourtsmtuand establish our position as the industrgéeadevelop several case studies to illus
the value of our products; the use of direct mainpaigns; advertising in verticalbrented trade publications such as Vending Ti
Automatic Merchandiser and Energy User News; artivate a network of state governments and utidigmpanies to provide incentives
underwriting for our energy management products.

IMPORTANT RELATIONSHIPS

MasterCard International

In May 2007, MasterCard International, the Compaaryy Coca-Cola Enterprises, Inc. entered into aeesgent to deploy 7,500 eP@t
devices, as more fully described below. The Comphag earned a total of approximately $3,248,00@&dnipment revenues from t
agreement, which was earned during the period mé 11 2007 through October 31, 2007.

In November 2007, MasterCard International andGoenpany signed an agreement to deploy 4,051 éPodkvices that accept MasterC

“PayPass™” (the “November 2007 MasterCard Agreefpenhe Company had earned a total of approximatelp(RLO00 in equipme
revenues from this agreement, which was earnedgltine period of December 1, 2007 through March2808.
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AT&T Mobility

In November 2009, we signed an amendment to oustirgiagreement to use AT&J digital wireless wide area network for transpdrtiata
including credit card transactions and inventorynegement data. The initial term of the amendmeriorigperiod of three years, expiri
November 2012. At the end of the initial term, Hgreement automatically renews for successive eae terms unless terminated by ei
party. AT&T is a provider of advanced wireless wiand data services for consumers and businegseigtiog the largest digital wirele
network in North America and the fastest nationwidieeless data network in the United States. WeroAT&T's wireless services
connection with our ePo® devices which are utilized in the traditional bexge and food vending market in the U.S.

Coca-Cola Enterprises, Inc.

In February 2007, we entered into a three-year §ugopd Licensing Agreement with Coca-Cola Entegsjdnc. (“CCE"), the world larges
marketer, producer and distributor of Coca-Coladpnts. The agreement covered the purchase by G ds of our G6 ePof® and relate
ePort Connec® services for use in CCE’s beverage vending machiimetuding the purchase of ePofsby CCE under the MasterCi
agreement referred to below. The price of eachte®arvas $433. Although the agreement has expired, paotsio the USALive Servic
Agreement between CCE and us, we receive 5% otdlsbless revenues from each CCE vending machitigngtiour ePort device as
processing fee as well as a monthly payment of35ped ePort device so long as we act as the traosarocessor. As of June 30, 2010, we
as the transaction processor for all of the unitd ender the agreement.

The agreement also included, as an exhibit, thetdvi@ard PayPass Participation Agreement enteredbietween us, CCE, and MasterC
International Incorporated under which CCE had edr® use commercially reasonable efforts to cotaptestallation of up to 7,500 ePofis
(the “CCE/MasterCard Agreement”). In addition teagting credit and debit cards, these eP®rtccept payment from credit cards utiliz
MasterCards PayPass contactless technology and were to lmedtin CCE beverage vending machines in multigitees throughout tr
United States. For each eP@rsuccessfully installed by CCE, we received an agafeeof $433 from CCE and MasterCard. All unitsemithis
agreement were installed as of December 31, 2007.

VISA

On April 1, 2009 we entered into a Contactless TeaifSupport Agreement with VISA U.S.A. INC. (“VISA pursuant to which VISA wou
pay us the amount of $200 for each eithat we deployed prior to December 31, 2009. Threemgent covered up to a maximum of 4
ePorts® . These ePort® would accept credit and debit cards utilizing VISAContactless technology as well as VISAhagnetic strif
payment cards. In June 2009, the agreement wasdeuié¢a provide funding for up to an additional D¥Ports®vhich may be installed «
vending machines owned by The Compass Group. VISAldvpay us an aggregate of $800,000 if all 4,0@6res® were timely deployed. O
customer (i.e., the location owner) would enteo iatthreeyear exclusive processing agreement with us in ection with the vending machi
utilizing the ePort® . The Company deployed a total of 2,961 units, or2$%@0, under this agreement during the period &f du200¢
through December 31, 2009.

On August 16, 2010, we entered into an AcceptandeRromotional Agreement with VISA. Pursuant to #jgeement, VISA agreed, amu
other things, to pay to the Company up to $250@0year, for total payments of up to $750,000. pagments to the Company are to be
by the Company over the three year term of theeageat to support and promote the installation aulayment of at least 50,000 additic
ePort ® terminals in vending machines. If the Comypdoes not install at least 50,000 ePortev@r the term of the three year agreemen
Company would be required to refund a pro-rataipomf the funds.

Compass/Foodbuy

On June 30, 2009, we entered into a Master Purchgesement (“MPA”) with Foodbuy, LLC (“Foodbuy”the procurement company
Compass Group USA, Inc. (“Compassid other customers. As per its website, Compas$&billion organization with locations througtt
the US, Mexico and Canada, is the leader in vendomdservice management and support servicebgisargest national vending opera
company, operating 150 branches and 18,500 cliteg, sand is one of the leading owners and opesaibvending machines in the Uni
States. Compass is a division of UK-based CompassGPLC.

The MPA provides, among other things, that for dqgaeof thirtysix months, Foodbuy on behalf of Compass shalizetiUSAT as the sc
credit or debit card vending system hardware atate® software and connect services provider farlegs than seventiwe percent of th
vending machines of Compass utilizing cashless paysnsolutions. The MPA also provides that for aqakeof thirty-six months, USAT she
be a preferred supplier and provider to Foodbuyitndustomers, including Compass, of USAproducts and services. The MPA provide
initial pricing for the ePort hardware and montBBrvice and DEX telemetry fees at USAT's standaicdimy. Foodbuy$ customers have 1
right under the MPA to acquire USAT's G-8 or Eddrog devices through USA3’'Quick Start Program. The MPA also provides fer dbility
of the customer to obtain DEX telemetry servicesnflUSAT in connection with vending machines utiigithe ePort devices.
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On July 1, 2009, USAT and Compass, in conjunctioth the MPA described above, entered into a QuitktSVaster Lease Agreem
pursuant to which Compass could purchase USAT'sd&Bdge ePort devices utilizing USASTQuick Start Program. The Quick Start Procg
enables Compass to acquire USAT's ePort through ménth norecancellable lease. Under the Quick Start Programmgass will pay USA
a monthly amount, per terminal, that includes #esé of the ePort hardware and activation feetdthémonthly payment due under the Qi
Start Program would be deducted by USAT directly afuthe gross revenues generated from the Compasting machines. Compass wc
be able to utilize the Quick Start Program to aagiePorts during the three year term of the Ma2techase Agreement referred to above.

On July 1, 2009, USAT and Compass, in conjunctidth the MPA described above, also entered intova theee year ePort Connect Serv
Agreement pursuant to which USAT will provide Corepavith all card processing, data, network, comieations and financial services, i
DEX telemetry data services required in connectiith all Compass vending machines utilizing ePorts.

Merit

In October of 2008, we entered into an exclusivedkyear agreement for the supply of edevices and ePort Conne®tcashless servic
with Merit Entertainment. Merit is the provider bfegatouch countertop entertainment systems andtsdl¢he ePor® software and ePc¢
Connect® Services to help give Megatouch players the abtlitypay with their debit or credit cards. Understlasigreement every nev
manufactured Megatouch system will include our éRannect® software. Merit has indicated to us that it curkehias an installed base
over 250,000 touch screen games.

QUICK START PROGRAM

The Quick Start Program (“Quick Start”) eliminatbg customer’s up front capital outlay required thee purchase of the company’s eR®rt
cashless payment products. The Company designezk Qaart in response to customer demands for mangemnient and flexible financil
alternatives of our product. Quick Start offers diely machine operators and bottlers a convenierdt money downplan to help them g
started with the ePort Conne®tservice quickly and easily.

Under the program, vending operators or bottlexe e upfront capital cost, but will pay a montfée which includes the eP@tdevice an
the full ePort Conned® suite of services. The program will offer the operaeveral different lease options for the efrtsuch as a fs
market value lease or a $1 purchase option lease [Bnited basis, and at the Compandiscretion on which customers would qualify,
program will also include a rental option. The nidyntlease or rental fee will be combined with tHeog Connect® Service fees and th
automatically deducted from the either the cashpesseeds from the machine or via an automated &Gird the customes bank account or
monthly basis.

Quick Start lowers the upfront cost of entry for puoducts and services, providing our customeathibty to realize enhanced cash flows \
the implementation of our ePdgt cashless technology. The Company believes providamyenient and flexible financing for our prody
thereby lowering the upfront capital outlay reqment of customers will contribute to the increaasddption of cashless payment systen
vending, thus accelerating sales of its eRoproducts and services to the vending industry.

On July 1, 2009, USAT and Compass, entered intaiakBtart Master Lease Agreement pursuant to wiBicinpass could purchase USAT’
G-8 or Edge ePort devices utilizing USAT’s Quicladtrogram. See Compass/Foodbuy, above, for netadisl

JUMP START PROGRAM

In December 2009, the Company commenced a progoaritsfcustomers referred to as the Jump StartrBregPursuant to the Jump S
Program, the Company would continue to own the eBdge device utilized by its customer. At the tinfehe shipment of the ePort dev
the customer pays to the Company the standarctimeeactivation fee, each month after the custopars monthly service fees and
Company receives transaction processing fees dedefrmam the devices. The Jump Start program alsludes the ePort Connect®rvice
package for wireless connectivity, card processingsumer services, online reporting, and overaiheachine alerts.

Because Jump Start is designed to help vendingatiperand bottlers acquire the ePort EDGE casldessnal at no cost, paying only a |
monthly service fee, and avoiding the need to meakeajor upfront capital investment, the Companycgdtes that the Jump Start Prog
would accelerate adoption in the marketplace afitert technology as well as increase its licenseti@nsaction fee revenues.

When the program was commenced, the Company aaidcighat the Jump Start Program would consist tefast 15,000 ePort Edge devit

In May 2010 the Company expanded the program tludiecthe ePort G8 terminal. In July 2010, the Comypexpanded the program to
aggregate of 35,000 ePort terminals.
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MANUFACTURING

The Company utilizes independent third party congmafor the manufacturing of its products. The Camppurchases other components ¢
business center (computers, printers, fax and ooaghines) through various manufacturers and resellur manufacturing process ma
consists of quality assurance of materials andngsif finished goods received from our contractnofacturers. With the exception o
manufacturer of our ePo® product, we have not entered into a ldagn contract with our contract manufacturers, have we agreed
commit to purchase certain quantities of materaléinished goods beyond those submitted undeiimeiygurchase orders, typically covel
short-term forecasts.

COMPETITION

The cashless vending, remote business service rardyeconservation industries are competitive mark&'hile the Company offers unic
products and services within smaller niche markétthese industries, a number of competitors inktf@ader market may offer products
services within our niche market in the futureth® cashless vending market, we are not aware yfdaect competitor that provides
complete end-t@nd solution, offering a cashless/remote monitodegice and turnkey service, which includes cammtessing services. \
are aware of four competitors that offer a cashlesslware device, MEI, Coin Acceptors Inc. (Coinddantaloupe Systems, Inc. and In
Technology, LLC. We are aware of four competitdrat toffer a remote monitoring device, MEI, CantglelBystems, Inc, InOne Technolc
LLC, and Crane Streamware. We are aware of onetdie@mpetitor that offers a wireless service fashtass processing, Apriva. In additi
there are numerous credit card processors that adfel processing services to traditional retathlelishments that could decide to offer sin
services to the industries that we serve.

In May 2010, The National Automatic MerchandisingsAciation (“NAMA”), an association serving the vending, coffee serdane
foodservice management industries, announced desastending program for their members. As desdritpe NAMA on their website, tt
goal of the program is to enable NAMA members temtheir customers the convenience of cashlessipais at a reasonable cost across !
and large average transaction pricing in a var@tyndustry segments. They further describe the MARashless Solution program a
networked end-t@nd solution that is hardware neutral, works withalied communication suppliers and card assamigtifor paymel
reconciliation and account management. In addit®AMA states they are working to provide membershva broad range of preferen
financial services. The Company believes this pogmay include one or more of the competitors éoGompany referred to in the precec
paragraph.

In the cashless laundry market, we are aware ofdeet competitor, Ma&ray Corporation. In the automated business cengeket, we at
aware of three direct competitors. In the energpamement market, we are aware of one direct cotopédr our Energy Miser products in
United States of America; and, we are aware of competitor for energy management products in Eurdpe businesses which hi
developed unattended, credit card activated cosyrsiems currently in use in non-vending machingiegtions (e.g., gasoline dispensir
public telephones, prepaid telephone cards anéttidispensing machines), might be capable of deugdoproducts or utilizing their existi
products in direct competition with our eP@t control systems targeted to the vending industtye Tompany is also aware of sev
businesses that make available use of the Intemm@étuse of personal computers to hotel guestseim totel rooms. Such services mi
compete with the Compars/Business Express, and the locations may not énddBusiness Express, or if ordered, the hotestguey not us
it. Finally, the production of highly efficient vding machines and glass front coolers or altereativergy conservation products may redu
replace the need for our energy management praducts

The Companys key competitive factors include our unique prdduour integrated services, product performanak @ice. In addition,
includes our ability to deliver these as a one-siopp, which we believe makes our technology easiadopt and deploy for the operator.
competitors are well established, have substaytgéater resources than the Company and havelisb&b reputations for success in
development, sale and service of high quality pet&luAny increase in competition in the future nragult in reduced sales and/or lo
percentages of gross revenues being retained bgadahgpany, or otherwise may reduce potential prafitsesult in a loss of some or all of
customer base.

CUSTOMER CONCENTRATIONS

Approximately 52% and 32% of the Compas@ccounts and finance receivables at June 30, 20d®009, respectively, were concentr
with two (28% with one and 24% with another) and @ustomer(s), respectively. Approximately 11%, 1¥d 61% of the Compary’
equipment sale revenues for the years ended Jurz030, 2009 and 2008, respectively, were concetraith one, one, and two (34% w
one and 27% with another) customer(s), respectivghproximately 52%, 44%, and 44% of the Comparlicense and transaction proces
revenues for the years ended June 30, 2010, 20D2@08, respectively, were concentrated with twa?3with one and 17% with anotht
one, and two (27% with one and 17% with anothestamer(s), respectively. The Compangustomers are principally located in the Ur
States.

TRADEMARKS, PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND PATENTS

The Company received federal registration apprafahe following trademarks: Blue Light Sequern®e, Business Expres® , C3X ® ,
Cinemachine® , CM2iQ ® , Credit Card Computer Expre8s, Dial-A-Snack® , Dial-A-Vend ® , Dial-A-Vend.com® , Energy Misem® ,
ePort® , ePort Conned® , ePort Edge ® , ePort The Next Generation in Vieg@ , PC Expres® , Public PG® , SnackMise® , The Office
That Never Sleep® , TransAct® , USA Technologie® , USALive ® , VendingMise® , and VM2iQ® . The Company has three tradem:
pending registration, Intelligent Vending™, PayD¥t, and Creating Value Through Innovation™. Throughaiholly owned subsidiary, Stit
Networks, the Company has secured two registeestbtnarks, including eSuds.i® and Stitch Network® , and has one trademark penc



registration, eSuds™.
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Much of the technology developed or to be develdmethe Company is subject to trade secret prateciio reduce the risk of loss of tri
secret protection through disclosure, the Compasyemtered into confidentiality agreements wittkég employees. There can be no assul
that the Company will be successful in maintairsngh trade secret protection, that they will beogeized as trade secrets by a court of la
that others will not capitalize on certain aspeéthhe Company’s technology.

Through June 30, 2010, 70 United States patent8drateign patents have been issued to the Compadpijted States and 5 Foreign pa
applications are pending.

The list of issued patents is as follows:

° U.S. Patent No. 6,856,820 entitled “Anvahicle device for wirelessly connecting a vehicehe internet and for transact
e-commerce and-busines”;

° U.S. Patent No. 5,844,808 entitl“ Apparatus and methods for monitoring and commuimgawith a plurality of networke
vending machine¢’;

° U.S. Patent No. 7,690,495 entitl“Card reader assem!”;

) U.S. Patent No. 7,076,329 entitl*Cashless vending transaction management by a VesdtAnode of operati”;

° U.S. Patent No. 7,464,867 entitl* Cashless vending transaction management by a VesgtAnode of operati”;

° U.S. Patent No. 7,131,575 C1 entit“ Cashless vending transaction management by a VesidtAnode of operati’”;

° U.S. Patent No. 7,693,602 entitl“Cashless vending transaction management by a &t enode of operati”;

° U.S. Patent No. 6,615,186 entitle@dmmunicating interactive digital content betweeghigles and internet based

processing resources for the purpose of transae-commerce or conductin¢-busines”;

° U.S. Patent No. 7,003,289 entitle@dmmunication interface device for managing wirglesta transmission betwee
vehicle and the interr”;

° Canadian Patent No. 2,207,603 enti*“ Credit and debit card operated vending mac’;

) U.S. Patent No. 5,637,845 entitledredit Card and Bank Issued Debit Card Operatete8yand Method for Controlling
Prepaid Card Encoding/Dispensing Macl’;

) U.S. Patent No. 6,119,934 entitledredit Card and Bank Issued Debit Card Operatete8yand Method for Controlling
Prepaid Card Encoding/Dispensing Macl’;

) U.S. Patent No. 6,152,365 entitledredit Card and Bank Issued Debit Card Operatete8yand Method for Controlling
Vending Machine (as Amend¢’;

) U.S. Patent No. 5,619,024 entitle@rédit Card and Bank Issued Debit Card Operatete8yand Method for Controlling a
Monitoring Access of Computer and Copy Equipn”;

° U.S. Patent No. D423,474 entitl“Datapor”;

° U.S. Patent No. 6,754,641 entitledyhamic identification interchange method for exoffiag one form of identification fi
anothe”;

° U.S. Patent No. D428,444 entitl“Electronic Commerce Terminal Enclosure for a Vegd#achine’;

° U.S. Patent No. D437,890 entitl“Electronic Commerce Terminal Enclosure for a Vegdu#achine’;

) U.S. Patent No. D441,401 entitl“Electronic Commerce Terminal Enclosure with Brasg”;

° U.S. Patent No. D428,047 entitl“Electronic Commerce Terminal Enclos”;

° U.S. Patent No. 6,243,626 entitldixternal power management device with current nooimi¢y precluding shutdown duri
high currer”;
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U.S. Patent No. D415,742 entitl“Laptop Data Port Enclosl”;
Canadian Patent No. D91645 entit“Laptop Data Port enclosl”;

U.S. Patent No. 7,286,907 entitleMéthod and Apparatus for Conserving Power Consubyed Refrigerated Applian
Utilizing Audio Signal Detectio”;

U.S. Patent No. 6,021,626 entitledéthod and Apparatus for Forming, Packaging, Stpridisplaying and Selling Clothil
Articles”;

U.S. Patent No. 6,975,926 entitled “Method ang@atus for Power Management Control of a CompreBased Applianc
that Reduces Electrical Power Consumption of anliappe”;

U.S. Patent No. 7,200,467 entitl“Method and Apparatus for Power Management Confral @ompress«-Based Applianc
that Reduces Electrical Power Consumption of anliappe”;

U.S. Patent No. 6,622,124 entitl“Method of transacting an electronic mail, an ettt commerce, and an electrc
business transaction by an electronic commercetatroperated on a transportation vel”;

U.S. Patent No. 6,606,605 entitlMethod to obtain customer specific data for publicess electronic commerce serv’;
U.S. Patent No. D480,948 entitl“Mounting bracket for mounting a cashless paymemntiteal to a vending machi”;
U.S. Patent No. D475,750 entitl“Paper guide for a point of sale term”;

U.S. Design Patent No. D543,588 entit*Point of Sale Terminal Mountable on a Vending Mae€’;

U.S. Patent No. 6,801,836 entitl“Powe-conservation based on indoor/outdoor and am-light”;

European Patent No. 1419425 entitled “Power-Qwasien System based on Indoor/Outdoor and Ambliégitt” (validatec
in Germany, Spain, France, the United Kingdom, léelg);

U.S. Patent No. 5,477,476 entitl*Power conservation system for computer periph”;
U.S. Patent No. D475,414 entitl“Printer bracket for point of sale termi”;
U.S. Patent No. D476,036 entitl“Printer bracket for point of sale termi”;

Australian Patent No. 2001263356 entit“Refrigerated vending machine exploiting expandedptrature variance duri
power-conservation mod”;

Mexican Patent No. 234363 entitl“Refrigerated vending machine exploiting expandeapterature variance during po\-
conservation moc.

U.S. Patent No. 6,389,822 entitl“Refrigerated vending machine exploiting expandedpterature variance during po\-
conservation moc’;

U.S. Patent No. 6,581,396 entitl“Refrigerated vending machine exploiting expandedpterature variance during po\-
conservation moc’;

U.S. Patent No. 6,898,942 entitl“Refrigerated vending machine exploiting expandedpterature variance during po\-
conservation moc’;

U.S. Patent No. 6,931,869 entitled “Refrigeratedding machine exploiting expanded temperaturéanee during power-
conservation moc”;

U.S. Patent No. D418,878 entitl“Sign Holde";

Canadian Patent No. D87998 entit“Sign Holde";

U.S. Patent No. 7,630,939 entitl* System and method for locally authorizing cashlemssactions at point of s”;
U.S. Patent No. 6,056,194 entitl* System and Method for Networking and Controllingndimg Machine”;

U.S. Patent No. 6,321,985 entitl* System and Method for Networking and Controllinghdeg Machine”;
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U.S. Patent No. 6,505,095 entitl“System for Providing Remote Audit, Cashless Paymandl Interactive Transacti
Capabilities in a Vending Machi” (Stitch);

Canadian Patent No. 2,409,228 enti“ Temperature controller for a refrigerated vendiragchine’;

U.S. Patent No. 6,389,337 entitl“ Transacting -commerce and Conductin¢-business Related to Identifying and Procu
Automotive Service and Vehicle Replacement I’ (Stitch);

U.S. Patent No. D478,577 entitl“ Transceiver base u”;

U.S. Patent No. 6,609,102 entitletlriversal interactive advertising and payment syst®r public access electro
commerce and business related products and se”;

U.S. Patent No. 6,604,085 entitl“Universal interactive advertising and payment systetwork for public access electrc
commerce and business related products and se”;

U.S. Patent No. 6,601,038 entitl“Universal interactive advertising and payment systetwork for public access electrc
commerce and business related products and se”;

U.S. Patent No. 6,604,086 entitl“Universal interactive advertising and payment systetwork for public access electrc
commerce and business related products and se”;

U.S. Patent No. 6,601,037 entitl“Universal interactive advertising and payment systetwork for public access electrc
commerce and business related products and se”;

U.S. Patent No. 6,611,810 entitl“Universal interactive advertising and payment systetwork for public access electrc
commerce and business related products and se”;

U.S. Patent No. 6,606,602 entitl“Universal interactive advertising and payment systetwork for public access electrc
commerce and business related products and se”;

U.S. Patent No. 6,601,039 entitlddriiversal interactive advertising and payment systetwork for public access electrc
commerce and business related products and se”;

U.S. Patent No. 6,604,087 entitlddriiversal interactive advertising and payment systetwork for public access electrc
commerce and business related products and se”;

U.S. Patent No. 6,615,183 entitlddriiversal interactive advertising and payment systetwork for public access electrc
commerce and business related products and se”;

U.S. Patent No. 6,601,040 entitlddriiversal interactive advertising and payment systetwork for public access electrc
commerce and business related products and se”;

U.S. Patent No. 6,609,103 entitlddriiversal interactive advertising and payment systetwork for public access electrc
commerce and business related products and se”;

U.S. Patent No. 6,629,080 entitlddriiversal interactive advertising and payment systetwork for public access electrc
commerce and business related products and se”;

U.S. Patent No. 7,089,209 entitl“Universal interactive advertising and payment systetwork for public access electrc
commerce and business related products and se”;

U.S. Patent No. 6,643,623 entitl“Universal interactive advertising and payment systeetwork for public access electrc
commerce and business related products and se”;

U.S. Patent No. 6,684,197 entitl“Universal interactive advertising and payment systetwork for public access electrc
commerce and business related products and se”;

U.S. Patent No. 6,807,532 entitl“Universal interactive advertising and payment systetwork for public access electrc
commerce and business related products and se”;

U.S. Patent No. 6,763,336 entitl“Universal interactive advertising and payment systetwork for public access electrc
commerce and business related products and se”;

Canadian Patent No. 2,291,015 entitléthi¥ersal interactive advertising and payment sysfer public access electro
commerce and business related products and se”;



U.S. Patent No. D475,751 entitl“User interface bracket for a point of sale tern”;
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° U.S. Patent No. D476,037 entitl“User interface bracket for a point of sale tern”;

) U.S. Patent No. 6,895,310 entitl“Vehicle related wireless scientific instrumentatiefematic”;

° U.S. Patent No. 6,853,894 entitl“Vehicle related wireless scientific instrumentatiefematic”;

° U.S. Patent No. D477,030 entitl“Vending machine cashless payment tern”;

° U.S. Patent No. 7,593,897 entitl“Wireless system for communicating cashless vendiagsaction data and vend

machine audit data to remote locati”; and

° U.S. Patent No. 7,502,672 entitl“Wireless Vehicle Diagnostics Device and Method v8irvice and Part Determinat
Capabilities (as amende”.

The Company believes that one or more of its paténtluding the U.S. patent No. 6,505,095 entitl8gstem for providing remote au
cashless payment, and interactive transaction déjeshin a vending machine”, are important in f@cting its intellectual property used in its e-
Port® control system targeted to the vending industrye aforesaid patent expires in July 2021. Referénbereby made to our risk fact
relating to our intellectual property.

The Company has filed for the reexamination of BP&ent No. 7,131,575 (reexamination control nd0@®,437) and for the reexaminatior
U.S. Patent No. 6,505,095 (reexamination control ©0/008,448). On August 11, 2009, the U.S. Patefiice issued an Ex Pa
Reexamination Certificate in connection with U.&tént No. 6,505,095 which, among other things, @ amendments to certain of the
claims and approved twelve new claims, for a tofad3 claims.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Research and development expenses, which are ettlird selling, general and administrative expems¢he Consolidated Statements
Operations, were approximately $1,864,000, $2,6¥,,8nd $1,679,000 for the years ended June 3@, 20D9 and 2008, respectively.

EMPLOYEES

On August 31, 2010 the Company had 39 full-time leyges and two part-time employees.
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| tem 1A. Risk Factors.
Risks Relating to Our Business
We have a history of losses since inception andwe continue to incur losses the price of our sharesn be expected to fall.

We have experienced losses since inception. Wecexpeontinue to incur losses for the foreseeédtiere as we expend substantial resot
on sales, marketing, and research and developriemiroproducts. From our inception through June B0, our cumulative losses fr
operations are approximately $188 million. For discal years ended June 30, 2010, 2009 and 2008have incurred net losses
$11,571,495, $13,731,818, and $16,417,893, respdetiOur revenues have not been sufficient toasnsbur operations. If we continue
incur losses, the price of our common stock caaxdpected to fall. No assurances can be given thatilv ever be profitable.

We may require additional financing to sustain ouroperations and without it we may not be able to cdinue operations.

At June 30, 2010, we had working capital of $6,388, We had an operating cash flow deficit of 342,182, $8,477,680, and $13,594,
for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2010, June2309, and June 30, 2008, respectively. Based pmash business operations, we do
currently have sufficient financial resources toduour operations. Therefore, we anticipate thednier additional funds to continue th
operations. Should the financing we require toansbur working capital needs be unavailable ohjlitively expensive when we require
the consequences could be a material adverse effemtir business, operating results, financial @@mrdand prospects.

Our existence is dependent on our ability to raiseapital that may not be available.

There can be no assurance that our business wWMepfinancially profitable or generate sufficiemvenues to cover our expenses. F
inception, we have generated funds primarily thtotlie sale of securities. Although we believe thathave adequate existing resource
provide for our funding requirements through atsteduly 1, 2011, there can be no assurances thatilvee able to continue to gener
sufficient funds thereafter. We expect to raiseduim the future through sales of our debt or gusetcurities until such time, if ever, as we
able to operate profitably. Subsequent to July01,12 our inability to obtain needed funding carelgpected to have a material adverse effe
our operations and our ability to achieve profiligiIf we fail to generate increased revenuegailrto sell additional securities, you may |
all or a substantial portion of your investment.

Our products may fail to gain widespread market aceptance. As a result, we may not generate sufficierevenues or profit margins tc
become successful.

There can be no assurances that demand for ouugeodill be sufficient to enable us to generatffigant revenue or become profitat
Likewise, no assurance can be given that we wilable to install the ePor® at enough locations or sell equipment utilizing aetwork o
our energy management products to enough locatiorechieve significant revenues or that our openatican be conducted profital
Alternatively, the locations which would utilizegmetwork may not be successful locations and exgnues would be adversely affected.
may in the future lose locations utilizing our puats to competitors, or may not be able to ingtatl products at competitorkications, or ma
not obtain future locations which would be obtaifsydour competitors. In addition, there can be ssugance that our products could evolv
be improved to meet the future needs of the malketp

We may be required to incur further debt to meet fuure capital requirements of our business. Should & be required to incul
additional debt, the restrictions imposed by the tems of such debt could adversely affect our finanal condition and our ability to
respond to changes in our business.

If we incur additional debt, we may be subjecthte tollowing risks:

° our vulnerability to adverse economic conditiond anmpetitive pressures may be heightel

° our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, ahges in our business and industry may be lim

° our debt covenants may affect our flexibility imphing for, and reacting to, changes in the econamnalyin our industry

° a high level of debt may place us at a competitigadvantage compared to our competitors thatese leveraged a

therefore, may be able to take advantage of oppitigs that our indebtedness would prevent us fponsuing;

° the covenants contained in the agreements govemingutstanding indebtedness may limit our abiityoorrow addition:
funds, dispose of assets, pay dividends and makaircénvestments

° a significant portion of our cash flows could bediso service our indebtedne

° we may be sensitive to fluctuations in interestsat any of our debt obligations are subject toalde interest rates; ar
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° our ability to obtain additional financing in thetfire for working capital, capital expendituresg@sitions, general corpor:
purposes or other purposes may be impa

We cannot assure you that our leverage and sutiictiess will not materially and adversely affeatr ability to finance our future operatic
or capital needs or to engage in other businesgiteed. In addition, we cannot assure you thatitaital financing will be available whi
required or, if available, will be on terms satittay to us.

Current conditions in the global financial marketsand the distressed economy may materially adversebffect our business, results «
operations and ability to raise capital.

Our business and results of operations may be raiyeadversely affected by conditions in the ficad markets and the economy gener
The stress being experienced by global financiaketa that began in late 2007 continued and sutialignincreased during 2008 and 2C
and continued into 2010. The availability and aofstredit has been materially affected. These factoombined with declining business
consumer confidence and the risks of increasedwotirued unemployment, have precipitated an econatoiwdown and ongoing recess
These events and the continuing market upheavajshage an adverse effect on us, our suppliers amccostomers. The demand for
products could be adversely affected in an econalmenturn and our revenues may decline under siichmastances.

We rely on the credit and equity markets for fulgdaur business by issuing debt and equity secsrithée may find it difficult, or we may r
be able, to access the credit or equity marketsyeomay experience higher funding costs as a re$uhte current adverse market conditi
Continued instability in these markets may limit ability to access the capital we may requireutodfand grow our business.

The loss of one or more of our key customers coukdgnificantly reduce our revenues and profits.

We have derived, and believe we may continue tiveler significant portion of our revenues fromimiled number of large custome
Approximately 52% and 32% of the Compasmccounts and finance receivables at June 30, 20d 2009, respectively, were concentr
with two (28% with one customer and 24% with anottiestomer) and one customer, respectively. Appnately 11%, 11%, and 61% of -
Companys equipment sale revenues for the years ended3yrg010, 2009 and 2008, respectively, were congtat with one, one, and t
(34% with one customer and 27% with another custpnmespectively. Approximately 52%, 44%, and 44%the Companys license ar
transaction processing revenues for the years eddee 30, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively, weneentrated with two (36% with o
customer and 17% with another customer), one, ardrespectively. The Company’s customers areipafly located in the United States.

Our customers may buy less of our products or sesvilepending on their own technological developmemduser demand for our produ
and internal budget cycles. A major customer in gaar may not purchase any of our products or sesvin another year, which n
negatively affect our financial performance. If afyour large customers significantly reduce olaglgdurchases from us or if we are require
sell products to them at reduced prices or unfédereerms, our results of operations and revenu&ldee materially adversely affected.

We depend on our key personnel and if they would &ve us, our business could be adversely affected.
We are dependent on key management personnelgyarty the Chairman and Chief Executive Officeedige R. Jensen, Jr. The los

services of Mr. Jensen or other executive officeosild dramatically affect our business prospectxtain of our employees are particuli
valuable to us because:

° they have specialized knowledge about our compadyogerations
° they have specialized skills that are importarduooperations; ¢
° they would be particularly difficult to replac

We have entered into an employment agreement withJbhsen that expires on September 30, 2012. Wk dao entered into employm
agreements with other executive officers, each itk contain confidentiality and naempete agreements. We have obtained a key mi
insurance policy in the amount of $1,000,000 on dénsen and a key man life insurance policy iratheunt of $1,000,000 on our Presid
Stephen P. Herbert. We do not have and do notdniemobtain key man life insurance coverage on @ngur other executive officers. At
result, we are exposed to the costs associatedhdgttieath of these key employees.

We also may be unable to retain other existingosemanagement, sales personnel and developmergragideering personnel critical to

ability to execute our business plan, which codsuit in harm to key customer relationships, ldskey information, expertise or knotwew
and unanticipated recruitment and training costs.
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Our dependence on proprietary technology and limitd ability to protect our intellectual property may adversely affect our ability tc
compete.

Challenge to our ownership of our intellectual pndp could materially damage our business prosp&uis technology may infringe upon
proprietary rights of others. Our ability to exexudur business plan is dependent, in part, on bilityato obtain patent protection for ¢
proprietary products, maintain trade secret praiaand operate without infringing the proprietaights of others.

Through June 30, 2010, we have 14 pending pateplicapions, and intend to file applications for #&duhal patents covering our futt
products, although there can be no assurance thatillvdo so. In addition, there can be no assueahat we will maintain or prosecute th
applications. The United States Government andr athientries have granted us 78 patents as of Jyn2030. There can be no assurance that:

° any of the remaining patent applications will barged to us

° we will develop additional products that are paabig or do not infringe the patents of othi

° any patents issued to us will provide us with aompetitive advantages or adequate protection fopoducts;
° any patents issued to us will not be challengedilidated or circumvented by others;

° any of our products would not infringe the patesftethers.

If any of the products are found to have infringaty patent, there can be no assurance that webavitlble to obtain licenses to continu
manufacture and license such product or that wenetl have to pay damages as a result of sucmgément. Even if a patent applicatio
granted for any of our products, there can be sarasce that the patented technology will be a ceroial success or result in any profit
us.

If we are unable to adequately protect our prognietechnology, third parties may be able to commpetre effectively against us, which cc
result in the loss of customers and our businegmbedversely affected. Patent and proprietarytsiditigation entails substantial legal :
other costs, and diverts Company resources asasdhe attention of our management. There can lessarance we will have the neces
financial resources to appropriately defend or @cage our rights in connection with any such litiga.

Competition from others could prevent the Company ifom increasing revenue and achieving profitability.

Competition from other companies, including thobattare well established and have substantiallyatgreresources may reduce
profitability or reduce our business opportunitigny of our competitors have established reputatfor success in the development, sale
service of high quality products. We face compatitirom the following groups:

° companies offering automated, credit card activatedtrol systems in connection with facsimile maels, person
computers, debit card purchase/revalue statiomsjieg machines, and use of the Internet ameb@-which directly compe
with our products

° companies which have developed unattended, cradit activated control systems currently used imection with publi
telephones, prepaid telephone cards, gasolinerdisggmachines, or vending machines and are capélieveloping contr
systems in direct competition with the Compa

° businesses which provide access to the Interneparsbnal computers to hotel guests. Although tkeseéces are not cre
card activated, such services would compete waghtbmpan’s Business Expre®; and

. two direct competitors, Elstat Electronics Ltd. akutomatic Retailing Ltd., in the energy managemniedtstry.

In addition, it is also possible that a company coatrently engaged in any of the businesses dextrdbove could develop services
products that compete with our services and prad@@bmpetition may result in lower profit margins eur products or may reduce potet
profits or result in a loss of some or all of oustomer base. To the extent that our competit@shble to offer more attractive technology,
ability to compete could be adversely affected. shsted above under “Business-CompetitioNAMA has announced a cashless ven
program for their members which the Company beleweuld offer the products and services of one orenof the Compang’ currer
competitors.
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The termination of any of our relationships with third parties upon whom we rely for supplies and serces that are critical to out
products could adversely affect our business and iy achievement of our business plan.

We depend on arrangements with third parties feargety of component parts used in our products.hake contracted with various suppl
to assist us to develop and manufacture our ePamw@ucts and with various suppliers to manufactureEnergy Mise® products. For oth:
components, we do not have supply contracts withadrour thirdparty suppliers and we purchase components as théexta time to time
We have contracted with DBSi to host our networl isecure, 24/7 environment to ensure the religlifi our network services. We also h
contracted with multiple land-based telecommundceti providers to ensure the reliability of our ldrabed network. If these busin
relationships are terminated, the implementatiomwf business plan may be delayed until an altemaupplier or service provider can
retained. If we are unable to find another sourcen that is comparable, the content and qualiyuo products could suffer and our busin
operating results and financial condition coulchbemed.

A disruption in the manufacturing capabilities of our third- party manufacturers, suppliers or distributors would negatively impact oul
ability to meet customer requirements.

We depend upon thirgarty manufacturers, suppliers and distributorddliver components free from defects, competitivéuinctionality an
cost, and in compliance with our specifications detivery schedules. Since we generally do not taainarge inventories of our products
components, any termination of, or significant djgron in, our manufacturing capability or our tedaship with our thirdearty manufacture
or suppliers may prevent us from filling custometters in a timely manner.

We have occasionally experienced, and may in theduexperience, delays in delivery of products delivery of products of inferior quali
from thirdparty manufacturers. Although alternate manufacsuesd suppliers are generally available to produgeproducts and prodi
components, the number of manufacturers or sugplérsome of our products and components is limiggtl a qualified replacem
manufacturer or supplier could take several monthsddition, our use of thirgarty manufacturers reduces our direct control g@reduc
quality, manufacturing timing, yields and costssiption of the manufacture or supply of our praduand components, or a thiparty
manufacturer’s or supplies’failure to remain competitive in functionalityyality or price, could delay or interrupt our afyilto manufacture
deliver our products to customers on a timely hagigch would have a material adverse effect ontginess and financial performance.

Our reliance on our wireless telecommunication seiige provider exposes us to a number of risks overhich we have no contro
including risks with respect to increased prices athtermination of essential services.

The operation of our wirelessly networked devicepahds upon the capacity, reliability and secuwitgervices provided to us by our wirel
telecommunication services provider, AT&T MobilittWVe have no control over the operation, qualityn@intenance of these service:
whether the vendor will improve its services or thaue to provide services that are essential to lmusiness. In addition, our wirels
telecommunication services provider may increasepiices at which it provides services, which woindrease our costs. If our wirel
telecommunication services provider were to ceagardvide essential services or to significantlgréase its prices, we could be require
find alternative vendors for these services. Withngted number of vendors, we could experienceni§icant delays in obtaining new
replacement services, which could lead to slowdoamgilures of our network. In addition, we mayvhato replace our existing eP@t
devices that are already installed in the markegldhis could significantly harm our reputatiordagould cause us to lose customers
revenues.

Our products may contain defects that may be diffialt or even impossible to correct, which could redtiin lost sales, additional cost
and customer erosion.

We offer technically complex products which, whastfintroduced or released in new versions, mayaia software or hardware defects
are difficult to detect and correct. The existen€elefects and delays in correcting them could Itéaunegative consequences, including
following:

° delays in shipping product

° cancellation of order:

° additional warranty expens

° delays in the collection of receivabli

° product returns

° the loss of market acceptance of our prodt
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° diversion of research and development resources frew product development; a
° inventory writeedowns.

Even though we test all of our products, defecty santinue to be identified after products are phih In past periods, we have experiel
various issues in connection with product launclmesuding the need to rework certain products atabilize product designs. Correct
defects can be a timmnsuming and difficult task. Software errors malget several months to correct, and hardware emaig take eve
longer.

We may accumulate excess or obsolete inventory thabuld result in unanticipated price reductions andwrite downs and adversel
affect our financial results.

Managing the proper inventory levels for componeants finished products is challenging. In formulgtiour product offerings, we he
focused our efforts on providing our customers puotsl with greater capability and functionality, waihirequires us to develop and incorpc
the most current technologies in our products. Bpisroach tends to increase the risk of obsolescmgroducts and components we hol
inventory and may compound the difficulties posgather factors that affect our inventory leveitgluding the following:

° the need to maintain significant inventory of comeuts that are in limited suppl
° buying components in bulk for the best prici

° responding to the unpredictable demand for prog

° responding to customer requests for short-time delivery schedule:

° failure of customers to take delivery of ordereddarcts; anc

° product returns

If we accumulate excess or obsolete inventory epredductions and inventory writlewns may result, which could adversely affect @sult:
of operation and financial condition.

We may not be able to adapt to changing technolog@nd our customers’ technology needs.

We face rapidly changing technology and frequent reervice offerings by competitors that can rendgisting services obsolete
unmarketable. Our future depends, in part, on bilityato enhance existing services and to developoduce and market, on a timely and
effective basis, new services that keep pace véthhriological developments and customer requireméseloping new products &
technologies is a complex, uncertain process reguinnovation and accurate anticipation of tecbgalal and market trends. When chang:
the product line are announced, we will be chakdehtp manage possible shortened life cycles fostieg products, continue to sell exist
products and prevent customers from returning iexjgproducts. Our inability to respond effectivaty any of these challenges may ha
material adverse effect on our business and fimhsoiccess.

Security is vital to our customers and therefore beaches in the security of transactions involving auproducts or services coult
adversely affect our reputation and results of opeations.

Protection against fraud is of key importance techasers and engasers of our products. We incorporate securityufes, such as encrypti
software and secure hardware, into our productgrédect against fraud in electronic payment tratisas and to ensure the privacy

integrity of consumer data. Our products may benexdble to breaches in security due to defectdiénsecurity mechanisms, the opere
system and applications or the hardware platforatu8ty vulnerabilities could jeopardize the seunf information transmitted or stor
using our products. In general, liability assodlatdth security breaches of a certified electrqréyment system belongs to the institution
acquires the financial transaction. In addition, lveve not experienced any material security bresaefffecting our business. However, if
security of the information in our products is caompised, our reputation and marketplace acceptahaeur products will be adverse
affected, which would adversely affect our resaofteperations, and subject us to potential liajilit our security applications are breached
sensitive data is lost or stolen, we could incgn#icant costs to not only assess and repair amyagdje to our systems, but also to reimk
customers for losses that occur from the fraudulesdg of the data. We may also be subject to fimes genalties from the credit ci
associations in the event of the loss of confidémtird information. Adverse publicity raising cengs about the safety or privacy of electr
transactions, or widely reported breaches of ouarmther provides security, have the potential to undermine conswoafidence in th
technology and could have a materially adverseceéfe our business.
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Our products and services may be vulnerable to sedty breach.

Credit card issuers have promulgated credit cacdritg guidelines as part of their ongoing effadsbattle identity theft and credit card fra
We continue to work with credit card issuers touasshat our products and services comply withéhedes. There can be no assurat
however, that our products and services are invabie to unauthorized access or hacking. When tkareauthorized access to credit card
that results in financial loss, there is the patdnibat parties could seek damages from us.

If we fail to adhere to the standards of the Visad MasterCard credit card associations, our registations with these associations cou
be terminated and we could be required to stop prading payment processing services for Visa and MastCard.

A large portion of all of the transactions we pregénvolve Visa or MasterCard. If we fail to complth the applicable requirements of
Visa and MasterCard credit card associations, WiddasterCard could suspend or terminate our negish with them. The termination of ¢
registration with them or any changes in the VisaMasterCard rules that would impair our registmtivith them could require us to s
providing payment processing services.

We rely on other card payment processors and sengcproviders; if they fail or no longer agree to preide their services, our merchar
relationships could be adversely affected and we alal lose business.

We rely on agreements with other large paymentgssiog organizations, primarily Elavon, Inc., t@lele us to provide card authorizati
data capture, settlement and merchant accountiricee and access to various reporting tools fer nierchants we serve. Many of tr
organizations and service providers are our corgrstand are subject to termination by them.

The termination by our service providers of thenaagements with us or their failure to performittservices efficiently and effectively m
adversely affect our relationships with the merd¢hamhose accounts we serve and may cause thoséanedo terminate their process
agreements with us.

We are subject to laws and regulations that affedhe products, services and markets in which we opate. Failure by us to comply witt
these laws or regulations would have an adverse ettt on our business, financial condition, or resust of operations.

We are, among other things, subject to bankinglatigns and credit card association regulationgufeato comply with these regulations n
result in the suspension or revocation of our essnthe limitation, suspension or termination erf/ige, and/or the imposition of fines t
could have an adverse effect on our financial diomi Additionally, changes to legal rules and Hagjons, or interpretation or enforcem
thereof, could have a negative financial effectisror our product offerings. The payment processidgstry may become subject to regula
as a result of recent data security breaches that Bxposed consumer data to potential fraud. @@xitent this occurs, we could be subje
additional technical, contractual or other requiesis as a condition of our continuing to conduat payment processing business. Tl
requirements could cause us to incur additionais¢eehich could be significant, or to lose reventethe extent we do not comply with th
requirements.

26




Table of Content
Risks Related to Our Common Stock

We do not expect to pay cash dividends in the foresable future and therefore investors should not ditipate cash dividends on thei
investment.

The holders of our common stock and series A cdibterpreferred stock are entitled to receive divids when, and if, declared by our bt
of directors. Our board of directors does not idtém pay cash dividends in the foreseeable futowe,instead intends to retain any anc
earnings to finance the growth of the businessddte, we have not paid any cash dividends on omntan stock or our series A converti
preferred stock and there can be no assuranceabhatdividends will ever be paid on our commonlistoc

In addition, our articles of incorporation prohiltite declaration of any dividends on our commorckstonless and until all unpaid &
accumulated dividends on the series A convertilblfepred stock have been declared and paid. Thréugjust 31, 2010, the unpaid ¢
cumulative dividends on the series A convertiblef@med stock are $9,968,194. Each share of séraesvertible preferred stock is converti
into 1/100t of a share of common stock at the option of theléwlThe unpaid and cumulative dividends on thiesek convertible preferrt
stock are convertible into shares of our commonkstd the rate of $1,000 per share at the opticgheholder. During the years ended Jun
2010 and 2009 no series A convertible preferredksto cumulative preferred dividends were conveitéo shares of common stock.

We may issue additional shares of our common stockyhich could depress the market price of our commorstock and dilute youl
ownership.

As of August 31, 2010, we had issued and outstgndjstions to purchase 160,000 shares of our comstmek and warrants to purch
13,804,418 shares of our common stock. The sham@arlying none of these options, and 11,205,154e&de warrants have been registerec
may be freely sold. Market sales of large amouhtsuo common stock, or the potential for those saeen if they do not actually occur, r
have the effect of depressing the market pricewsfammmon stock. In addition, if our future finangineeds require us to issue additi
shares of common stock or securities convertibtie @@mmon stock, the supply of common stock avédlédr resale could be increased wi
could stimulate trading activity and cause the raagkice of our common stock to drop, even if ousibess is doing well. Furthermore,
issuance of any additional shares of our commotksto securities convertible into our common stookild be substantially dilutive to hold
of our common stock if they do not invest in futoféerings.

Our stock price may be volatile.

The trading price of our common stock is expectede subject to significant fluctuations in respoms various factors including, but
limited to, the following:

° quarterly variations in operating results and aofreent of key business metri

° changes in earnings estimates by securities asalf/siny;

) any differences between reported results and ge=uanalys!’ published or unpublished expectatio

° announcements of new contracts, service offeringsahnological innovations by us or our compesit

° market reaction to any acquisitions, joint ventuestrategic investments announced by us or ompedtitors;

° demand for our services and produ

° shares being sold pursuant to Rule 144 or uporcisesof warrants

° regulatory matters

° concerns about our financial position, operatirguits, litigation, government regulation, developitseor disputes relating

agreements, patents or proprietary rig

° potential dilutive effects of future sales of st&aoé common stock by shareholders and by the Coympmamd subsequent s
of common stock by the holders of warrants andooyst;

° our ability to obtain working capital financing; &
° general economic or stock market conditions uneeléd our operating performant
The securities market in recent years has from tioméme experienced significant price and volurhetiiations that are unrelated to

operating performance of particular companies. &hasrket fluctuations, as well as general econanitditions, may also materially &
adversely affect the market price of our commoulsto

27






Table of Content
The substantial market overhang of our shares wiltend to depress the market price of our shares.

The substantial number of our shares currentlyidégior sale in the open market will tend to degsréhe market price of our shares. A
August 31, 2010, these shares consisted of thewoly:

° 25,909,108 shares of common st

° 444,468 shares of series A convertible preferredks

° 9,968 shares issuable upon conversion of the ad@me unpaid dividends on the series A converfibéderred stocl
° 11,205,154 shares underlying common stock war

° 19,247 shares issuable under our 2008 Stock InveeRtan

° 300,000 shares issuable under our 2010 Stock liweelan.

Director and officer liability is limited.

As permitted by Pennsylvania law, our by-laws lithi¢ liability of our directors for monetary damader breach of a directarfiduciary dut
except for liability in certain instances. As aukof our bylaw provisions and Pennsylvania law, shareholdesy have limited rights
recover against directors for breach of fiduciatgyd In addition, our byaws and indemnification agreements entered intdheyCompan
with each of the officers and directors providet tha shall indemnify our directors and officershe fullest extent permitted by law.

Our publicly-filed reports are reviewed by the SEC from time totime and any significant changes required as a reftuof any suct
review may result in material liability to us, andhave a material adverse impact on the trading pricef our common stock.

The reports of publiclyraded companies are subject to review by the S time to time for the purpose of assisting conigs ir
complying with applicable disclosure requirementsl & enhance the overall effectiveness of comgampieblic filings, and comprehensi
reviews of such reports are now required at leestyethree years under the Sarba@edey Act of 2002. SEC reviews may be initiatechny
time. While we believe that our previously filed SEeports comply, and we intend that all futureorép will comply in all material respe:
with the published SEC rules and regulations, wddcbe required to modify or reformulate informaticontained in prior filings as a resul
an SEC review. Any modification or reformulationinformation contained in such reports could beisigant and result in material liability
us and have a material adverse impact on the tyadioe of our common stock.

Our common stock may be delisted from The NASDAQ 8tk Market, which could negatively impact the priceof our common stock
and our ability to access the capital markets.

Our common stock is currently listed on The NASD&Mbal Market. A condition of continued listing dime NASDAQ Stock Market, LL
(“NASDAQ") is that the closing bid price of our common stocksinbe a least $1.00. On June 14, 2010, we rateavietter from Th
NASDAQ Stock Market Listing Qualifications Departmehat we no longer meet the requirement thadistecurities maintain a minimum
price of $1.00 per share set forth in NASDAQ LigtRule 5450(a)(1) (the “Minimum Bid Price Requirertig. We received the notification
deficiency pursuant to NASDAQ Listing Rule 58108)J@) because, for 30 consecutive business dayscammmon stock did not maintail
minimum closing bid price per share of at leas0$1.

The notification of non-compliance has no immedgffect on the listing or trading of our securitas The NASDAQ Global Market.

Under NASDAQ Listing Rule 5810(c)(3)(A), we may e#g compliance with the Minimum Bid Price Requirethd during the 180 calenc
days following the date of the notification, or Bgcember 13, 2010, the closing bid price of our icmm stock is at least $1.00 for a mininr
of 10 consecutive business days (subject to exderisi the NASDAQ Listing Qualifications Department)

If we do not achieve compliance with the MinimundBirice Requirement by December 13, 2010, NASDADmovide written notificatio
to us that our securities are subject to delistie may, at that time, appeal NASDAQUetermination to a NASDAQ Hearing Pa
Alternatively, if at that time we are in complianeéh all initial listing standards for The NASDAQapital Market other than the Minimum |
Price Requirement, we could apply to transfer thiéng of our securities to The NASDAQ Capital MatklIf our application to transfer
approved, we would have an additional 180 days¢min compliance with the Minimum Bid Price Reqmiemt in order to remain on T
NASDAQ Capital Market
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The delisting of our common stock from NASDAQ wosidnificantly negatively affect the ability of iestors to trade our securities and wi
significantly negatively affect the value and lidily of our common stock. In addition, the deligtiof our common stock could materic
adversely affect our ability to raise capital omie acceptable to us or at all. Delisting from NASDcould also have other negative res
including the potential loss of confidence by signsl and employees, the loss of institutional itmemterest and fewer business developt
opportunities.

| tem 2. Properties.

The Company conducts its operations from varioagities under operating leases. The Company lease®9 square feet of space locate
Malvern, Pennsylvania for its principal executiviia@ and used for general administrative functicsedes activities, and product developn
The lease term expires on December 31, 2010. Asreé 30, 2010, the Company’s rent payment forféuidity is $37,373 per month.

The Company also leases 13,377 square feet of slmmeged in Malvern, Pennsylvania for its produetrehousing, shipping and custol
support. The lease term expires December 31, 284 @f June 30, 2010, the Compasyent payment for this facility is $14,617 per rth
with escalating rental payments through the reneziod the lease.

| tem 3. Legal Proceedings.

The Company is not a party to any legal proceedings
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P ART Il
| tem 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Eitfy Securities.
The common stock of the Company has been tradinjhenNASDAQ Global Market under the symbol USATcarmugust 1, 2007. Pri
thereto, and since March 17, 2007, the common dtaded on The NASDAQ Capital Market. Prior thereb@ common stock of the Compi
was traded on the OTC Electronic Bulletin Boardemthe symbol USAT.

The high and low bid prices on The NASDAQ Capitahriket and The NASDAQ Global Market, as the case beyfor the common sto
were as follows.

Year ended June 30, 20 High Low
First Quarter (through September 30, 2C $ 301 $ 1.3F
Second Quarter (through December 31, 2! $ 182 $ 1.5C
Third Quarter (through March 31, 201 $ 317 $ 1.04
Fourth Quarter (through June 30, 20 $ 12¢ % 0.4¢
Year ended June 30, 20

First Quarter (through September 30, 2C $ 6.0C $ 2.9z
Second Quarter (through December 31, 2( $ 42C $ 0.9C
Third Quarter (through March 31, 20C $ 352 % 1.44
Fourth Quarter (through June 30, 20 $ 317 % 1.5¢€

On August 31, 2010 there were 634 record holdets@fCommon Stock and 395 record holders of theeResl Stock.

The holders of the Common Stock are entitled teikec such dividends as the Board of Directors ef @ompany may from time to tir
declare out of funds legally available for paymeitdividends. Through the date hereof, no cashddivils have been declared on
Companys Common Stock or Preferred Stock. No dividend tmaypaid on the Common Stock until all accumulated anpaid dividends «
the Preferred Stock have been paid. As of Augus2310, such accumulated unpaid dividends amount§8,968,194.

As of June 30, 2010, equity securities authorizedssuance by the Company with respect to compiensalans were as follows:

Number of
securities
Number of remaining
Securities to Weighted  available for
be issued average future
upon exercise pric issuance
exercises of of (excluding

outstanding outstanding securities
options and options and  reflected in

warrants warrants column(a))
Plan categor (a) (b) (c)
Equity compensation plans approved by securitydrs| — — 320,74°(3)
Equity compensation plans not approved by sechutglers 160,00(1) $ 7.52 140,00((2)
Total 160,00 $ 7.52 460,74

1) Represents stock options outstanding as of 30n@010 for the purchase of shares of Common Shbtke Company expiring at varic
times from April 2011 through June 2013. All sugitions were granted to employees and directoreefdompany. Exercise prices for all
options outstanding were at prices that were eiéyeral to or greater than the market price of then@anys Common Stock on the dates
options were granted. Shareholder approval of tgsens was not required because the options geneted prior to the Comparsyshare
being listed on The NASDAQ Stock Market LLC.

2) Represents shares of Common Stock issuableet@tmpanys Chief Executive Officer under the terms of hispesgment agreemel
Shareholder approval of the foregoing was not megubecause each of the foregoing was adoptedétimpany prior to the Compary’
shares being listed on The NASDAQ Stock Market LLC.

3) Represents 20,747 shares of Common Stock issuatler the Company’2008 Stock Incentive Plan as approved by shaterslol
February 28, 2008 and 300,000 shares of Commork &saable under the Compasy2010 Stock Incentive Plan as approved by shatet
on June 15, 2010 for use in compensating employdiesctors and consultants. The shares have begstared with the Securities ¢
Exchange Commission as an employee benefit plaardram S-8.
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As of August 31, 2010, shares of Common Stock veskfor future issuance were as follows:

160,000 shares issuable upon the exercise of sfutdns at exercise prices ranging from $7.50 tOG®er share

13,804,418 shares issuable upon the exercise omoonstock warrants at exercise prices ranging f#dni3 to $7.70 per sha
9,289,011 of which were exercisable as of AugustZI10 at prices ranging from $1.13 to $7.70 peresh3,015,407 will k
exercisable in January 2011 at $1.13 per sharel&@d,000 will be exercisable at $5.25 and $6spare when certain performa
hurdles are me

14,413 shares issuable upon the conversion ofamdstg Preferred Stock and cumulative PreferredkSdovidends:;

19,247 shares issuable under the 2008 Stock IveeRtan;

300,000 shares issuable under the 2010 Stock imedpian,;

140,000 shares issuable to Mr. Jensen under hikgment agreement upon the occurrence of a USAsEeion; anc

5,001,408 shares issuable to Lincoln Park Capital; pursuant to the Purchase Agreement dated JUlg@10.
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PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The following graph shows a comparison of thgelr cumulative total shareholder return for ounown stock with The NASDAQ Compos
Index and the S&P 500 Information Technology Infi@xsmall cap companies in the United States. Tiaplgassumes a $100 investmer

June 30, 2005 in our common stock and in the NASD@@mposite Index and the S&P 500 Information Tedbgyw Index, includin
reinvestment of dividends.

COMPARISON OF 5-YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN

Among USA Technologies, Inc., The NASDAQ Compotitgex and The S&P 500 Information Technology Index

$140

o
3120 ./.f \\
WHin =
=580
L"'$ ——UUSA Technologies,
= Inc
@ =— NASDAQ Composie
£360
® ¥ S&P 500 Information
E Technelogy Index
540
20
g-
Jun-05 Jun-06 Jun-07 Jun-08 Jun-08 Jun-10
Fiscal Year Ended
Total Return For Jun-05 Jun-06 Jun-07 Jun-08 Jun-09 Jun-10
USA Technologies, Inc. 100 | $ 56 77 43 21 4
NASDAQ Composite 100 105 126 112 89 103
S&P 500 Information Technology
Index 100 100 124 115 92 106

The information in the performance graph is notndeg to be “soliciting material” or to be “filedivith the Securities and Exchat
Commission or subject to Regulation 14A or 14C uritle Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amenaieth the liabilities of Section 18
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amendeatiwdlhnot be deemed to be incorporated by refeeeinto any filing under the Securit
Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchaeof 1934, as amended, except to the extent weaspecifically incorporate it |
reference into such a filing. The stock price parfance included in this graph is not necessarifyciattive of future stock price performance.
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Purchases of Equity Securities
(c) Issuer purchases of Equity Securities durirggQuarter ended June 30, 2010

The following table provides information relating the Company purchases of its Series A Convertible PreferredkSduring the quart
ended June 30, 2010:

Total numbe  Approximate

of shares dollar value
purchased as of shares that

part of yet may be
publicly purchased

announced under the

Total numbe  Average pric plans or plans or
Period of shares (1  paid per shat programs programs (2
April 1 through April 30, 2010: Series A ConvertlPreferred Stoc 1,80C $ 8.5(C 1,80C $ 224,22:
May 1 through May 31, 2010: Series A ConvertiblefEred Stocl 556 $ 8.4¢ 556 $ 177,22
June 1 through June 30, 2010: Series A Converfilbdéerred Stock 17,78: $ 8.7¢ 17,78: $
Total, Preferre( 25,147 % 8.6¢ 25,147 %

(1) The Board of Directors authorized the purchiagdhe Company in the open market of up to $1,00,6f Common Stock or Series
Preferred Stock through June 30, 2010. All purchagdeCommon Stock must be in compliance with theuBBes and Exchange Commissien’
Rule 10b-18.

(2) Reflects dollar amount available for purchakeither Common Stock and/or Preferred Stock umideplan as of June 30, 2010, exclu
fees.
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| tem 6. Selected Financial Data.

The following selected financial data for the fiyears ended June 30, 2010 are derived from theeauidonsolidated financial statement
USA Technologies, Inc. The data should be readomjunction with the consolidated financial statetsemelated notes, and other finan
information.

Year ended June :

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

OPERATIONS DATA

Revenue:! $ 15,771,10 $ 12,020,12 $ 16,10354 $ 9,158,01. $ 6,414,80:
Net loss (11,571,49)  (13,731,81)  (16,417,89) (17,782,45)  (14,847,07)
Cumulative preferred dividenc (735,139 (772,99 (780,581) (781,45)) (783,289
Loss applicable to common shares $ (12,306,63)  (14,504,81) $ (17,198,48) $ (18,563,90) $ (15,630,36)
Loss per common share (basic and dilu $ (0.55) $ 0.95) % 1.2 $ (2.19) $ (3.1%)
Cash dividends per common sh $ — 3 — 3 — 3 — 3 —
BALANCE SHEET DATA

Total asset $ 29,848,42 $ 25,980,37 $ 40,055,655 $ 34,491,49 $ 23,419,46
Long-term debt $ 596,15 $ 820,05¢ $ 967,51¢ $ 1,029,74 $ 7,780,85:

Shareholdel equity $ 22,812,127 $ 19,972,27 $ 32,576,54 $ 28,084,20 $ 11,177,06
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| tem 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of kancial Condition and Results of Operations

USA Technologies, Inc. provides wireless networkiogshless transactions, asset monitoring and ymeamagement products and servi
The Company markets and sells its products andcssrprincipally to the vending, hospitality, rétand laundry industries. Our technolc
ePort® and ePort SDK™, can be installed and/or embeddedeveryday devices such as vending machines, &iastl copiers, as well as
eSuds™ technology for washer and dryers. Our assatinetwork service, ePort Conn&ct, provides wireless connectivity that facilite
cashless transaction processing and remote mangtofi assets, through the collection of financ&##s and machine diagnostic data, whit
made accessible to our customers via our USARveebsite. In addition, the Company provides energgnagement products, such a:
VendingMiser® and CoolerMiser™, which reduce energy consumptiorending machines and coolers.

The Company generates revenue in multiple ways.Qdmapany generates revenue through the sale opreguit and/or through the licens
of its technology. In addition, we generate reagnievenues through our associated servicesChnepany charges a monthly network ser
fee for each device that is connected to the Cogipanetwork. In addition, we charge a transactioncessing fee for every cashl
transaction we process. Since our energy managemeaiiicts are a stand-alone, nwetworked device, we only generate revenue thrdle
sale of equipment.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
GENERAL

The preparation of consolidated financial statemémtconformity with accounting principles geneyadiccepted in the United States reqt
management to make estimates and assumptiondfibettthe amounts reported in the financial stateimi@nd the accompanying notes. Ac
results could differ from those estimates. We helithe policies and estimates related to revenaegretion, software development co
impairment of londived assets, goodwill and intangible assets, andstments represent our critical accounting pedieind estimates. Fut
results may differ from our estimates under différ@ssumptions or conditions.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue from the sale of equipment is recognizetherterms of freight-ofvoard shipping point, or upon installation and ataece of th
equipment if installation services are purchasedHte related equipment. Activation fee revenueetognized when the Compasytashles
payment device is initially activated for use ore tBompany network. Transaction processing revesuedognized upon the usage of
Company’s cashless payment and control networlerise fees for access to the Compamgvices and network services are recognizec
monthly basis. In all cases, revenue is only rezmghwhen persuasive evidence of an arrangemestsexielivery has occurred or serv
have been rendered, the price is fixed and detafsiénand collection of the resulting receivables@sonably assured. The Company estir
an allowance for product returns at the date &f.sal

IMPAIRMENT OF LONG LIVED ASSETS

In accordance with ASC 360 "Impairment or Dispasalong-lived Assets”, the Company reviews its ldivgd assets whenever event:
changes in circumstances indicate that the cargingunt of such assets may not be recoverablee Ifarrying amount of an asset or grou
assets exceeds its net realizable value, the wiisbe written down to its fair value. In the ped when the plan of sale criteria of ASC 36(
met, longlived assets are reported as held for sale, degti@eiand amortization cease, and the assets poeted at the lower of carrying va
or fair value less costs to sell.

GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill represents the excess of cost over faluesaf the net assets purchased in acquisitions. Company accounts for goodwill
accordance with ASC 350, “Intangibles — Goodwiltlather”.Under ASC 350, goodwill is not amortized to earsinigut instead is subject
periodic testing for impairment. The Company tegt®dwill for impairment using a twstep process. The first step screens for pot
impairment, while the second step measures the minudumpairment. The Company uses a discountel flae analysis to complete the fi
step in this proces8Ve also give consideration to our market capitéilira During 2009 and 2010, we experienced a dediinour marke
capitalization due to a decline in our stock priés. of June 30, 2010, our market capitalization Jess than our book value and a
September 17, 2010 it was slightly higher than bealke. We believe the decline in our stock prias,hin part, been influenced by the cur
national credit crises and national economic réoas3Ve believe that it is appropriate to view therrent credit crisis and recessior
relatively temporary in relation to reporting unitet have demonstrated lotiged / enduring franchise value. Accordingly, welibve that
variance between market capitalization and faiugatan exist and that difference could be significa& points in time due to interven
macroeconomic influence$esting for impairment is to be done at least atipaad at other times if events or circumstanagseahat indical
that impairment may have occurred. The Companysk&scted April 1 as its annual test date. The Comeas concluded there has bee
impairment of goodwill as a result of its testing April 1, 2010, April 1, 2009 and April 1, 2008.

Patents, trademarks and the non-compete agreeneetdried at cost less accumulated amortizatidwictwis calculated on a straiglie basi:
over their estimated economic life. The Companyews intangibles for impairment whenever eventst@nges in circumstances indicate
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Antasseonsidered to be impaired when the sum ofuthéiscounted future net cash flc
resulting from the use of the asset and its evémtisposition is less than its carrying amount. Hmeount of the impairment loss, if any
measured as the difference between the net book wdlthe asset and its estimated fair value. Atuok 30, 2010 and 2009, the Compan
concluded there has been no impairment of paterttademarks. As of June 30, 2009 the-compete agreement is fully amortized; and t



was no impairment of the non-compete agreement &sne 30, 2008.
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Intangible assets include patents, trademarks andcompete arrangements purchased in acquisitions.ridgation expense related to th
intangible assets was $1,034,400, $1,040,379, &r286,600, during the years ended June 30, 2019, 20d 2008, respectively.

INVESTMENTS

The Company accounts for investments in accordaiitteASC 320, "Investments - Debt and Equity Se@s!. Management determines

appropriate classifications of securities at theetof purchase and reevaluates such designatiohemsh balance sheet date. Availabledale
securities are carried at fair value, with the alired gains and losses reported as a separateocemipof shareholdergquity in accumulate
other comprehensive income (loss). If the investrsestains an other-thaamporary decline in fair value, the investmenwigiten down to it
fair value by a charge to earnings.

As of June 30, 2010 and June 30, 2009, availabledle securities consisted of $0, par value oftiancrate securities (“ARS”)The
Company’s ARS consisted of long-term variable isgeurities whose dividend rates were reset evargnsdays through a “dutch auction”
conducted by investment banks. Our ARS were all AdxMaa rated, and represented preferred stoclosédend investment firms. Our AF
had no fixed maturity dates.

During the year ended June 30, 2009, the ARS brd&aler purchased the remaining $6,875,000 of tragainys ARS at par. As such, th
were no unrealized losses recorded in the yeardehaige 30, 2009 in connection with these investment
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 COMPARED TO FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Revenues for the year ended June 30, 2010 wer@BlL806 compared to $12,020,123 for the year edded 30, 2009. This $3,750,98:
31% increase was primarily due to an increasecenie and transaction fees of $3,444,994, andcasaise in equipment sales of $305,989.
increase in license and transaction fees was pitintare to the increase in the number of eRunits on our USALive® network as well ¢
increased revenue on those connected units. Aaref 30, 2010, the Company had approximately 82¢di§i@ibuted assets connected to
USALive® network generating license fee revenue as comparagproximately 52,000 distributed assets connettteour USALive netwot
as of June 30, 2009. In regards to transaction fhasng the year ended June 30, 2010, the Compergessed approximately 36.9 mill
transactions totaling approximately $67.6 millioompared to approximately 22.4 million transactitoisling over $47.1 million during tl
year ended June 30, 2009, an increase of appradyr&i% in transaction volume and approximately 4d%ollars processe:

The $305,989 increase in equipment sales was defiigen increases in sales of eP@rand Energy Miser products of $488,545 and $234
respectively, offset by decreases in business cantkother equipment sales of $359,339 and $58r&6pectively.

Cost of sales for the 2010 fiscal year consistece@ipment costs of $4,049,428d network and transaction services related oof
$6,861,642 . The increase in total cost of salebl9740,469 or 19%ver the prior fiscal year was due to increaseaseifwork and transacti
services of $2,181,555 offset by a decrease inpagemt costs of $441,086The increase in network and transaction sendgosss was direct
related to increases in units connected to the or&twprocessing volume, as well as increases itsdosm third party transaction suppliers
the first six months of the 2010 fiscal year. Tleer@ase in equipment costs was due to a decreagp@ximately $331,000 in equipment ¢
related to lower equipment sales volume, and aedser of approximately $110,000 related to our edérfor product warranty liabilities.

Gross profit for the year ended June 30, 2010 wia®68,031 compared to gross profit of $2,849,51%He previous fiscal yearan increase
$2,010,514, of which $747,075 is attributable toipment sales and $1,263,439 from license anddddion fees. The increase in equipn
sales gross profit of approximately $750,000 waesallt of an approximate $640,000 increase in gpost on higher equipment sales |
approximately $110,000 related to a reduction indpct warranty liabilities. The approximate $1.28lion increase in gross profit related
license and transaction fee revenue was generateatidiitional devices connected to our network, eiffisy increased transaction supg
charges incurred during the first six months of B840 fiscal year. The reduction in supplier casssociated with a recently negotic
amendment to a supplier contract took effect inddalwer 2009. Therefore, the full impact of the neagoatiated agreement was not real
until the second half of the 2010 fiscal year. Batage based total gross profit (“GRigreased overall from 24% to 31%, equipment sGlE
increased from 27% to 37%, and license and traiosafees GP increased from 20% to 26%. Considetiegreduction for product warrai
liabilities and for comparability purposes, GP wbbhkve been as follows for the year ended Jun2@@ had the change not been madetat
GP would have increased to 30%, equipment salew@G® have increased to 36%, and license and tcéingafees GP would have remai
at 24% as it was not affected by the reduction.

Selling, general and administrative expense of 833685, decreased by $298,162 or 2féimarily due to a decrease in compensatior
benefit expenses of approximately $1,042,000 awdedses in other professional services of appraeim&635,000, travel and entertainn
of approximately $137,000 and product developmérapproximately $186,000, offset by an increase@riofessional services related to
proxy contest and related litigation of approxintatl, 579,000 (net of insurance carrier contriboiticOf the approximate $1,579,000 in pr
contest and litigation costs (net of insuranceieaontribution), approximately $710,000 (net n§urance carrier contribution) was for
legal settlement, approximately $200,000 (net eftirance carrier contribution) was for legal experafethe Company related to the litigati
and approximately $669,000 was for proxy contestSelling, general and administrative expenstuding the proxy contest and litigat
costs was $13,306,685 a decrease of $1,877,162%ras compared to the prior fiscal year, primadie to cost reduction measures take
the Company during the third quarter of fiscal 2009

Compensation expense decreased by approximatéldZ000 primarily due to a decrease of approxinge#@|486,000 in salaries and bent
as well as an increase of $419,000 in non-caslyebaelated to the LTIP Program.

The year ended June 30, 2010 resulted in a nebfdd¥1,571,495 (including approximately $2 milliohnon<cash charges) compared to a

loss of $13,731,818 (including approximately $2.@liom of non-cash charges) for the year ended RBMe2009.Net loss for the 2010 fisc
year was the lowest fiscal year net loss sinceshares become listed on The NASDAQ Stock Mark&ianch 2007
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FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 COMPARED TO FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Revenues for the year ended June 30, 2009 wer@®21,223 compared to $16,103,546 for the year edded 30, 2008. This $4,083,42:
25% decrease was primarily due to a decrease iipragat sales of $6,226,853, offset by an increasécense and transaction fees
$2,143,430. The decrease in equipment sales wasodaielecrease in sales of approximately $4,924dGfPort® vending equipment al
approximately $1,250,000 in energy conservatioripggant, as well as a net decrease in other equipsses of approximately $53,000.
decrease in ePoR vending equipment sales was primarily related deerease in capital spending by some of our custthee to the curre
economic slowdown, as well as key customers avgpttie availability of the ePo® G8 and ePort Edge™ products. The eRofE8 produc
was available for sale to our customers at thecdritle third quarter of fiscal 2009, and the efEige™ product was available for sale to
customers during the fourth quarter of fiscal 200% increase in license and transaction fees wamply due to the increase in the numbe
ePort® units on our USALive® network.

In regards to license fees, as of June 30, 20@9Ctmpany had approximately 52,000 distributedtassmnected to our USALive®etwork
as compared to approximately 38,000 distributedtasonnected to our USALive network as of June2B08.

In regards to transaction fees, during the yeaeérddine 30, 2009, the Company processed approiyn22td million transactions totaling oy
$47.1 million compared to approximately 11.3 millikansactions totaling over $34.4 million duritg tyear ended June 30, 2008, an inci
of approximately 98% in transaction volume and agpnately 37% in dollars processed.

Cost of sales for the 2009 fiscal year consisteceqiipment costs of $4,490,519 and network andsaetion services related costs
$4,680,087. The decrease in total cost of sale®3(514,086 or 28% over the prior fiscal year wae tlua decrease in equipment cos
$5,212,955 and an increase in network and trammsastrvices related costs of $1,698,869.

Gross profit for the year ended June 30, 2009 2a849,517 compared to gross profit of $3,418,854He previous fiscal year. The decre
was primarily the result of a reduction in equipmsales. During the same periods, percentage lzassd profit increased to 24% from 2:
this increase is primarily due to an increase ia piofit margin of ePor® vending equipment sales as a result of lower prilolucost
primarily due to offshore production.

Selling, general and administrative expense of %847, decreased by $3,459,369 or 19% primalily th decreases in compense
expenses of approximately $3,067,000, recruitirgs fef approximately $349,000, trade show expenkapproximately $197,000, travel ¢
entertainment expenses of approximately $195,000,bead debt expense of approximately $155,000ebfig increases in professional

consulting services of approximately $282,000 aratipct development costs of approximately $183,00@ overall decrease was due to
reduction measures taken by the Company duringhihé and fourth quarters of fiscal year 2008 amulirty the third quarter of fiscal ye
2009. The increase in product development costscandulting services is directly attributable te ttosts related to the development of
new ePort® G-8 and ePort Edge™ products.

Compensation expense decreased by approximated@ 800 primarily due to a decrease of approxirga$dl,855,000 in nowash charge
related to the LTIP Program (See Note 10 of thesBlidated Financial Statements), as well as a #10PD decrease in compensation
benefits expense.

The year ended June 30, 2009 resulted in a nebfo$$3,731,818 (including approximately $2.6 roifliof honeash charges) compared !
net loss of $16,417,893 (including approximately2d®illion of non-cash charges) for the year endienke 30, 2008.

38




Table of Content

FISCAL QUARTER ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 COMPARED TO FISCAL QUARTER ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Revenues for the quarter ended June 30, 2010 wWie4d %106 compared to $3,646,083 for the quartde@dune 30, 2009. This $833,02
23% increase was primarily due to an increasecenie and transaction fees of $1,274,781, offsatdscrease in equipment sales of $441
The increase in license and transaction fees wasly due to the increase in the number of eRounits on our USALive® network as we
as increased revenue on those connected unitsf Ame 30, 2010, the Company had approximatelyO82¢lstributed assets connected to
USALive® network generating license fee revenue as comparagproximately 52,000 distributed assets connettteour USALive netwot
as of June 30, 2009. In regards to transaction thetng the quarter ended June 30, 2010, the Coynpeocessed approximately 11.7 mill
transactions totaling approximately $20.8 millioompared to approximately 6.7 million transactiootaling over $13.5 million during tl
quarter ended June 30, 2009, an increase of appadelly 73% in transaction volume and approximabdi¥ in dollars processed.

The $441,758 decrease in equipment sales was & oésudecrease of approximately $650,000 in safesPort® , offset by an increase
sales of Energy Miser products of $180,000. Theesese in ePort® sales is due mainly to a signifiganmtion of the ePort@inits shippe
during the quarter ended June 30, 2010 were shippddr the Jump Start Program, for which the Companords a onéme activation fet
but does not record an equipment sale. The JuntpStagram did not exist during the quarter endeeJ80, 2009, therefore the Comp
recorded an equipment sale for all ePort® unitpmdd during the quarter ended June 30, 2009.

Cost of sales consisted of equipment costs of $820and $1,550,990 and network and transactioricesrvelated costs of $2,033,420
$1,405,298 for the guarters ended June 30, 201@@d@, respectively. The decrease in total cosatds of $2,101 over the prior fiscal que
was due to a decrease in equipment costs of $630¢#&et by an increase in network and transactienvices of $628,122. The decreas
equipment costs was a direct result of shippingemmits under the Jump Start Program. The costgiassd with the Jump Start units w
recorded to Property and Equipment on the CondelitiBalance Sheet. The Jump Start Program didxisttguring the quarter ended June
2009. The increase in network and transaction sesvtosts was directly related to increases irs waitinected to the network and increas
processing volume, offset by decreases in thirdypsupplier costs due to an amendment to a conwhath occurred in the quarter en
December 31, 2009.

Gross profit for the quarter ended June 30, 2019 $1a524,919 compared to gross profit of $689, 1®éHe same quarter in the previous fi
year, an increase of $835,122, of which $646,658ttisbutable to license and transaction fees al®8B#64 is from equipment sales.
increase in gross profit related to license andstation fee revenue was generated by additiondtet® connected to our network an
decrease in third party supplier costs related tegotiated amendment to a contract, which tookcefin December 2009. Percentage b
total gross profit (“GP”)jncreased overall from 19% to 34%, equipment s@lBsincreased from 22% to 41%, and license anddcdios fee
GP increased from 15% to 31%.

Selling, general and administrative expense of &3303, increased by $49,034 or 2%, primarily duart increase in compensation expe
of approximately $115,000 and other net increa$@pproximately $56,000 offset by a decrease irsaliimg and other professional service
approximately $122,000.

Compensation expense increased by approximately,#2Q primarily due to a on@me charge of approximately $200,000 related tesmnc:
payments offset by decreases of approximately $89i® salaries, commissions and benefits as wedl dscrease of approximately $26,00
non-cash charges related to the LTIP Program.

The quarter ended June 30, 2010 resulted in eorstdf $2,089,801 compared to a net loss of $238X8or the quarter ended June 30, 2

Net loss for the June 30, 2010 fiscal quarter masidwest quarterly net loss since our shares bedsted on The NASDAQ Stock Market
March 2007.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

For the year ended June 30, 2010, net cash of 414232 was used by operating activities, primadile to the net loss of $11,571,495 ol
by non€ash charges totaling $1,972,893, representingeabtng and issuance of common stock for emplopeepensation, bad debt recow
loss on disposal of equipment and the depreciadioth amortization of assets. In addition to these-cash charges, the Compasiyie
operating assets increased by $2,748,580 primduéy/ to increases in accounts and finance receiwahtel inventory, offset by increase
accrued expenses and accounts payable and a deitrgmepaid expenses and other assets.

The Company received cash of $13,724,079 in fimanartivities during the year ended June 30, 2Q#9td cash proceeds from the issua
of common stock under the 2009 subscription rigtitsring of $12,958,159 and under the 2010 pubffering of $1,974,014 and procet
from longterm debt of $7,500. These inflows of cash weffsedfby debt repayments of $607,462 and the puecirashe open market
$598,464 of preferred stock which was subsequerathceled and retired, and the cancellation of Com@tock which had been held by
executive officer in order to satisfy payroll withiding tax obligations of the officer in connectiasith shares of Common Stock which ve:
during January 2009.

The Company has incurred losses since inception.a@eumulated deficit through June 30, 2010 is aused of cumulative losses amoun
to approximately $187,500,000, preferred dividendaverted to common stock of approximately $2,680,Gand charges incurred for
openmarket purchases of preferred stock of approxime&b0,000. The Company has continued to raisaalaprough equity offerings
fund operations.

As of June 30, 2010 the Company had $7,604,324sif and cash equivalents on hand.

During the 2011 fiscal year, the Company anticipaeurring capital expenditures of approximatedy890,000 in connection with ePort u
expected to be used in the JumpStart Program atiticawil capital expenditures of $790,000 for otfieed assets.

The Company has stated goals to achieve at le®00® connections by December 31, 2010 and pos#araings before interest, tay
depreciation and amortization (EBITDA, a nG#&AP financial measure) for the quarter then endiigAugust 31, 2010 the Company |
approximately 86,000 connections on its network. &pect to achieve the additional connections retédeachieve our goal of 100,C
connections mainly via our Jump Start program. Ehghp Start connection has a dimee activation fee due the Company upon shipmé
the device, a monthly recurring fee and transaatiéees from the cashless activity generated byutiie During the last six months of fis
year 2010 (January 1, 2010 through June 30, 20#0)Cobmpany added approximately 19,000 ePort coilmmactof which, approximate
14,000 were from the Jump Start program. For thertquended June 30, 2010, the Company had an EBI®8Es of $1,603,027 as detai
below.

Reconciliation of quarterly net loss to EBITDA fitie quarter ended June 30, 2010:

Net loss $ (2,089,80)
Less interest incom (48,28))
Plus interest expen: 12,18¢

Plus income tax expen -

Plus depreciation expen 264,27:
Plus amortization expen: 258,60(
EBITDA $ (1,603,02)

As a result of the connections added during the pas months, recurring revenue from license arahdaction fees increased fi
approximately $2,074,000 for the three months eridedember 31, 2009 to approximately $2,930,000tHerthree months ended June
2010, an increase of 41%. In addition, total gredit has increased since introducing the Jumpt $t@gram -total gross profit for the thr
months ended December 31, 2009 of approximatel§0®1000 increased to approximately $1,525,000 Herthree months ended June
2010, an increase of 51%.

Our average monthly cadlased selling, general and administrative (SG&Apemses during the quarter ended June 30, 2010
approximately $1,100,000. This included approxinya®200,000 of nonrecurring charges related to mewe®e payments. Excluding th
charges, our average monthly cdmlsed SG&A expenses were $1,033,000. The Compasbéen engaged in planned reductions ¢
monthly casthased SG&A expenses. The Company began to redese tosts in June 2010, and will continue to redluese costs throughe
the quarter ending September 30, 2010. The costtieds consist mainly of the termination of corisigl contracts due to the completior
certain development projects, reduction in empldyeadcount and associated benefits and reductioother professional fees. We expe:
the conclusion of these reductions our chaked SG&A expenses to be slightly under $800,800,the full impact of these reductions sh
be realized beginning inOctober 2010.

We expect revenues from license and transactios, f&e well as gross profit, to continue to increaseéhe Compars connections to i



network grow. We believe these increases, coupididtive anticipated reductions in SG&A expensesiesd above, will allow the Compa
to achieve positive EBITDA for the quarter endingdember 31, 2010.

Based on the above, the Company believes its rgisish and cash equivalents as of June 30, 20d0ldsprovide sufficient funds to meet
Company’s cash requirements, including capitaltfier Jump Start Program, capital expenditures apayraent of longerm debt, through
least July 1, 2011.

On July 27, 2010, the Company signed a purchasseagmt with Lincoln Park Capital Fund, LLC (“LincoPark”).Pursuant to the purchz
agreement, and subject to the conditions set filithein, we have the right to sell to Lincoln Paakd Lincoln Park has the obligatior
purchase from us, up to 4,851,408 shares of constamk over a 25 month period with an aggregatehase price not to exceed $5 milli
We are not required to sell any shares to LincarkPand we will control the timing and amount ofyasales of shares to Lincoln Park.
purchase agreement may be terminated by us atimeyat our discretion without any cost to us. Th& ©f any shares to Lincoln Parl
subject to our registering the shares under ther8ies Act of 1933. In August 2010, we filed a istgation statement covering the shares
the Securities and Exchange Commission and antecifat the registration statement will becomeatife during the second quarter of
fiscal year.
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Based on the Comparsybperating plan described above, we do not aatieipelling any shares to Lincoln Park under thetmse agreeme
at this time, if ever.

In the event actual results do not materialize escdbed above, the Company believes its existagl @and cash equivalents as of Jun
2010, as well as the net proceeds available frarithcoln Park agreement, and the Comparafility to continue to reduce expenses, st
result in sufficient available funds to meet thar@any’s cash requirements, including capital for the J@8tgst Program, capital expenditt
and repayment of long-term debt, through at leaigt 1, 2011.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

As of June 30, 2010, the Company had certain cottahobligations due over a period of time as samired in the following table:

Payments due by perioc

Less Than More than
Contractual Obligations Total 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5 years

Long-Term Debt Obligation $ 344,98: $ 162,84( $ 157,84( $ 24,30: $ —
Capital Lease Obligatior 302,86« 216,38 85,80: 677 —
Operating Lease Obligatiol 95,82 91,06¢ 4,76( — —
Purchase Obligatior — — — — —
Other Long-Term Liabilities Reflected on the

Registrant’s Balance Sheet under GAAP — — — — —
Total $ 743,67. $ 470,28t $ 248,400 $ 2498, $ —

I tem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative DisclosuresAbout Market Risk

The Company’s exposure to market risks for interatst changes is not significant. Interest rateglongterm debt are generally fixed anc
investments in cash equivalents are not significRegarding the Company’s exposure to market niskged to Available-fosale securitie
see “Investmentsin Item 7 above. Market risks related to fluctuatioof foreign currencies are not significant and @ompany has |
derivative instruments.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingdrirm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders
USA Technologies, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of USA Technologies, land subsidiaries as of June 30, 2010 and 200
the related consolidated statements of operatgirareholders' equity, and cash flows for each eftlinee years in the period ended Jun
2010. Our audits also included the financial steget schedule of USA Technologies, Inc. listedtéml 15(a). These financial statements
financial statement schedule are the responsilgfithhe Company's management. Our responsibgitp iexpress an opinion on these finai
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighaBigUnited States). Those stand
require that we plan and perform the audit to obt@asonable assurance about whether the finastaééments are free of mate
misstatement. An audit includes examining, onsi lasis, evidence supporting the amounts andodis@s in the financial statements.
audit also includes assessing the accounting piegiused and significant estimates made by marnagerms well as evaluating the ove
financial statement presentation. We believe thataudits provide a reasonable basis for our opini

In our opinion, the consolidated financial stateteerferred to above presents fairly, in all materéespects, the financial position ISA
Technologies, Incand subsidiaries as of June 30, 2010 and 2009thentesults of their operations and their cash $léar each of the thr
years in the period ended June 30, 2010, in confprwith U.S. generally accepted accounting prifesp Also, in our opinion, the relai
financial statement schedule when considered gtiogl to the basic consolidated financial statesiésiten as a whole, presents fairly ir
material respects the information set forth therein

We were not engaged to examine management’s asseissinthe effectiveness of USA Technologies, kdinternal control over financ
reporting as of June 30, 2010, included in the ag@nying managemest'annual report on internal control over finangigborting anc
accordingly, we do not express an opinion thereon.

/sl McGladrey & Pullen, LLF

New York, NY
September 21, 2010
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USA Technologies, Inc.
C onsolidated Balance Sheets

June 3(
2010 2009

Assets
Current assett
Cash and cash equivale $ 7,604,32. $ 6,748,26.
Accounts receivable, less allowance for uncolléetdzcounts of $41,000 and $42,000, respecti 2,048,42. 1,468,05:
Finance receivable 242,45 212,92¢
Inventory 2,633,97. 1,671,221
Prepaid expenses and other current a 847,34« 1,078,021
Total current asse 13,376,51 11,178,49
Finance receivables, less current por 339,34: 121,62
Property and equipment, r 4,511,88! 2,081,90!
Intangibles, ne 3,810,65. 4,845,05:
Goodwill 7,663,20: 7,663,20!
Other asset 146,82: 90,09(
Total asset $ 29,848,422 $ 25,980,37
Liabilities and shareholde’ equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl $ 4,570,731 $ 3,794,69
Accrued expense 1,869,36' 1,393,35!
Current obligations under long-term debt 344,65: 494,85(
Total current liabilities 6,784,74 5,682,89
Long-term debt, less current portir 251,50: 325,20¢
Total liabilities 7,036,25. 6,008,10!
Commitments and contingencies (Note
Shareholder equity:
Preferred stock, no par valt
Authorized share- 1,800,000 Series A convertible prefel- Authorized share- 900,000 Issued ar

outstanding shares- 444,468 and 510,270, respéctiiquidation preference of $14,079,523 and

$15,451,307, respectivel 3,148,671 3,614,55.
Common stock, no par value: Authorized sh- 640,000,000 Issued and outstanding sl- 25,497,155 an

15,423,022, respective 209,958,55 194,948,69
Accumulated defici (190,295,05) (178,590,97)
Total shareholders’ equity 22,812,17 19,972,27
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 29,848,42 $ 25,980,37

See accompanying notes.
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USA Technologies, Inc.
C onsolidated Statements of Operations

Year ended June @

2010 2009 2008
Revenues
Equipment sale $ 6,464,000 $ 6,158,01° $ 12,384,87
License and transaction fees 9,307,10! 5,862,101 3,718,67!
Total revenue 15,771,10 12,020,12 16,103,54
Cost of equipmer 4,049,43. 4,490,51! 9,703,47.
Cost of services 6,861,64. 4,680,08 2,981,21
Gross profil 4,860,03. 2,849,51 3,418,85.
Operating expense
Selling, general and administrati 14,885,68 15,183,84 18,643,21
Depreciation and amortization 1,570,04. 1,583,42 1,923,49.
Total operating expenses 16,455,72 16,767,27 20,566,70
Operating los: (11,595,69) (13,917,75) (17,147,85)
Other income (expense
Interest incomt 85,14 282,93( 877,15¢
Interest expense (60,947) (96,997) (147,200
Total other income, net 24,20: 185,93t 729,95¢
Net loss (11,571,49)  (13,731,81)  (16,417,89)
Cumulative preferred dividends (735,139 (772,99) (780,589
Loss applicable to common sha $ (12,306,63) $ (14,504,81) $ (17,198,48)
Loss per common share (basic and diluted) $ (0.55) $ (0.95 $ (1.27)
Weighted average number of common shares outsigufid@asic and dilutec 22,370,06 15,263,78 14,158,29

See accompanying notes.
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Balance, June 30, 20!

Issuance of 886,908 shares of common stock to eredited investor at
varying prices per share, less issuance costs,d18
Issuance of 2,142,871 shares of common stock sxaredited investor a

$7.00 per share, less issuance costs of $1,01

Exercise of 58,543 warrants at $6.40 per shardtmegun the issuance ¢

58,543 shares of Common Stc

Retirement of 650 shares of common st

Issuance of 31,500 fully-vested shares of commaocksib employees an

USA Technologies, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity

vesting of restricted shares granted under the -2087ock

Compensation Pla

Reclassification of charges from Long-Term Equitgdntive Program fo

Fiscal Year 2007 to a shi-based liability until settlemel
Issuance of 225,249 net shares of common stocettiement of the
Long-Term Equity Incentive Program liability for Fiscéear 2007

Charges incurred in connection with stock opti

Net loss

Balance, June 30, 20!

See accompanying notes.
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Series A
Convertible
Preferred Common Accumulatec
Stock Stock Deficit Total
$ 3,686,21 $172,822,86 $(148,424,88) $ 28,084,20
— 5,671,84 — 5,671,84
— 13,987,50 — 13,987,50
— 374,67! — 374,67:
— (7,13¢) — (7,13¢)
— 221,95: — 221,95;
— (599,31) — (599,31)
— 1,189,22; — 1,189,22;
— 71,48¢ — 71,48¢
— — (16,417,89) (16,417,89)
$ 3,686,211 $193,733,10 $(164,842,77) $ 32,576,54
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USA Technologies, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity (Qdinued)

Series A
Convertible
Preferred Common Accumulatec
Stock Stock Deficit Total
Retirement of 162,599 shares of common s $ — $ (37558) $ — $ (375,589
Retirement of 10,122 shares of preferred s (71,669 — (16,389 (88,049
Issuance of 56,487 ful-vested shares of common stock to employees
vesting of shares granted under the -A Stock Compensation Pl — 284,11 — 284,11
Issuance of 239,253 fu-vested shares of common stock to officers
employees and vesting of shares granted undelO®& 3tock Incentive
Plan — 1,040,52 — 1,040,52
Issuance of 134,611 net shares of common stocsettiement of th
Long-Term Equity Incentive Program liability for Fiscéear 200€ — 266,53( — 266,53(
Net loss — — (13,731,81) (13,731,81)
Balance, June 30, 20! $ 3,614,555 $194,948,69 $(178,590,97) $ 19,972,27

See accompanying notes.
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USA Technologies, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity (Qdinued)

Series A
Convertible
Preferred Common Accumulatec
Stock Stock Deficit Total
Retirement of 5,113 shares of common si $ — 8 (9,66¢) $ — 3 (9,669
Retirement of 65,802 shares of preferred s (465,879 — (132,58¢) (598,469
Issuance of 40,000 ful-vested shares of common stock to officers
employees and vesting of shares granted undelO& Qtock Incentive
Plan — 87,35¢ — 87,35¢
Issuance of 7,285,792 shares of common stock @0%tr share, les
issuance costs of $1,613,4 — 12,958,15 — 12,958,15
Issuance of 2,753,454 shares of common stock 80§r share, les
issuance costs of $504,0 1,974,01. 1,974,01.
Net loss — — (11,571,49) (11,571,49)
Balance, June 30, 2010 $ 3,148,671 $209,958,55 $(190,295,05) $ 22,812,17

See accompanying notes.
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USA Technologies, Inc.
C onsolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year ended June @

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash usegerating activities

Charges incurred (reduced) in connection with tsting and issuance of common stocl

2010

2009

2008

$ (11,571,49) $ (13,731,81) $ (16,417,89)

employee and officer compensati 87,35¢ 1,324,64. (377,359
Charges incurred (reduced) in connection with thec-term Equity Incentive Progra 43,17: (375,86¢) 1,479,47
Charges incurred in connection with stock opti — — 71,48¢
Loss on disposal of property and equipn 25,05¢ — —
Depreciation, $247,772 of which is allocated tot@iservices for the year ended June

2010 783,41! 632,40¢ 686,89:
Amortization 1,034,401 1,040,37! 1,236,601
Bad debt expense (recove (50€) (17,15%) 137,93:
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Accounts receivabl (579,86°) 2,032,77. (1,352,40)
Finance receivable (247,24) 489,21: (213,74)
Inventory (3,468,02) 627,77t 734,79(
Prepaid expenses and other as 337,67 181,11 (423,615
Accounts payabl 776,03¢ (210,85%) 112,24
Accrued expense 432,84( (470,28) 731,53¢
Net cash used in operating activit (12,347,18) (8,477,68) (13,594,05)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of property and equipment, (520,83Y) (264,86°) (572,279
Net proceeds (purchases) from redemption/sale aifedole-for-sale securities — 6,875,001 (525,000)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi (520,83) 6,610,13 (1,097,27)

See accompanying notes.
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USA Technologies, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Continued)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Net proceeds from the issuance (payments for neéirg) of common stock and exercise

common stock warran

Payments for retirement of preferred st
Proceeds from the issuance of I-term debt
Repayment of lor-term debt

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow informa:
Cash paid for intere:

Equipment and software acquired under capital |

Equipment and software financed with l-term debt

Prepaid insurance financed with long-term debt

Prepaid software licenses and maintenance finawiébdong-term debt
Disposal of property and equipment

Reclass of inventory to fixed assets for rentatauni

See accompanying notes.
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Year ended June @

2010

2009

2008

$ 1492250 $

(375,58) $ 20,026,88

(598,46 (88,049) —
7,50( — 332,74(
(607,46 (891,25 (861,44
13,724,07 (1,354,88)  19,498,17
856,06 (3,222,42) 4,806,84
6,748,26: 9,970,69. 5,163,84-

$ 760432 $ 674826 $ 9,970,69
$ 63,88: $ 97,38¢ $ 168,33
$ 17,337 $  42461. $  262,70:
$ 195000 $ — 3 —
$ — $ 22578 $ 203,77
$ — 3 9339 $ —
$ 581,12: $ — $ —
$ 250528 $ — 3 —
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USA Technologies, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. BUSINESS

USA Technologies, Inc. (the “Companyijas incorporated in the Commonwealth of PennsylvamiJanuary 1992. The Company is a les
supplier of cashless, remote management, repogtind energy management solutions serving the umlgtteoint of Sale market. C
networked devices and associated services enabl®wimers and operators of everyday, stalotke, distributed assets, such as ver
machines, kiosks, personal computers, photoco@edsjaundry equipment, the ability to remotely iiham control and report on the results
these distributed assets, as well as the abilityffeer their customers cashless payment optionspaks of our Intelligent Vending™ solutic
our Company also manufactures and sells energy geament products which reduce the electrical povegrsemption of various existi
equipment, such as refrigerated vending machinégkss front coolers, thus reducing the electecargy costs associated with operating
equipment. The Company’s customers are principadsited in the United States.

The Company has incurred losses from its inceptioough June 30, 2010 and losses have continuedghrAugust 2010 and are expecte
continue during fiscal year 2011. The Compamgbility to meet its future obligations is depemtdgpon the success of its products and set
in the marketplace and the available capital ressirUntil the Compang’products and services can generate sufficierratipg revenues, tl
Company will be required to use its cash and caslivalents on hand, as well as raise capital totriteeash flow requirements including
issuance of Common Stock and the exercise of autstg Common Stock warrants. Note 15 details subseigevents related to prod
deployment and capital resources.

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES
CONSOLIDATION

The accompanying consolidated financial statemiertiside the accounts of the Company and its whollyted subsidiaries, Stitch Netwo
Corporation (“Stitch”) and USAT Capital Corp LLCUYSAT Capital”). All significant intercompany accounts and transatwi have bes
eliminated in consolidation.

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of the financial statements in confty with U.S. generally accepted accounting gipfes requires management to r
estimates and assumptions that affect the amoeptsted in the financial statements and accompgnyates. Actual results could differ fri
those estimates.

CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash equivalents represent all highly liquid inwestts with original maturities of three months esd. Cash equivalents are comprise
certificates of deposit and a money market funde Tempany maintains its cash in bank deposit adsputich may exceed federally insu
limits at times.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE SECURITIES

The Company accounts for investments in accordaiiiteASC 320, "Investments - Debt and Equity Se@s!. Management determines

appropriate classifications of securities at theetof purchase and reevaluates such designatiohessh balance sheet date. Availabledale
securities are carried at fair value, with the alired gains and losses reported as a separateocemipof shareholdergquity in accumulate
other comprehensive income (loss). If the investrsestains an other-thaamporary decline in fair value, the investmenwigiten down to it
fair value by a charge to earnings.

The Company’s available-for-sale securities coadistf auction rate securities (*“ARS”). During theay ended June 30, 2009, the ARS broker
dealer purchased the remaining $6,875,000 of thapgaoys ARS at par. As such, there were no unrealizestbsecorded in the year en
June 30, 2009 in connection with these investmésaf June 30, 2010 and 2009 there were no AR& inethe Company.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable are reported at their outstandinpaid principal balances reduced by an alloedoc doubtful accounts. The Compi
estimates doubtful accounts for accounts receivabtefinance receivables based on historical batsdéactors related to specific customers’
ability to pay and current economic trends. The @any writes off accounts receivable against thensdhce when management determine
balance is uncollectible and the Company ceasdsction efforts. Management believes that the adloge accrued is adequate to providi

its estimated credit losses.
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USA Technologies, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FINANCE RECEIVABLES

The Company offers extended payment terms to cectestomers for equipment sales. Through June(I® Bayment terms consisted of fi.
term notes. During the year ended June 30, 201@tmpany started offering customers its Quick Stadgram. In accordance with A
Topic 840, “Leases”, agreements under the Quickt tagram qualify for saletspe lease accounting. Accordingly, the future minin leas
payments are classified as finance receivableénQompanys consolidated balance sheets. Notes receivabl@uark Start leases ¢
generally for a 36 month term. Finance receivahtescarried at their contractual amount and chaoffealgainst the allowance for credit los
when management determines that recovery is upliketl the Company ceases collection efforts. Thegamy recognizes a portion of
note or lease payments as interest income in ttengganying consolidated financial statements basetie effective interest rate method.

INVENTORY

Inventory consists of finished goods and packagiragerials. The Company'inventory is stated at the lower of cost (averegg basis) «
market.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Rgoped equipment are depreciated on the strdigbtbasis over the estimated useful live
the related assets. Leasehold improvements aretiaetbon the straightne basis over the lesser of the estimated udiédubf the asset or ti
respective lease term.

GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill represents the excess of cost over faluevaf the net assets purchased in acquisitions. Company accounts for goodwill
accordance with ASC 350, “Intangibles — Goodwiltladther”.Under ASC 350, goodwill is not amortized to earsinigut instead is subject
periodic testing for impairment. The Company tegt®dwill for impairment using a twstep process. The first step screens for pot
impairment, while the second step measures the minudumpairment. The Company uses a discountell flae analysis to complete the fi
step in this proces8Ve also give consideration to our market capitéilira During 2009 and 2010, we experienced a dediinour marke
capitalization due to a decline in our stock priées. of June 30, 2010, our market capitalization Wess than our book value and a:
September 17, 2010 it was slightly higher than bealkie. We believe the decline in our stock prias,hin part, been influenced by the cur
national credit crises and national economic réoasdNe believe that it is appropriate to view ttrrent credit crisis and recessior
relatively temporary in relation to reporting unilsgt have demonstrated lotiged / enduring franchise value. Accordingly, welibve that
variance between market capitalization and faiugatan exist and that difference could be significa& points in time due to interven
macroeconomic influence$esting for impairment is to be done at least alipaad at other times if events or circumstanagseathat indical
that impairment may have occurred. The Companyskkescted April 1 as its annual test date. The Comppeas concluded there has bee
impairment of goodwill as a result of its testing April 1, 2010, April 1, 2009 and April 1, 2008.

Patents, trademarks and the non-compete agreeneecdried at cost less accumulated amortizatidwigtwis calculated on a straiglie basi:
over their estimated economic life. The Companyews intangibles for impairment whenever eventst@nges in circumstances indicate
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Antasseonsidered to be impaired when the sum ofuth@iscounted future net cash flc
resulting from the use of the asset and its evémtisposition is less than its carrying amount. Hmeount of the impairment loss, if any
measured as the difference between the net boalk wlthe asset and its estimated fair value. Aok 30, 2010 and 2009, the Compan)
concluded there has been no impairment of paterttademarks. As of June 30, 2009 the wompete agreement is fully amortized; and t
was no impairment of the non-compete agreement &sne 30, 2008.

IMPAIRMENT OF LONG LIVED ASSETS

In accordance with ASC 360, “Impairment or DisposfiLong-Lived Assets”, the Company reviews itsgdived assets whenever event:
changes in circumstances indicate that the cargingunt of such assets may not be recoverablee Ifarrying amount of an asset or grou
assets exceeds its net realizable value, the wg#kbe written down to its fair value. In the ped when the plan of sale criteria of ASC 36C
met, longlived assets are reported as held for sale, degti@eiand amortization cease, and the assets poeed at the lower of carrying va
or fair value less costs to sell. The Company lwladed that the carrying amount of lolged assets is recoverable as of June 30, 201
2009.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalentguats receivable, finance receivabtesrent portion, other current assets, accountalpe
and accrued expenses reported in the consolidaiedde sheets equal or approximate fair value dleetr short maturities. The fair value
the Company’s long-term finance receivables andjtenm debt approximates book value as such instrtsrene at market rates currel
available to the Company.
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USA Technologies, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

Financial instruments that subject the Company torecentration of credit risk consist principallfyaash and cash equivalents and accc
and finance receivables. The Company maintains aadlicash equivalents with various financial insitins. Approximately 52% and 32%
the Companys accounts and finance receivables at June 30, 20d 2009, respectively, were concentrated with (8% with one and 24
with another) and one customer(s), respectivelyprpimately 11%, 11%, and 61% of the Compangfuipment sale revenues for the y
ended June 30, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectivelg woncentrated with one, one, and two (34% with and 27% with another) custome
respectively. Approximately 52%, 44%, and 44% a& @ompanys license and transaction processing revenueéoye¢ars ended June
2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively, were concemtraith two (35% with one and 17% with another), oaed two (27% with one and 1’
with another) customer(s), respectively. The Camyfsacustomers are principally located in the UthiBtates.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue from the sale of equipment is recognizetherterms of freight-oboard shipping point, or upon installation and ataece of th
equipment if installation services are purchasedHte related equipment. Activation fee revenueetognized when the Compasytashles
payment device is initially activated for use om tBompany network. Transaction processing revesuedognized upon the usage of
Company’s cashless payment and control networlerise fees for access to the Compamgevices and network services are recognizec
monthly basis. In all cases, revenue is only rezmghwhen persuasive evidence of an arrangemestsexielivery has occurred or serv
have been rendered, the price is fixed and detatntenand collection of the resulting receivables@sonably assured. The Company estir
an allowance for product returns at the date &f.sal

EQUIPMENT RENTAL

During the year ended June 30, 2010, the Compammeamced a rental program, Jump Start, for its e@gutpment devices. In accorda
with ASC 840, “Leases’the Company classifies the rental agreements amtipg leases. For the year ended June 30, 20&fe ta
approximately $369,000 of activation fee revenuateel to Jump Start equipment included in equiprsatds in the Consolidated Statemen
Operations. There was also approximately $433,0Cwice fee revenue related to Jump Start equipmneluded in license and transac
fees in the Consolidated Statements of Operationshé year ended June 30, 2010. Cost for the JBtagt revenues, which consists
depreciation expense on the Jump Start equipmeptogimated $105,000 for the year ended June 300,28nd was included in cost
services in the Consolidated Statements of Operatiat June 30, 2010 $2,400,165 of ePort equipragiized by the Jump Start program \
included in property and equipment, net on the chaated balance sheet.

WARRANTY COSTS

The Company generally warrants its products for tinthree years. Warranty costs are estimated ecarded at the time of sale base«
historical warranty experience, if available.

SHIPPING AND HANDLING

Shipping and handling fees billed to our custoniargonnection with sales are recorded as revenbe. cbsts incurred for shipping ¢
handling of our product are recorded as cost @fssal

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES
Research and development expenses are expensedtussed. Research and development expenses, wiéchneluded in general a
administrative and compensation expense in the alidiased statements of operations, were approximaké,864,000, $2,691,000, ¢

$1,679,000 for the years ended June 30, 2010, 2082008, respectively. Our research and developmiiatives focus on adding featu
and functionality to our system solutions throulgé tlevelopment and utilization of our processing r@porting network and new technology.
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USA Technologies, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
ACCOUNTING FOR EQUITY AWARDS

In accordance with ASC 718 the cost of employegices received in exchange for an award of equisgruments is based on the grdate
fair value of the award and allocated over theimggperiod of the award.

There were no common stock options granted dufiegyear ended June 30, 2010, 2009, or 2008. Thep@wyrecorded stock compensa
expense of $87,354, $1,324,643, and $221,953 delateommon stock grants and vesting of sharesqusly granted to employees, excluc
the Longterm Equity Incentive Program, and $0, $0, and 494 related to the vesting of common stock optidmsng the years ended Ji
30, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively. On Febrdarg009, the Board of Directors approved the recendation of the Compensat
Committee that the final twelve month measuringqeeunder the LTIP Program be changed from theafigear ended June 30, 2009 to
fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. The foregoing amgwsoved by the Board as it did not believe it wlobke appropriate to reward sel
management with bonuses during the current econsimedown. Accordingly, the Company recorded stoskpensation expense of $43,
related to the vesting of shares under the Liemgy Equity Incentive Program during the year endi@te 30, 2010. During the year ended
30, 2009 the Company recorded a reduction to stochpensation expense of $375,866 related to the $iettlement of the June 30, 2
award under the LTIP Program (See Note 10). Thegamy recorded stock compensation expense of $4,49%elated to the vesting of she
under the Long-term Equity Incentive Program dutimg year ended June 30, 2008.

INCOME TAXES

The Company adopted the provisions of FASB ASC 7A0¢ounting for Uncertainty in Income TaxeAn-Interpretation of FASB Statem
No. 109."FIN 48 provides detailed guidance for the finanattement recognition, measurement and disclositencertain tax positiol
recognized in the financial statements in accordavith SFAS No. 109. Tax positions must meet a &xlikely-thannot" recognition thresho
at the effective date to be recognized upon thetmio of ASC 740 and in subsequent periods. Upenattioption of ASC 740, the Compi
had no unrecognized tax benefits.

Income taxes are computed using the asset anditliaiiethod of accounting. Under the asset andilitgbmethod, a deferred tax asse!
liability is recognized for estimated future taXeets attributable to temporary differences andyfarwards. The measurement of defe
income tax assets is adjusted by a valuation allo@aif necessary, to recognize future tax benefily to the extent, based on avail:
evidence; it is more likely than not such benefitd be realized. The Company recognizes interest penalties, if any, related to uncertain
positions in selling, general and administrativ@enses. No interest and penalties related to winedx positions were accrued or incu
during the years ended June 30, 2010, 2009 and 2008

LOSS PER COMMON SHARE

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividmgpme (loss) applicable to common shares by thghted average common she
outstanding for the period. Diluted earnings pearshis calculated by dividing income (loss) apflleato common shares by the weig!
average common shares outstanding for the year thiiseffect of potential common shares (approxitgale3,787,000, 3,524,000, &
2,213,000 shares as of June 30, 2010, 2009 and g&sj&ctively) unless such effect is aitistive. No exercise of stock options (160,00
stock purchase warrants (13,526,748); or the caiveiof preferred stock (4,445) or cumulative prnefé dividends (9,635); or the issuanc
shares granted under the Lohgrm Equity Incentive Program (86,342) was assuthgihg the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 bectng
result would be antililutive. No exercise of stock options (160,000kstwck purchase warrants (3,030,863); or the canweof preferred stor
(5,103) or cumulative preferred dividends (10,348)the issuance of shares granted under the O@ngr Equity Incentive Program (317,4
was assumed during the fiscal year ended June(8® Because the result would be ailitive. No exercise of stock options (161,500
stock purchase warrants (1,591,735); or the coirersf preferred stock (5,203) or cumulative predgdrdividends (9,774); or the issuanc
shares granted under the Lohgrm Equity Incentive Program (444,405) was assudheihg the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 bectng
result would be anti-dilutive.
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USA Technologies, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUCEMENTS

In April 2008, the Financial Accounting StandardsaBl issued FSP No. FAS 142-Fetermination of the Useful Life of Intangil
Assets” (“FSP FAS 142-3"). FSP FAS 142 amends the factors that should be considere@weldping renewal or extension assumpi
used to determine the useful life of a recognizgdrigible asset under SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill artte® Intangible Assets'The FSP i
effective for financial statements issued for flsgaars beginning after December 15, 2008, andimtg@eriods within those fiscal yee
Adoption of this statement has not had a matefiateon our results of operations or financialifios.

In June 2008, the Financial Accounting Standardar@dssued FSP No. EITF 03-6-1, “Determining Whetlmstruments Granted in Share-
Based Payment Transactions Are Participating Séesiti(“FSP EITF 03-6-1"). FSP EITF 03-6-1 clari¢hat instruments granted in share-
based payment transactions can be participatingrities prior to the requisite service having beemdered. The FSP is effective for finan
statements issued for fiscal years beginning &ftsrember 15, 2008, and interim periods within thyessrs. Adoption of this statement has
had a material effect on our results of operatmmnancial position.

In June 2008, the Financial Accounting Standardar@assued FSP No. EITF 07-8Détermining Whether an Instrument (or Embec
Feature) Is Indexed to an Entity’s Own Stock” (“EI07-5"). EITF 07-5 provides guidance for determgiwhether an equitipked financia
instrument (or embedded feature) is indexed toraityés own stock. EITF 0% is effective for financial statements issued fiscal year
beginning after December 15, 2008, and interimgaksriwithin those years. Adoption of this statemiged not had a material effect on
results of operations or financial position.

On July 1, 2009, the Financial Accounting Standddard officially launched thEASB Accounting Standards Codificatibh(Codification)
which has become the single official source of arithtive, nhongovernmental U.S. GAAP, superseditigp@or FASB, AICPA, EITF, an
related literature. The Codification is effectiva fnterim and annual periods ended on or aftete3eper 15, 2009. Adoption of this staten
has not had a material effect on our results ofatmens or financial position.

The Company does not believe that any other recésdlied, but not yet effective accounting stanslarill have a material effect on f
Company's consolidated financial position, resoltsperations, or cash flows.

3. FINANCE RECEIVABLES

Finance Receivables consist of the following:

June 3(
2010 2009
Notes receivabl $ 56,96: $ 334,55
Lease receivable 524,83: —
Total finance receivable 581,79: 334,55.
Less current portio 242 ,45:; 212,92¢
Non-current portion of finance receivables $ 339,34. $ 121,62
4. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Property and equipment, at cost, consist of tHewahg:
Useful June 3(
Lives 2010 2009
Computer equipment and purchased softy 3-7 years $ 4,330,64! $ 4,169,06:
Lessor Equipmer 5 years 2,505,28. -
Furniture and equipmel 3-7 years 921,44! 937,38¢
Lesser of
Leasehold improvemen life or lease tern 271,75¢ 265,74¢
Vehicles 5 years 29,06¢ 29,06¢
8,058,19 5,401,26
Less accumulated depreciation (3,546,30) (3,319,35)

$ 451188 $ 2,081,90
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USA Technologies, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

4. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Assets under capital lease totaled approximately#32000 and $1,442,000 as of June 30, 2010 an®, 2@3pectively. Capital lec
amortization of approximately $263,000, $204,00%] &228,000, is included in depreciation expensdhe years ended June 30, 2010, .
and 2008, respectively.

5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Amortization expense relating to all acquired igfiate assets was approximately $1,034,000, $1,040,8nd $1,237,000 during each of

years ended June 30, 2010, 2009 and 2008, resplgctivhe intangible asset balance and related aslated amortization consisted of
following:

June 30, 201
Gross
Carrying Accumulated Net Carrying
Amount Amortization Value
Intangible asset:
Trademarks $ 2,064,000 $ (853,12) $ 1,210,87
Patent: 9,294,00! (6,694,22) 2,599,77
Non-compete agreeme 1,011,001 (1,011,000 —
Total $ 12,369,00 $ (8,558,34) $ 3,810,65
June 30, 200
Gross
Carrying Accumulated Net Carrying
Amount Amortization Value
Intangible asset:
Trademarks $ 2,064,000 $ (748,12) $ 1,315,87
Patents 9,294,00! (5,764,82) 3,529,17:
Non-compete agreement 1,011,001 (1,011,000 —
Total $ 12,369,00 $ (7,523,94) $ 4,845,05

At June 30, 2010, the expected amortization ofitkengible assets is as follows: $1,034,000 inalisear 2011, $998,000 in fiscal year 2(
$742,000 in fiscal year 2013 and $22,000 in fisesr 2014. The weighted average useful life ofetamortized intangible assets is 2.8 yee
June 30, 2010. At June 30, 2010 and 2009, $1,0040trademarks has an indefinite life and isudeld in the intangible assets tables above.
6. ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accrued expenses consist of the following:

June 3(
2010 2009
Accrued compensation and related sales commis $ 922,74: % 318,79.
Accrued professional fet 374,28t 439,75¢
Accrued taxes and filing fet 222,24¢ 206,87!
Advanced customer billing 55,77: 101,94:
Accrued shar-based payment liabilit 43,17 —
Accrued other 251,14! 325,98t

$ 186936 $ 1,393,335
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7. LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt consists of the following:

June 3(
2010 2009
Capital lease obligatior $ 280,26. $ 580,38
Loan agreemer 315,89 239,67¢
596,15! 820,05¢
Less current portio 344,65. 494,85(

$ 251,50 $ 325,20¢

The maturities of long-term debt as of June 30028 as follows:

2011 $ 344,65:
2012 153,90(
2013 74,067
2014 16,99(
2015 6,54¢

During May 2010, the company financed softwarengss totaling $77,730, due in 12 monthly installteeri $6,833 at an interest rate of 3.

During March 2010, the Company financed the purettdscomputer equipment totaling $195,000 due im@@ithly installments at an inter
rate of 4.95%. An amount of restricted cash equahé outstanding principal balance of the loavesias security for this loan. According
$62,585 and $117,246 of restricted cash is claskdis current and nanwrent other assets, respectively, on the CoretelitiBalance Sheel
June 30, 2010.

During July 2009, the Company financed a portionthaf premiums for various insurance policies total85,991 due in nine montl
installments at an interest rate of 5.1%the same month the Company also entered intipéat lease for office equipment totaling $24,!
due in 46 monthly installments of $677 at an inderate of 12.1%.

During May 2009, the Company financed a softwacerise agreement totaling approximately $56,000,inldeur quarterly installments
$14,747 each, at an interest rate of 9%.

During November 2008, the Company entered intoouaricapital leases for network equipment and ma@mtee contracts on the equipn
totaling $462,041, due in 24 to 36 monthly instahts at interest rates from 3.75% to 12.35%.

During August and November 2008, the Company fiedna portion of the premiums for various insurapoécies totaling $90,798 a
$134,987, due in 11 and 10 monthly installmentsyainterest rate of 5.95% and 6.25%, respectively.

During February, March, and April 2008, the Compamtered into various capital leases for networkiggent totaling approximate
$199,000, due in 36 monthly installments at interates from 3.78% to 12.35%.

During August and December 2007, the Company fiedrtbe premiums for various insurance policieslitega$203,777, due in 10 montl
installments at an interest rate of 8%.

During November 2007, the Company entered intang4term debt agreement for $93,000 with a financiatiintion bearing interest at 8.2F
which is collateralized by the assets of the Compaitnich requires 84 monthly payments of $1,46€luding interest and principal.

During July 2007, the Company entered into loareagrents for $239,740 with a financial institutioeaking interest at 12% that v
collateralized by $274,494 of the Finance Receesmbl'he Company agreed to make 32 monthly paynoéri9,104, which include intere
and principal, from the proceeds received fromRmance Receivables. During October 2006, the Compatered into a loan agreement \
a financial institution bearing interest at 18% amdlateralized by $470,000 of the Finance Recdesabrhe Company received $470,00
proceeds and agreed to make 12 monthly paymen&2%000 followed by 18 monthly payments of $15,08®jch include interest a
principal, from the proceeds received from the RéeaReceivables. These loan agreements were sdtls§i June 30, 2010. As of June
2009, $110,464 and $21,727 of the current and teng-Finance Receivables, respectively, are cofiafer the outstanding balance of th
loans, of which $61,585 and $0 is current and ltarg: debt, respectively.

F-15






Table of Content

USA Technologies, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

7. LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

During May 2007, the Company entered into a capéi@abée agreement in connection with office equipnfi@napproximately $305,000, due
thirty-six equal monthly payments of $9,456 througdril 2010 at an interest rate of 7.13%.

During March 2007, the Company entered into a eaf#ase agreement in connection with softwareniseg for approximately $290,000,
in sixteen equal monthly payments of $17,769 thhodigly 2008 followed by two equal monthly paymeuoit$19,787 through September 2
at an interest rate of 14.27%.

During March 2007, the Company entered into a edfpgfase agreement in connection with office eqaipirior approximately $146,000, ¢
in sixty equal monthly payments of $2,965 througarth 2012 at an interest rate of 7.83%.

8. INCOME TAXES

At June 30, 2010 the Company had net operatingdasyforwards of approximately $163,843,000 tcsefffuture taxable income expir
through approximately 2030. In addition, the Comphad capital loss carryforwards of approximatel@® 000 as of June 30, 2010.

The timing and extent to which the Company canzatifuture tax deductions in any year may be lichibg provisions of the Internal Revel
Code regarding changes in ownership of corporaffipasiRS Code Section 382). The changes in ovimigtsnitations under IRS Code Sect
382 have had the effect of limiting the maximum amioof net operating loss carryforwards as of J8@e2010 and 2009 available for us
offset future yearstaxable income to approximately $116,712,000 ar@bH62,000, respectively. Those net operating dass/forwards sta
to expire June 30, 2022. Stitch had net operatisg tarryforwards of approximately $11,800,000hat dcquisition date. Such net opere
loss carryforwards are limited under the same gioxkis as to the amount available to offset futaralle income and to the extent used ir
given year, will result in decreases to goodwillopposed to income tax expense. As of June 30, 28di(2009 the capital loss carryforwe
were not limited in use under IRS Code Section 382.

At June 30, 2010 and 2009 the Company recordedefetred tax assets of approximately $46,782,0@0%2,305,000, respectively, wh
were reduced by a valuation allowance of the sameuat as the realization of the deferred tax assett likely, principally due to the lack
earnings history.

The net deferred tax assets arose primarily fromoperating loss and capital loss carryforwardsywel as the use of different account
methods for financial statement and income taxntémppurposes as follows:

JUNE 30
2010 2009

Deferred tax asset

Net operating loss and capital loss carryforwi $ 44,774,00 $ 40,041,00
Deferred research and development c 271,00( 265,00(
Software development cos 216,00( 432,00(
Intangibles 721,00( 676,00(
Stock-based compensatic 396,00( 761,00(
Other 628,00( 472,00(

47,006,00 42,647,00
Deferred tax liabilities

Intangibles (224,000) (342,00()
Deferred tax assets, r 46,782,00 42,305,00
Valuation allowanct (46,782,00) (42,305,00)
Deferred tax assets, net of allowance $ —  $ —
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9. PREFERRED STOCK

The authorized Preferred Stock may be issued fiora to time in one or more series, each series suitth rights, preferences or restriction
determined by the Board of Directors. Each shar@asfes A Preferred Stock shall have the rightntetundredth of a vote and is convertibl
any time into ondwndredth of a share of Common Stock. Each shai@oofimon Stock entitles the holder to one votindgtrigseries
Preferred Stock provides for an annual cumulativeldnd of $1.50 per share, payable when, as adddfared by the Board of Directors, to
shareholders of record in equal parts on FebruanydlAugust 1 of each year. Any and all accumulatediunpaid cash dividends on the S
A Preferred Stock must be declared and paid poithé declaration and payment of any dividendshenrGommon Stock.

Cumulative unpaid dividends at June 30, 2010 ari® 20nounted to $9,634,843 and $10,348,607, respéctiCumulative unpaid dividen
are convertible into common shares at $1,000 pemeon share at the option of the shareholder. Dutiegyears ended June 30, 2010, .
and 2008 no Preferred Stock or cumulative prefedietiends was converted into shares of CommonkStboe Series A Preferred Stock r
be called for redemption at the option of the Boafr®irectors for a price of $11.00 per share giagment of all accrued and unpaid divide
No such redemption has occurred as of June 30,.2018e event of any liquidation, the holders b&ies of Series A Preferred Stock is:
shall be entitled to receive $10.00 for each ountliteg share plus all cumulative unpaid divideni$uhds are insufficient for this distributic
the assets available will be distributed ratablypoagthe preferred shareholders.

During the year ended June 30, 2009, the Compdimgdel0,122 shares of its Preferred Stock it paseldl on the open market at prices rar
from $8.00 to $9.50 per share for a total of $88,04

During the year ended June 30, 2010, the Compdimgdes5,802 shares of its Preferred Stock it paseld on the open market at prices rar
from $8 to $9 per share for a total of $598,464.

10. COMMON STOCK

The Companys Board of Directors has authorized various Comi8totk private placement offerings. Activity for sieeofferings during tt
years ended June 30, 2010, 2009 and 2008 arel@asdc

On September 25, 2006, the Company entered intanantn Stock Purchase Agreement (the “2006-B Com&took Agreement”jvith Steve
llles, an accredited investor. Mr. llles agreedpbtochase shares of the CompangZommon Stock with an aggregate purchase priceo
exceed $15,000,000. Under the 2&ommon Stock Agreement, the Company had the @aglany time to require Mr. llles to purch
Common Stock from the Company at the lower of$89.00 per share; or (ii) 90% of the closing bitt@per share on the date prior to the
of the delivery by the Company to Mr. llles of re&tiof his obligation to purchase. The Company coedpliire Mr. llles to purchase shares «
if the shares had been registered by the Compamgs$ale by Mr. llles under the Securities Act 883, as amended (the “Act’ds amende
During any calendar month, Mr. llles could not leguired by the Company to purchase Common Stockrfoaggregate purchase pric
excess of $800,000. The Company registered 1,508008 800,000 shares effective December 21, 2086&Jaly 9, 2007, respectively. T
Company had the right in the future, if necesstryegister additional shares for resale by Medllin order to ensure that a sufficient numb
shares were available for purchase by Mr. llleseartde 20088 Common Stock Agreement. The Company issued tdlMs. 20,000 shares
Common Stock as a due diligence fee in connectiitim this transaction and registered these sharese$ale by Mr. llles under the 1933 /
During the year ended June 30, 2008, the Compaueis886,908 shares of Common Stock under the BOO6mmon Stock Agreement
total gross proceeds of $5,671,847. The Companyried issuance costs of $1,410 during the yearceddee 30, 2008 in connection with
agreement. No shares were issued under this agneéelmeng the years ended June 30, 2010 and 208920T06B Common Stock Agreeme
terminated August 30, 2009.

On October 17, 2007, the Company entered into aries purchase agreement (collectively, the “S¢ies Purchase Agreementijith 37
accredited investors (“BuyersPursuant to the Securities Purchase Agreementdingpany sold to the Buyers a total of 2,142,87 Tesha
the Company’s Common Stock (“Shares”) at a pric&000 per Share, for gross proceeds of $15,000\08iam Blair & Co., LLC (“Blair”),
a brokereealer registered under the 1934 Act, acted asexiotusive placement agent for the private placemAastcompensation for
services, the Company paid Blair a fee equal taapmately eight percent of the total consideratieceived by the Company as a result o
offering. The fee was comprised of cash of $94580 warrants to purchase up to 17,532 shareeo€tdmpanys Common Stock at $7.
per share at any time through October 17, 2012suRut to the Registration Rights Agreement enterexbetween the Company and €
Buyer, the Company registered the Buyers shards thié¢ Securities and Exchange Commission (“SE&@X)ering the resale of the She
effective December 20, 2007.

On May 22, 2009, the Company filed a registratitatesnent with the Securities and Exchange Comnmis&io a rights offeringelating tc
transferable subscription rights to purchase uplt® million of common stock and warrants (the “2@ights Offering”) .The proceeds fro
the rights offering are to be used for general e purposes, including working capital and aalable to finance the ePorts which ma
utilized in the Quick Start Program.
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10. COMMON STOCK (CONTINUED)

The Company engaged William Blair & Company and MaxGroup LLC to act as the dealeranagers for the 2009 Rights Offering
MacKenzie Partners, Inc. to act as the informagigant.

The 2009 Rights Offering commenced on July 13, 2@ expired on July 31, 2009. On August 7, 2008 closing date of the rights offeri
the Company received $14,571,584 of gross procédus.net cash proceeds, after deduction of feeseapdnses, including dealesranage
fees, was $12,958,159. In addition, the Companyess total of 291,432 warrants to the dealer-mersaip purchase the Compasiyzommo
Stock at $2.20 per share at any time through Augu2012.

In accordance with the terms of the 2009 Rightefif), the Company issued an aggregate of 7,285[8&s of common stock for $2.00
share and 7,285,792 warrants, entitling the haldgrurchase one share of common stock at the eeeprice of $2.20 per share of comr
stock commencing January 1, 2010 and through Deeeih 2011. The warrants commenced trading on stugu2009, on The NASDA
Global Market under the symbol USATW.

On March 16, 2010the Company filed a registration statement with Seeurities and Exchange Commission for a publierioig of up t
$3,000,000 of our common stock and warrants tolmge common stock (the “2010 Public OfferingThe proceeds from the offering are
be used for general corporate purposes, includiatking capital and providing financing for the méexture by us of our ePort cashi
payment products anticipated to be used by ouomests participating in our JumpStart Program. Thenfany engaged Source Capital Gr
Inc. to act as the placement agent for the offering

The offering closed on May 12, 2010 and we soléd@ggregate of 2,753,454 shares and related wati@ptsrchase up to 2,753,454 shares
compensation for its services related to the affgrBource received warrants to purchase up t®208%hares at $1.13 per share, exercisa
any time through May 12, 2013. The warrants conpaovisions for one demand registration of the sdléhe underlying shares of comn
stock for a period of five years at our expensel piggyback registration rights for a period ofefiyears at our expense, and one del
registration right at the placement agergxpense for a period of five years. The offer sal@é of the warrants was exempt from registri
under Section 4(2) of the Act. The investors areredited investors. The offer and sale thereofritlinvolve any general advertising
solicitation and the securities contained appraprniastrictive legends under the AThe warrants commenced trading on May 24, 2010t
NASDAQ Global Market under the symbol USAT

During the years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009 n@mia were exercised to purchase shares of Con8tauk. During the year ended J
30, 2008 warrants were exercised to purchase 5&/&d®s of Common Stock at $6.40 per share, gémgrabceeds of $374,675.

The Companys Board of Directors has authorized various comgtms plans. Activity for these plans during theageended June 30, 20
2009 and 2008 are as follows:

On February 12, 2007, upon recommendation of thagemsation Committee of the Board of Directorshef Company, the Board adopted
Long-Term Equity Incentive Program (the “Progranfdy each of George R. Jensen, Jr., Stephen P. Hegvel David M. DeMedio. Tt
Program is intended to ensure continuity of the Gany’s executive management, to encourage stock owpebgtsuch persons, and to al
the interests of executive management with thogkeohareholders.

Pursuant to and as defined in the Program, eaatuixe would be awarded shares of the Compa@dmmon Stock if the Company achie
certain target goals relating to revenues, grosfitpand EBITDA (the “Target Goals™df the Company during each of the fiscal years d
June 30, 2007, June 30, 2008 and June 30, 2009FeDruary 4, 2009, the Board of Directors approveel tecommendation of t
Compensation Committee that the final twelve maon#rasuring period under the LTIP Program be chafged the fiscal year ended June
2009 to the fiscal year ended June 20, 2010. Tregfing was approved by the Board as the Boarahdidelieve it would be appropriate
reward senior management with bonuses during thieemmueconomic slowdown. EBITDA is defined as eagsi before interest, tax
depreciation, and amortization, and excludes cest stock payments/awards and stock options graatefficers and Board members. -
maximum number of shares that can be awarded uhdeProgram is 952,298. The Program allows foretkecutive officers to reduce 1
number of shares to be issued in order to sati&fyrtinimum statutory tax withholding requirements.

During each such fiscal year, the number of elgithares to be awarded to the executive is based tiye following weightings: 40%

eligible shares are determined by revenues; 30&igible shares are determined by gross profit; 20 of eligible shares are determine:
EBITDA.
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If the Target Goals are achieved by the Companynduthe applicable fiscal year, the executive @fficwould be awarded the follow
number of shares:

Fiscal Year Ended June ¢

2007 2008 2009 2010
George R. Jensen, . 178,57( 178,57( -- 178,57(
Stephen P. Herbe 53,71 53,71 -- 53,71«
David M. DeMedic 21,66 21,66 -- 21,66¢

If the actual results for a particular fiscal yeaceeds the Target Goals, each executive wouldvbedad an additional pro rata portion of
eligible shares, up to an amount no greater th&31@f the number of eligible shares. If the acteallts for a particular fiscal year is less 1
the Target Goals, each executive would be awardegsar pro rata portion of the number of eligiff@res. If minimum Target Goals fc
particular fiscal year are not achieved, no eligishares would be awarded to each executive.

If a USA Transaction (see Note 14) would occur nigidny such fiscal year, and provided that the @kez is an employee of the Company
the date of such USA Transaction, the executiveldvba awarded shares for each of the fiscal ydemishiave not yet been completed as ¢
date of such USA Transaction. The number of shiardme awarded to each executive for the uncompligsed! year 2010 is as follows: N
Jensen-178,570 shares; Mr. Herbert-53,714 sharddyla DeMedio-21,664 shares.

In conjunction with the Program, during March 20@&ch of Mr. Jensen, Mr. Herbert, and Mr. DeMedigned amendments to th
Employment and NoiGompetition Agreements. Based upon the auditechéiah results of the Company for the fiscal yeadezh June 3
2007, the target goal (100%) relating to revenuas met and the minimum Target Goals relating tegrofit and EBITDA were not m
Therefore the Company recorded compensation expHrs99,311 and a corresponding amount to ComntockSor the year ended June
2007 related to the vesting of 101,578 shares ifgraF Year 2007 Target Goals based on the gramet fdat value of the Company’stock ¢
$5.90. There is no effect on the number of issuetl@utstanding shares of Common Stock until sharesssued and thus none of the st
vested as of June 30, 2007 are included in issnéaatstanding Common Stock as of June 30, 2007.

During fiscal year 2007, substantially all of thHeoet® units sold consisted of units pertaining to the tdeGard PayPass™ seeding prog
with substantially reduced selling prices whichutesd in reduced gross profit and EBITDA. Managetieegoal was to have the maxim
number of units deployed in the field as quicklypassible. The Compensation Committee agreed withagement that given the current s
of the Company’s business, it was more beneficidhe Company to maximize the number of eP@ris the field as soon as possible. /
result, on September 21, 2007, the Compensationn@ivee recommended to the Board of Directors thatdelling price of all the ePor®
sold during the fiscal year be “normalizetd’ the current retail price. This normalizationuiésd in increased proforma revenues, gross |
and EBITDA for the ePo® units sold in the MasterCard PayPass™ seeding gmagfhe Compensation Committee also recommendé¢
the executive officers be given the option to eleckatisfy certain minimum statutory tax withhelgiobligations for the restricted st
bonuses previously awarded and issued to the @xesutinder their employment agreements by redutiiegnumber of Common Sha
otherwise issuable to them under the Plan. ThedBofbDirectors approved the recommendations ofdbmpensation Committee.
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As a result of the normalization, certain targetdfes were met resulting in the vesting of a tofa?41,249 shares under the Plan for the f
year rather than a total of 101,578 shares prigdhéonormalization. The value of the number of shares the executives may apply ta
withholding was in excess of the minimum statutobfigation and, as a result the Plan is classifisd liability award rather than an eq
award. As such, in September 2007, the Companygssified the $599,311 related to the 101,578 shifuaswas previously recorded
Common Stock to a short-term share-based paynahilitly. As the price of the Compars/sShares was $8.45 on the date of the approvak
normalization, a charge of $1,180,220 was alsordsmbto compensation expense, related to the addltil39,671 additional shares, wil
corresponding amount to the short-term share-bpagchent liability for a total shafgased payment liability of $1,779,531 as of Sepem2i
2007. On September 28, 2007, as the Company’s ghiae=was $8.38, the total shdrased payment liability related to fiscal year 2005
$1,769,754 ($599,311 compensation expense in fygzal 2007 and $1,170,443 in the three months eSdptember 30, 2007). Of the 241,
shares vested for fiscal year 2007, the Compamet225,249 shares of Common Stock and the rengal000 shares were exchange
the executives and redeemed by the Company te saktlwithholding obligations paid by the Compaataling $134,080 in connection w
the restricted stock bonuses previously awardedssuwd to them under their employment agreem@sts result of the fact that a portior
the remaining 225,249 shares were subject to relempt September 30, 2007, the Company had redattte entire fair value of tha
remaining shares as a short-term shmsed payment liability as of September 30, 20@&lity $1,635,674. On December 30, 2007
redemption provision lapsed, no further shares wedeemed and the final settlement resulted indacten of the short-term shabase:
payment liability of $1,635,674, a reduction of quensation expense of $446,452 and a credit to CaonBtack of $1,189,222 (123,671 shi
at $4.77 and 101,578 shares at $5.90), as the gtiaecon the date of settlement was $4.77.

During the 2008 fiscal year a portion of the eRminits sold consisted of units pertaining to the tdeBard PayPass™ seeding program
reduced selling prices resulting in reduced grosefittand EBITDA. Managemerg’goal was to have the maximum number of unitsayel ir
the field as quickly as possible. The Compensaflommittee agreed with management that given theectistage of the Comparsybusines
it was beneficial to the Company to maximize thenber of ePort® in the field as soon as possible. In September 20@8Compensatic
Committee recommended to the Board of Directors tihe selling price of the ePor® sold during fiscal year 2008 as part of the see
program be “normalized” to the current retail prfoethe Long-Term Equity Incentive Program (thed§ram”). The normalization resulted
increased gross profit and EBITDA for the eR®rtinits sold in the MasterCard PayPass™ seeding @mgFhe Board of Directors appro
the recommendation of the Compensation Committeseptember 3, 2008.

As a result of the normalization, a lower than ¢ttgurdle was met for gross profit (85%), resultimghe issuance to the executive officers
total of 191,729 shares under the Plan for the 2i3@8&l year versus a total of 126,973 shares poidhe normalization. The specific alloca
of the shares among the executive officers waolémafs: Mr. Jensen-134,820 shares; Mr. Herbert588,shares; and Mr. DeMedi&6,35¢
shares. As a result, the vesting of the additid@@gl’'56 shares resulted in compensation expens@8i,%17 and a corresponding amt
recorded to the accrued share-based liability gute®eber 3, 2008, when the market value of the CaoryigaCommon Stock was $4.44
share. On September 30, 2008, the Company’s shiaeepas $4.14, and the total shased payment liability related to the fiscal y2@o¢
award was $794,333. During the three months endgddeSber 30, 2008, the Company recorded stock cosagien expense of $38,¢
related to the Program for fiscal year 2008, $268 @f which relates to the additional 64,756 shamearded, offset by a reduction of $229,
related to the change in the fair value of theinebaward. On December 30, 2008, the executivieex exercised their right to cancel sh
for payroll tax obligations. As a result, 57,118tloé 191,729 vested shares were cancelled toys&tidf3,093 of related payroll tax obligatic
The final settlement of the award for the fiscahly@008 Program resulted in a reduction of the tsteom sharesased payment liability
$794,333, a reduction of a tax receivable for $293, a reduction of compensation expense of $4D4ant a credit to Common Stock
$266,530 (134,611 shares at $1.98), as the shae qn the date of settlement was $1.98. The tmalpensation expense recognized fo
fiscal year 2008 Program was $379,623, of which6$¥80 was recorded in the fiscal year ended Jup2@IB, and was offset by reduction
compensation expense of $375,866 during the fixshenths of fiscal year 2009.

As a result of the Board’decision to change the final twelve month meagudate of the LTIP Program from fiscal year 2009iscal yea
2010, the accrued share based liability as of 3&010 and 2009 was $43,171 and $0, respectigaty compensation expense for the :
and 2009 fiscal year Programs was $43,171 ande$@ectively. Final settlement of the award forfieal year 2010 Program is expecte
occur by December 31, 2010.
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On January 8, 2007, the Board of Directors apprdakied2007A Stock Compensation Plan to allow up to 100,00&reat of Common Stock
be available for issuance to future or current @yges, directors or consultants of the Companyirguhe years ended June 30, 2009
2008, the Company issued 56,487 and the last 31sB@fes under the 20@V-Stock Compensation plan totaling $284,117 andl13223
respectively based on the grant date fair valub®thares.

On February 28, 2008, the Companghareholders approved the 2008 Stock Incentiae @l allow up to 300,000 shares of Common Sto
be available for issuance to future or current eygés, directors and consultants of the CompanyinBuhe years ended June 30, 2010
2009, the Company issued 40,000 and 239,253 shades the plan totaling $87,354 and $1,040,52(eaetdvely based on the grant date
value of the shares. There were no shares issuat thre plan during the fiscal year ended Jun2G08.

On June 15, 2010, the Compasighareholders approved the 2010 Stock Incentize @l allow up to 300,000 shares of Common Stodbe
available for issuance to future or current empésyalirectors and consultants of the Company. There no shares issued under the
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010.

During September 2008, the Company entered intondments to the employment agreements with Mr. Jerdde Herbert and Mr. DeMedi
As part of the amendments, Mr. Jensen was grarite@Q0 shares of Common Stock under the 2008 Siwmelntive Plan valued at $4.44

share which vest as follows: 36,000 on Septembe2@88; 37,000 on January 15, 2009; and 37,000une 30, 2009; Mr. Herbert was &
granted 85,000 shares of Common Stock under th8 3d0ck Incentive Plan valued at $4.44 per sharietwhest as follows: 28,000

September 15, 2008; 28,000 on January 15, 2009290@0 on June 30, 2009; and Mr. DeMedio was gth@5,000 shares of Common St
under the 2008 Stock Incentive Plan valued at $get4share which vest as follows: 8,000 on Septerhbe2008; 8,000 on January 15, 2(
and 9,000 on June 30, 2009. During the year endgeel 30, 2009, and as permitted under their employagreements, these executive offi
cancelled an aggregate of 23,855 shares of Comriomk 8eld by them in order to satisfy an aggregdit$43,894 of payroll tax withholdir
obligations related to shares of Common Stock whisdted during September 2008 under their employagreementduring the year end:
June 30, 2010, and as permitted under his emplolyaggeement, an executive officer cancelled aneggge of 5,113 shares of Common S
held by him in order to satisfy an aggregate 0668,0f payroll tax withholding obligations relatéa shares of Common Stock which ve:
during January and June 2009.

During the year ended June 30, 2009, the Compainedel38,744 shares of its Common Stock it puretiagn the open market at pri
ranging from $1.26 to $4.00 per share for a toft&381,690.

As of June 30, 2010, the Company had reserved slba@ommon Stock for future issuance for the follwg:

Exercise of Common Stock Optio 160,00(
Exercise of Common Stock Warral 13,526,74
Conversions of Preferred Stock and cumulative PredfieStock dividend 14,08(
Issuance under 2008 Stock Incentive F 20,741
Issuance under 2010 Stock Incentive F 300,00(
Issuance under Lo-Term Equity Incentive Progre- Fiscal Year 2010 (vested, but not issu 86,34:
Issuance under Chief Executive Officer's employnsreement upon the occurrence of a USA Transactiol 140,00(

Total shares reserved for future issuance 14,247,91
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10. COMMON STOCK (CONTINUED)

A summary of the status of the Companyonvested common shares as of June 30, 2010,a2@D2008, and changes during the years
ended is presented below:

Weightec-

Average
Grant-Date

Shares Fair Value

Nonvested Share

Nonvested at June 30, 20 634,86t $ 5.9C
Granted 65,40( 4.9
Vested (25,600 4.9¢
Reversal of forfeited shares due to normalize- FY 2007 (LTIP) 139,67: 5.9C
Vester- FY 2007 (LTIP) (139,67) 5.9C
Vester- FY 2008 (LTIP) (126,97Y) 5.9C
Forfeited- FY 2008 (LTIP) (190,460 5.9C
Nonvested at June 30, 20 367,230 % 5.7
Granted 239,00( 4.3¢€
Vested (268,600 4.5(C
Forfeited shares due to terminatic (6,200 4.4~
Reversal of forfeited shares due to normalize- FY 2008 (LTIP) 64,75¢ 5.9C
Vester- FY 2008 (LTIP) (64,756 5.9C
Nonvested at June 30, 20 331,430 % 5.81
Granted 39,00( 1.7¢
Vested (40,000 2.47
Veste FY 2010 (LTIP) (86,342) 5.9C
Forfeited- FY 2010 (LTIP) (231,09) 5.9C
Nonvested at June 30, 20 13,00¢ $ 1.7¢

The 13,000 nonvested shares of Common Stock asnef 30, 2010 were granted under the 2008 StoclntiveePlan related to employm:
contracts.

11. COMMON STOCK WARRANTS AND OPTIONS

Common Stock Warrant activity for the years endateJ30, 2010, 2009 and 2008 was as follows:

Warrants
Outstanding at June 30, 20 1,704,17!
Issuec 17,53
Exercisec (58,549
Cancellec (71,429
Outstanding at June 30, 20 1,591,73!
Issuec 1,570,62.
Exercisec —
Expired (131,499
Outstanding at June 30, 20 3,030,86:.
Issuec 10,495,88
Exercisec —
Expired —
Outstanding at June 30, 2010 13,526,74
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11. COMMON STOCK WARRANTS AND OPTIONS (CONTINUED)

All Common Stock warrants outstanding as of Jung 2800 were exercisable except for the 500,000 5A80,000 warrants expiring
October 1, 2010 and October 1, 2011, respectiwghich are not exercisable until minimum performameedles in the First Data Jo
Marketing Agreement are achieved, as discusseditathis Note; an additional 2,753,454 warrants aot exercisable until January 1, 2(
The following table shows exercise prices and etjan dates for warrants outstanding as of Jun@@00:

Exercise
Warrants Price
Outstanding Per Shart Expiration Date
500,00( $ 5.2t October 1, 201!
1,000,000 $ 6.0C October 1, 201.
609,37¢ $ 6.4C December 31, 201
757722 $ 2.2C December 31, 201
17,53: $ 7.7C October 17, 201
165,200 $ 1.1z May 12, 201:
903,95¢ $ 5.9C September 14, 201
2,753,45 1.1z December 31, 2013
13,526,74

All Common Stock warrants outstanding as of Jung 289 were exercisable except for the 500,000 5A80,000 warrants expiring
October 1, 2010 and October 1, 2011, respectiwghich are not exercisable until minimum performarmeedles in the First Data Jo
Marketing Agreement are achieved, as discusseditathis Note. The following table shows exergse&es and expiration dates for warr:
outstanding as of June 30, 2009:

Exercise
Warrants Price
Outstanding Per Shart Expiration Date
500,00( $ 5.2t October 1, 201!
1,000,000 $ 6.0C October 1, 201.
609,37¢ $ 6.4C December 31, 201
17,53 $ 7.7C October 17, 201
903,95 $ 5.9C September 14, 2013
3,030,86.

In conjunction with the October 17, 2007 Securiftagchase Agreement (Note 10), the Company isswdants to purchase up to 17,
shares of the ComparsyCommon Stock at $7.70 per share at any time gir@ctober 17, 2012. In conjunction with the SACeagnent (Not
10), the Company issued warrants to purchase 833%Bares of Common Stock and are exercisable 404t er share. The warrants
exercisable at any time within six years followitige sixmonth anniversary of the issuance of the warrddfgn vesting, the warrants .
exercisable to the extent that such exercise woatdresult in the beneficial ownership by SAC atddffiliates of more than 9.99% of
number of shares outstanding immediately aftemgj\gffect to the issuance of shares upon exerdigeeavarrants. The warrant also provi
that if the Company would issue securities in tineife at a purchase price that is less than theciseeprice of the warrant, then the exer
price of the warrant would be reduced to such lopeechase price, provided, however, that such &seqrice can never be lower than $!
which was the closing bid price of our shares andéy prior to the sale of our securities to SABe Warrant also provides that in the even
issue securities at a purchase price less thaex@reise price of the warrant, the number of shassable under the warrant shall be incre
by that number of shares determined by multiplyimg exercise price in effect immediately prior tels adjustment by the number of sh
issuable under the warrant immediately prior tchsadjustment and dividing the product thereof ®y/riew exercise price of the warrant (wi
can never be less than $5.90). Under this fornthla,maximum number shares would be issuable umgewarrant would be 903,955. 7
warrant provides that no adjustments shall be nfadeany shares sold to Mr. llles by the Company amthe 20068 Common Stoc
Agreement at any time prior to December 31, 2011.
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11. COMMON STOCK WARRANTS AND OPTIONS (CONTINUED)

In connection with a Securities Purchase Agreematht S.A.C. Capital Associates, LLC (“SAC é&ntered into by the Company on March
2007, the Company also issued warrants to SAC tchpise up to 833,333 shares of Common Stock ateraise price of $6.40 per share.
warrants are exercisable at any time within sixrydallowing the sixmonth anniversary of the issuance of the warrdrits.fair value of the:
warrants was estimated using the Bl&tkioles model and applying an estimated fair vatijastment related to warrant exercise restrict
which resulted in a de minimus fair value. Upontirgg the warrants are exercisable to the extest $hich exercise would not result in
beneficial ownership by SAC and its affiliates obma than 9.99% of the number of shares outstandimgediately after giving effect to t
issuance of shares upon exercise of the warraheswhrrant contains a provision that if a Fundaaleéhtansaction occurs, notably a chanc
control, within ninety days of the Fundamental Baction the warrant holder may require the Companyay the Blackscholes calculatt
value of the then unexercised warrant to the watalder in cash. The warrant also provides th#atéf Company would issue securities in
future at a purchase price that is less than tieecése price of the warrant, then the exerciseepsicthe warrant would be reduced to such I
purchase price, provided, however, that such esengiice can never be lower than $5.90 which waslbsing bid price of our shares on
day prior to the sale of our securities to SAC. Weerant also provides that in the event we is®eaisties at a purchase price less thal
exercise price of the warrant, the number of shiassable under the warrant shall be increasedhby number of shares determinec
multiplying the exercise price in effect immedigt@rior to such adjustment by the number of sh&ssable under the warrant immedia
prior to such adjustment and dividing the prodbetrr¢éof by the new exercise price of the warranti¢tvican never be less than $5.90). U
this formula, the maximum number of shares whichuldde issuable under the warrant would be 903,85%ctober 2008, the Compe
entered into an agreement which caused the nunflvearoants to be automatically increased to 903 5% the exercise price reduced to $
(See Note 11). In addition for a period of five ggaSAC has been granted the praptive right to purchase that number of securitieisic
offered for sale by the Company in order to mam®&AC’s prorata ownership of the Common Stock of the Compaligwing the issuance
any such securities by the Company.

In conjunction with a stock purchase agreementddBecember 15, 2006, the Company issued warramqsrthase 700,017 shares of Com
Stock and are exercisable at $6.40 per share dtiraeyprior to December 31, 2011. Of these warrabfisb43 were exercised during the
ended June 30, 2008.

On October 1, 2008, the Company and First Data MercServices Corporation, a wholly-owned subsydarFirst Data Corporation First
Data”), entered into a three year Joint Marketing Agreematsuant to the Joint Marketing Agreement, then@any and First Data agree(
jointly market and sell to vending operators anfi donk bottlers in the United States a prepaiddiag solution which utilizes the Compé's
ePort® device and First Data’s GDag contactless payment presentation device. The Marketing Agreement contemplates the sa
customers of up to 100,000 ePo&sand up to 25 million GOrags over the three year term of the agreement.Cldrapany would sell tt
ePorts® to the customers at retail pricing. The eP@twould accept credit cards, debit cards, and cdetstards as well as First Data’'s GO-
Tag.

At the time of entering into the Joint Marketing rdgment, the Company issued First Data performbased warrants to purchase u
1,500,000 shares of Common Stock. First Data whaick the right to purchase 500,000 of such shaiteégwiwo years of issuance at $5.25
share (the “A Warrants”), and 1,000,000 of suchreshavithin three years of issuance at $6.00 peesfie “B Warrants”)The A Warrants a
only exercisable by First Data if a minimum of 20ePorts® are sold to a customer pursuant to the Joint Mengesgreement prior to tt
expiration of the A Warrants. The B Warrants aréy axercisable by First Data if the A Warrants beeoexercisable and if a minimum
15,000 additional ePort® are sold to a customer pursuant to the Joint MengeAgreement following the date on which the A Véaut:
become exercisable and prior to the expiratiorhefB Warrants. In accordance with ASC 50&¢counting for Equity Instruments That /
Issued to Other Than Employees for Acquiring, o€Eomjunction with Selling, Goods or Servicefe Company will determine the fair matr
value of the warrants on their respective measunemates for determining the amount of expenseanyf, to record to Selling, General |
Administrative expense.

The Joint Marketing Agreement provides that FirsttdDhas the premptive right for a period of three years to pusghghat number
securities being offered for sale by the Compamyndusuch three year period in order to maintasmpitorata portion of the Common Stock
the Company following the issuance of any secwritiebe sold by the Company in any such subsegaentities offering.

As a result of the issuance of warrants to FirsiaDthe exercise price of the warrants held by G.Aapital Associates, LLC (“S.A.C.Has

been automatically reduced to $5.90 per share 60 per share, and the number of shares undgtlyese warrants has been automati
increased to 903,955 from 833,333, as requiredhéydrms of the Securities Purchase AgreementSvAhC. dated March 14, 2007.
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11. COMMON STOCK WARRANTS AND OPTIONS (CONTINUED)

In conjunction with the 2009 Rights Offering (Ndit8), the Company issued warrants to purchase 728%hares of Common Stock and
exercisable at $2.20 per share at any time pridbéoember 31, 2011. Additionally, the Company issaach of the two dealer manag
warrants to purchase 145,716 shares of Common 8tatkvere exercisable at $2.20 per share at arg/pirior to December 31, 2011.

In conjunction with the 2010 Public Offering (Ndt8), the Company issued warrants to purchase 2383hares of Common Stock which
exercisable at $1.13 per share at any time pridbéoember 31, 2013. Additionally, the Company islstlee placement agent warrant:
purchase 165,207 shares of Common Stock that wereisable at $1.13 per share at any time pridday 12, 2013.

The Companys Board of Directors has granted options to emmsyend Board members to purchase shares of Comtook & prices th.
were at or above fair market value on the dateshiens were granted. The option term and vesaigpdule were established by the cont
under which the options were granted.

Common Stock Option activity during the years endiede 30, 2010, 2009 and 2008 was as follows:

Weightec-

Exercise Average

Options Price Exercise

Outstanding Per Shart Price

Outstanding at June 30, 20 163,000 $ 75020 $ 7.7¢%
Expired (1,500 $ 20 $ 20
Outstanding and exercisable at June 30, : 161,50 $ 75020 $ 7.6
Granted - - -
Expired (1,500 $ 20 $ 20
Outstanding and exercisable at June 30, : 160,00( $ 7508 $ 7.52
Granted - - -
Expired - - -
Outstanding and exercisable at June 30, : 160,000 $ 7508 $ 7.52

The following table shows exercisable options, eiser prices, the weighted average remaining coiahtife and the aggregate intrinsic ve
for options outstanding as of June 30, 2010:

Weighted Averag:

Contractua
Options Options ExercisePrice Pel  RemainingLife (Years- Intrinsic Value-
Outstandinc Exercisable Share Qutstandinc Exercisable Outstandinc Exercisable
154,00( 154,000 $ 7.5C 1.72 08: $ —  $ =
6,00( 6,000 $ 8.0C 2.47 1.06 $ — $ —
160,00( 160,00( 1.7z 08: $ — $ —
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11. COMMON STOCK WARRANTS AND OPTIONS (CONTINUED)

The following table shows exercisable options, eiser prices, the weighted average remaining coiahtife and the aggregate intrinsic ve
for options outstanding as of June 30, 2009:

Weighted Averag:

Contractual
Options Options ExercisePrice Pel  RemainingLife (Years- Intrinsic Value-
Outstandinc Exercisable Share Qutstandinc Exercisable Outstandinc Exercisable
154,00( 154,000 $ 7.5C 2.27 14€¢ $ —  $ =
6,00( 6,000 ¢ 8.0C 3.47 1.4¢  $ — $ —
160,00( 160,00( 2.72 1.4¢ $ — $ —

As of June 30, 2010 all compensation expense tktatéhe vesting of options outstanding has beeogmrized as all options were vested ¢
June 30, 2010.

The total fair value of options vested during tleans ended June 30, 2010, 2009, and 2008 was $an@®242,315.
12. RETIREMENT PLAN

The Company’s 401(k) Plan (the “Plardllows employees who have completed six monthenfige to make voluntary contributions up
maximum of 100% of their annual compensation, dnee in the Plan. Through June 30, 2000, the Rlidnnot provide for any matchi
contribution by the Company; however, startinghet beginning of fiscal year 2001, the Company aredritie Plan to include a Compi
matching contribution up to 10% of an employeebmpensation. Effective January 1, 2003, the @Gomwypnay, in its discretion, make
matching contribution, a profit sharing contributiaand/or a safe harbor 401(k) contribution to Btten. Effective July 1, 2006, the Plan
restated to conform to provisions of the Economiov@h and Tax Relief Reconciliation Act of 2001 GERRA”) and other applicable la
and regulations. In fiscal years 2009, 2008 and’288 Company made safe harbor matching contribsitid 100% of the participastfirst 3%
and 50% of the next 2% of compensation deferrealtim Plan. The Comparsytontribution for the years ended June 30, 20009 2nd 20C
approximated $160,000, $189,000, and $197,000¢ectisply.

13. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the years ended June 30, 2010, 2009, an@, 200 Company incurred approximately $730,000 832X, and $317,000, respectively
connection with legal services provided by a mendfehe Company Board of Directors. At June 30, 2010 and 2009r@pmately $29,00
and $30,000, respectively, were due to this Boaeinber. During the years ended June 30, 2010, 26692608, the Company incur
approximately $59,000, $0, and $20,000 in connactigth consulting services provided by another membf the Companyg' Board ¢
Directors. At June 30, 2010 and 2009, no amountg wae to this Board member, who resigned as atdiref the Company effective May !
2010.

14. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
The Company conducts its operations from variousifi@s under operating leases. The Company leasg&9 square feet of space locate
Malvern, Pennsylvania for its principal executiviia@ and used for general administrative functicsedes activities, and product developn

The lease term expires on December 31, 2010. Asraé 30, 2010, the Company’s rent payment forféuiity is $37,373 per month.

The Company also leases 13,377 square feet of slmmeged in Malvern, Pennsylvania for its produetrehousing, shipping and custol
support. The lease term expires December 31, 264 6f June 30, 2010, the Company'’s rent paymenthisrfacility is $14,617 per month.

Since December 2004, the Company leased 2,837esfpetrof space located in Denver, Colorado foriagtnative functions, sales activit

and product warehousing associated with our energgagement products. The lease was set to expige 3a2009, at which time t
Company extended one additional month, through 2008, when the lease expired and the locationclesed.
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14. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)
Rent expense under operating leases was approyn®g&6,000, $612,000, and $598,000 during the yemaded June 30, 2010, 2009

2008, respectively. Future minimum lease paymanmiseaguent to June 30, 2009 under capital leases@nmhncellable operating leases al
follows:

Capital Operating
Leases Leases
2011 $ 216,38: $ 91,06«
2012 77,67¢ 3,36(
2013 8,12¢ 1,40(
2014 677 -
Total minimum lease paymer $ 302,86: $ 95,82«
Less amount representing interest 22,60:
Present value of net minimum lease paym 280,26:
Less current obligations under capital leases 197,77¢
Obligations under capital leases, less curreniqro $ 82,48¢

During September 2009, Mr. Jensen and the Compateyesl into an Amended and Restated Employmentehgeat which replaced his pr
employment agreement. The Agreement extended thedEMr. Jensers employment with the Company from June 30, 201il 8aptembe
30, 2012 and will automatically continue from yéaryear thereafter unless terminated as of theoénie original term or any such one y
renewal period by the Company or Mr. Jensen bgadtl60days notice. The period during which Mr. Jensendgeed not to compete w
the Company following his termination of employméat been increased from one year to two yearsJéhsen was granted 30,000 shar
common stock under the 2008 Stock Incentive Plaiciwhest as follows: 10,000 on the date of the &grent; 10,000 on April 1, 2010; ¢
10,000 on September 30, 2010. The Company hasdgweabtain and pay the premiums for a term lifsunance policy in the amount
$2,000,000 on the life of Mr. Jensen while he iplayed by the Company. Mr. Jensen has the righiegignate the beneficiary of the pol
The Company has agreed to obtain and pay the pmesniar a long term disability policy covering Mrerisen. If he shall become disal
while employed by the Company, the policy wouldvpde for monthly disability coverage of up to 65%His monthly base compensat
payable to age 65 or death. Mr. Jensen’s baseysass not changed from the prior employment agregme

The September 2009 Agreement also provides tiht.ilensen would terminate his employment withGmenpany for good reason (as defi
in the Agreement), or if the Company would terménais employment without cause (as defined in theeAment), then the Company wc
continue to pay to him his then annual base sdtara period of two years following the terminatioh his employment (or, if greater, -
remaining term of his employment). In addition, o@my such termination of Mr. Jense@mployment, the Company has agreed, at itsto
continue to provide Mr. Jensen with health insueabenefits for a period of 2 years substantialtyilsir to those which he had been recer
immediately prior to the date of termination. Tkent good reason as defined in the Agreement, ieslu@h) a material breach of the term
the Agreement by the Company; (B) the assignmerthéyCompany to Mr. Jensen of duties materiallpirsistent with his authorities, duti
responsibilities, and status as the Chief Execui¥ficer of the Company, or a material reductionatteration in the nature or status of
authority, duties, or responsibilities; (C) the Guany materially reduces Mr. Jensemate of annual base salary below the level irc
immediately before such reduction; or (D) a mategduction by the Company in the kind or levekaofiployee benefits to which Mr. Jense
entitled immediately prior to such reduction witihetresult that his overall benefit package is $igantly reduced unless such failure
continue a plan, policy, practice or arrangementaies to all plan participants generally. As adition to Mr. Jensen receiving any paym
or benefits upon his termination of his employmfentgood reason, Mr. Jensen shall have executedielicered (and not revoked) a releas
any and all claims against the Company and itiatft in form reasonably acceptable to the Company

The September 2009 Agreement also provides tlthéi€ is a change of control (as defined in thee&grent), and within 12 months therea
Mr. Jensen’s employment is terminated as a resulieoCompany giving a notice of noanewal of the Agreement, then the Company w
continue to pay to Mr. Jensen his then annual bakey for a period of two years following the témation of his employment, and, at its ¢
for such period of time would continue to provide. Mensen with health insurance benefits substinsiailar to those which he is receivi
immediately prior to the date of termination. As@ndition to Mr. Jensen receiving any paymentsardfits upon such a termination of
employment, Mr. Jensen shall have executed andedtel (and not revoked) a release of any and aiinsl against the Company anc
affiliates in form reasonably acceptable to the @any.
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14. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

The September 2009 Agreement defines a changentiotto include the following: (i) the acquisitidsy any person of beneficial ownershij
any capital stock of the Company if, after suchuégition, such person beneficially owns more th@moof either the total fair market value
the then-outstanding shares of the Company’s sturcthe combined voting power of the theutstanding securities of the Company entitle
vote generally in the election of directors; o} @ichange in the composition of the Board of Doex of the Company over a period of twe
(12) months or less such that the continuing dirscfail to constitute a majority of the Board; @if) the consummation of a merg
consolidation, reorganization, recapitalization statutory share exchange involving the Company @ala or other disposition of all
substantially all of the assets of the Companyria or a series of related transactions over an@@th period, unless, immediately follow
such transaction, all or substantially all of thdividuals and entities who were the beneficial ewnof the Companyg’ outstanding comm:
stock and outstanding voting securities immediapelgr to such transaction beneficially own, difgar indirectly, more than 50% of the then-
outstanding shares of common stock and the combiotdg power of the theoutstanding securities entitled to vote generallyhie electio
of directors of the resulting or acquiring corpéatin such transaction; or (iv) approval by thergholders of the Company of a comg
liquidation or dissolution of the Company.

During September 2009, Mr. Herbert and the Compamgred into an Amended and Restated Employmeraehgent which replaced his pi
employment agreement. The Agreement extended tlredeMr. Herberts employment with the Company from June 30, 201il 8eptembe
30, 2012 and will automatically continue from yeéaryear thereafter unless terminated as of theoénlde original term or any such one y
renewal period by the Company or Mr. Herbert bleast 60days notice. The period during which Mr. Herbers hgreed not to compete w
the Company following his termination of employméat been increased from one year to two yearsHehbert was granted 9,000 share
common stock under the 2008 Stock Incentive Plaitiwhest as follows: 3,000 on the date of the Agreset; 3,000 on April 1, 2010; a
3,000 on September 30, 2010. The Company has agveebtain and pay the premiums for a term lifeurasice policy in the amount
$1,500,000 on the life of Mr. Herbert while he mpoyed by the Company. Mr. Herbert has the righdésignate the beneficiary of the pol
The Company has agreed to obtain and pay the presniar a long term disability policy covering Mrekbert. If he shall become disak
while employed by the Company, the policy wouldvide for monthly disability coverage of up to 65%tis monthly base compensat
payable to age 65 or death. Mr. Herbert's baseysalas not changed from the prior employment agesgm

The September 2009 Agreement also provides thistrifHerbert would terminate his employment with tBempany for good reason

defined in the Agreement), or if the Company waigldninate his employment without cause (as defingtle Agreement), then the Comp
would continue to pay to him his then annual badarg for a period of two years following the temaiion of his employment (or, if grea
the remaining term of his employment). In additiappn any such termination of Mr. Herberémployment, the Company has agreed,

cost, to continue to provide Mr. Herbert with hkahsurance benefits for a period of 2 years sultisiéy similar to those which he had b
receiving immediately prior to the date of termioat The term good reason as defined in the Agre¢nrecludes: (A) a material breach of
terms of the Agreement by the Company; (B) thegassent by the Company to Mr. Herbert of duties mallg inconsistent with h
authorities, duties, or responsibilities, or a matgeduction or alteration in the nature or statd his authority, duties, or responsibilities)
the Company materially reduces Mr. Herbeiriate of annual base salary below the level iactfinmediately before such reduction; or (I
material reduction by the Company in the kind eeleof employee benefits to which Mr. Herbert igiged immediately prior to such reduct
with the result that his overall benefit packagsignificantly reduced unless such failure to coui a plan, policy, practice or arranger
pertains to all plan participants generally. Asandition to Mr. Herbert receiving any payments @néfits upon his termination of

employment for good reason, Mr. Herbert shall haxecuted and delivered (and not revoked) a reledsmy and all claims against
Company and its affiliates in form reasonably atakle to the Company.

The September 2009 Agreement also provides thherfe is a change of control (as defined in theeRgrent and described above), and w
12 months thereafter, Mr. Herbert's employmeneisinated as a result of the Company giving a rasfcnonrenewal of the Agreement, tr
the Company would continue to pay to Mr. Herbest thien base salary for a period of two years fdligvthe termination of his employme
and, at its cost, for such period of time wouldtoare to provide Mr. Herbert with health insurarbanefits substantially similar to those wt
he is receiving immediately prior to the date ofrtmation. The provision of Mr. Herbest'prior employment agreement that granted hir
right to terminate his employment with the Compamythe event of a USA Transaction has been revokeada condition to Mr. Herbe
receiving any payments or benefits upon such aitetion of his employment, Mr. Herbert shall haxeeuted and delivered (and not revol
a release of any and all claims against the Companjts affiliates in form reasonably acceptabléhe Company.
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14. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

During September 2008, Mr. DeMedio and the Compamgred into an amendment to his employment agneeragpiring June 30, 20(
pursuant to which he was granted 25,000 share®winin Stock under the 2008 Stock Incentive Planedhbt $4.44 per share which ves
follows: 8,000 on September 15, 2008; 8,000 on dgnw5, 2009; and 9,000 on June 30, 2009. Duriegyttar ended June 30, 2009, an
permitted under his employment agreement, Mr. DeMeencelled 2,902 shares of Common Stock helditwyih order to satisfy $5,340
payroll tax withholding obligations related to sesuwof Common Stock which vested during Septemb@8 2@der his employment agreement.

As previously provided in his employment agreembfit, DeMedio was granted the right to elect to hamehalf of his base salary for eact
the fiscal years ended June 30, 2007, and Jun@@®® paid in shares of Common Stock rather thah.dsls. DeMedio was also grant
options to purchase up to 7,000 shares of CommockSit $7.50 per share. The options vested aswsil@,334 on May 11, 2006; 2,333
June 30, 2007; and 2,333 on June 30, 2008. Thenspthay be exercised at any time within 5 yeangesfing. The Company recorded a non-
cash compensation charge of $16,068 related tatiet of restricted Common Stock Options during fikeal year ended June 30, 2(
Effective October 1, 2007, Mr. DeMedio’s base salaas increased to $195,000 per annum.

Effective October 2009, the Board of Directors gea@nMr. DeMedio additional fringe benefits in contien with his employment as Ch
Financial Officer of USA. The Company has agreedhtain and pay the premiums for a term life insgeapolicy in the amount of $750,(
on the life of Mr. DeMedio while he is employed the Company. Mr. DeMedio has the right to desigtlagebeneficiary of the policy. T
Company has agreed to obtain and pay the premiames Ibng term disability policy covering Mr. DeMedIf he shall become disabled wt
employed by the Company, the policy would providerfionthly disability coverage of up to 65% of hisnthly base compensation payabl
age 65 or death.

15. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Rights Offering

On July 7, 2010, we sold an aggregate of 261,958eshand related warrants to purchase up to 265/9&®s pursuant to a subscription ri
offering which was registered under the Act andchaaied on July 6, 2010. In connection with the 0ffg, Source Capital Group, Inc. actet
dealer manager. As compensation for its servicesrc® received warrants to purchase up to 15,7aveshat $1.13 per share at any
through July 7, 2013. The warrants contain prowvisior one demand registration of the sale of th@edying shares of common stock fc
period of five years at our expense, and piggyladistration rights for a period of five years at expense, and one demand registration
at the dealer managsréxpense for a period of five years. The offer sedd of the warrants was exempt from registratiotier Section 4(2)
the Act. The investors are accredited investotse ®ffer and sale thereof did not involve any gehedvertising or solicitation and 1
securities contained appropriate restrictive legamtler the Act.

Stock Purchase Agreement

On July 27, 2010, we executed a purchase agreesmena registration rights agreement with LincolmkR@apital, LLC (“LPC”). Under th
purchase agreement, we have the right to sell © WP to 4,851,408 shares of our common stock abption for an aggregate purchase [
of up to $5,000,000. Pursuant to the registratights agreement, we have agreed to register thenconstock that have been issued or me
issued to LPC under the purchase agreement. Weotlbave the right to commence any sales of oureshtr LPC until the registrati
statement has been declared effective. Thereafter, approximately 25 months, generally we haveritpet to direct LPC to purchase ug
4,851,408 shares of our common stock in amountsoujs0,000 shares as often as every two busingss wader certain conditions. T
purchase price of the shares will be based on #irkenhprice of our shares immediately prior totiee of sale as computed under the purc
agreement without any fixed discount. We may att@mg in our sole discretion terminate the purchageement without fee, penalty or «
upon one business days notice. We issued 150ji@@s of our common stock to LPC as a commitmemntfde entering into the purchs
agreement, and we are obligated to issue up t@@BGhares pro rata as LPC purchases up to $5@D0fCour common stock as directec
us. The securities offered and sold or to be swIdRC are exempt from registration as set fortheuiRule 506 promulgated under the Act. |
is an accredited investor, and there was no geselialtation or advertising.
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USA Technologies, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

15. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (CONTINUED)
Credit Card Company Agreement

On August 16, 2010, the Company and a major cadid company entered into an Acceptance and PrormadtAgreement. Pursuant to
agreement, the major credit card company agreedngrather things, to pay to the Company up to $EBD per year, for total payments of
to $750,000. The payments from the credit card @mpo the Company are to be used by the Compaay tre three year term of 1
agreement to support and promote the installatiah deployment of at least 50,000 additional ePdgf@ninals in vending machines. If
Company does not install at least 50,000 ePorts® the term of the three year agreement, the Coynwanld be required to refund a prate
portion of the funds.
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| tem 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accoumrmés on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.
None.

| tem 9A(T). Controls and Procedures.

(a) Evaluation of disclosure controls and proceslure

The principal executive officer and principal firtgad officer have evaluated the Companylisclosure controls and procedures as of Jur
2010. Based on this evaluation, they concludettiatdisclosure controls and procedures were effetti ensure that the information requ
to be disclosed by the Company in the reports ithfites or submits under the Securities Exchangs &f 1934 is recorded, process
summarized and reported, within the time periodcsigd in the Commissior’rules and forms and to ensure that informatiguired to b
disclosed by the Company in the reports thateisfibr submits under the Securities Exchange AtB8# is accumulated and communicate
the Companys management, including its principal executive aniticipal financial officers, or persons performisimilar functions, ¢
appropriate to allow timely decisions regardinguiegd disclosure.

(b) Management’s annual report on internal corak@r financial reporting.

Management of the Company is responsible for @stdby and maintaining adequate internal contr@rdinancial reporting as defined
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f). The Companiiternal control over financial reporting is aopess designed under the supervision o
Company’s management to provide reasonable assuragarding the reliability of financial reportimgd the preparation of the Company’
financial statements for external purposes in ataece with U.S. generally accepted accounting jpies.

In designing and evaluating our disclosure contesld procedures, our management recognized thelbslise controls and procedures
matter how well conceived and operated, can prowidg a reasonable, not absolute, assurance thattectives of the disclosure controls
procedures are met.

The Companys management assessed the effectiveness of iteahteontrol over financial reporting as of June 2010. In making th
assessment, it used the criteria set forth by tber@ittee of Sponsoring Organizations (COSO) of Theadway Commission in Inter
Control—Integrated Framework. Based on its assessmenagement believes that, as of June 30, 2B&0Companys internal control ov
financial reporting is effective.

This annual report does not include an attestatmort of the Company’ registered public accounting firm regarding in&rcontrol ove
financial reporting. Management’s report was ndtjsct to attestation by the Compasyregistered public accounting firm pursuant ti
exemption for smaller reporting companies undeti®e®89G of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform &uwhsumer Protection Act.

(c) Changes in internal control over financial nejny.

There have been no changes during the quarter ehdssl 30, 2010 in the Compasyinternal controls over financial reporting thatve
materially affected, or are reasonably likely tatenglly affect, internal control over financialp@rting.

| tem 9B. Other Information.

Not Applicable.
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P ART Il

| tem 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporée Governance.
DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Our Directors and executive officers, on August3110, together with their ages and business bacdkgis were as follows:

Name Age Position(s) Helc

George R. Jensen, . 61 Chief Executive Officer, Chairman of the Board afdators
Stephen P. Herbe 47 Chief Operating Officer and President, Direc
David M. DeMedia 39 Chief Financial Office

Douglas M. Luric 53 Director

Joel Brooks(2 51 Director

Steven D. Barnhart(1)(2)(: 48 Director

Jack E. Price(1)(z 64 Director

Bradley M. Tirpak(3’ 40 Director

Peter A. Michel(1)(2 67 Director

@ Member of Compensation Committ

2 Member of Audit Committe

3) Member of Nominating Committe

George R. Jensen, Jrhas been our Chief Executive Officer, Chairmad amirector since our inception in January 1992. Mnsers currer
term as a Director expires at the 2012 annual Bbéders’ meeting. Mr. Jensen was Chairman, Director, anceifCBkecutive Officer ¢
American Film Technologies, Inc. (“AFT”) from 19&mtil 1992. AFT was in the business of creatingpcahaged versions of black-anhite
films. From 1979 to 1985, Mr. Jensen was Chief Hkige Officer and President of International Filmo&uctions, Inc. Mr. Jensen was
Executive Producer of the twelve hour miniseries,D.”, a $35 million dollar production filmed in Tunisi&rocter and Gamble, Inc.,
primary source of funds, goroduced and sponsored the epic, which aired ircM&885 for five consecutive nights on the NBC roatw Mr.
Jensen was also the Executive Producer for the 4888al for public television, “A Tribute to Priegs Grace”From 1971 to 1978, Mr. Jens
was a securities broker, primarily for the firm&hith Barney, Harris Upham. Mr. Jensen was cho8988 Entrepreneur of the Year in the t
technology category for the Philadelphia, Pennsylvarea by Ernst & Young LLP and Inc. Magazine. Bensen received his Bachelo
Science Degree from the University of Tennessee iaral graduate of the Advanced Management ProgtatheaWharton School of t
University of Pennsylvania. From 1996 until Mard®08, Mr. Jensen was a Director of The Noah Fundb@lieve Mr. Jenser’position as tt
founder and Chief Executive Officer of our compatys intimate knowledge and experience with allez$p of our company, and

exceptional leadership and entrepreneurial skitvige the requisite qualifications, skills, persipees, and experiences to serve on our E
of Directors.

Stephen P. Herbewvas elected a Director in April 1996, and joinedAJ&n a full-time basis on May 6, 1996. Mr. Herbsrturrent term as
Director expires at the 2012 annual shareholdeegting. Prior to joining us and since 1986, Mr. végt had been employed by Pefsila, the
beverage division of PepsiCo, Inc. From 1994 toilA&k896, Mr. Herbert was a Manager of Market Siggtdn such position he was respons
for directing development of market strategy foe thending channel and subsequently the supermahasinel for Pepstola in Nortl
America. Prior thereto, Mr. Herbert held variougesaand management positions with Pepasia. Mr. Herbert graduated with a Bachela
Science degree from Louisiana State University. Mééeve Mr. Herbers position as the President and Chief Operatingc@ffof ou
Company, his intimate knowledge and experience witlaspects of our Company, and his extensive ingnexperience at PepsiCo bel
joining our Company provide the requisite qualifioas, skills, perspectives, and experiences teesen our Board of Director

David M. DeMedigjoined USA Technologies on a fullme basis in March 1999 as Controller. In the Swnwf 2001, Mr. DeMedio wi
promoted to Director of Financial Services wherewss responsible for the sales and financial daparting to customers, the Company’
turnkey banking services and maintaining and deie{p relationships with credit card processors aal associations. In July 2003,
DeMedio served as interim Chief Financial Officaraugh April 2004. From April 2004 until April 2009Mr. DeMedio served as Vi
President - Financial & Data Services. On April 2005, he was appointed as the Comparghief Financial Officer. From 1996 to Ma
1999, prior to joining the Company, Mr. DeMedio Hagken employed by Elko, Fischer, Cunnane and Aages;iLLC as a supervisor in
accounting and auditing and consulting practicerRhereto, Mr. DeMedio held various accountingigions with Intelligent Electronics, In

a multibillion reseller of computer hardware and configiona services. Mr. DeMedio graduated with a Bachelb Science in Busine
Administration from Shippensburg University andaiertified Public Accountant. From October 200Tilu®eptember 2008, Mr. DeMec
was a Director of GammacCan International, Inc.
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Douglas M. Luriojoined the board of directors of USA in June 19®8. Lurio’s current term as a Director expires at the 20lua
shareholders’ meeting. Mr. Lurio is President ofibu& Associates, P.C., attorneysiatw, which he founded in 1991. He specializes &
practice of corporate and securities law. Priordtee he was a partner with Dilworth, Paxson LLR. Murio received a Bachelor of A
Degree in Government from Franklin & Marshall Cgkee a Juris Doctor Degree from Villanova Law Schaold a Masters in Law (Taxati
from Temple Law School. We believe Mr. Lurdolegal background, his service as corporate céuosthe Company since 1992, and
intimate knowledge and experience with many aspafoteir Company provide the requisite qualificatipsakills, perspectives, and experier
to serve on our Board of Directors.

Joel Brooksjoined the board of directors of USA on March 2P02. Mr. Brooks’current term as a Director expires at the 2012 al
shareholdersmeeting. Mr. Brooks is the Chairman of our Auditn@uittee. Since December 2000, Mr. Brooks has seasdhe Chie
Financial Officer and Treasurer of Senesco Teclgief) Inc., a biotechnology company whose sharegdraded on the NYSE Amex St
Exchange. From September 1998 until November 2BB0Brooks was the Chief Financial Officer of BladBoard and Skate, LLC, a re
establishment specializing in the action sportaigtiy. Mr. Brooks was Chief Financial Officer frat®97 until 1998 and Controller from 1¢
until 1997 of Cable and Company Worldwide, Inc. &lgo held the position of Controller at USA Deterge Inc. from 1992 until 1994, a
held various positions at several public accounfings from 1983 through 1992. Mr. Brooks receivieid Bachelor of Science degree
Commerce with a major in Accounting from Rider Usmsity in February 1983. We believe Mr. Brookxtensive accounting and finai
background, and his executive experience at Senbsclonologies provide the requisite qualificatiosid]ls, perspectives, and experience
serve on our Board of Directors.

Steven D. Barnhanvas appointed to the Board of Directors in Octab@®9. Mr. Barnhart is Chairman of our Nominatingn@oittee and
member of our Audit and Compensation Committees. Béarnhart's current term as a Director expireghat 2011 annual shareholders’
meeting. Since January 2010, Mr. Barnhart has Begior Vice President and Chief Financial OfficEBally Total Fitness. Mr. Barnhart w
Chief Executive Officer and President of Orbitz \eride from 2007 to January 2009, after holdingeotbxecutive positions since 2003, w
he joined the company. Prior to Orbitz Worldwide, Wworked for PepsiCo and the Pepsi Bottling Graagmf1990 to 2003, where he v
Finance Director for the Southeast Business UnihefPepsi Bottling Group, and also held otheraeaii and strategic positions for Peps
and FritoLay. Mr. Barnhart received a Bachelor of Sciencgrde in Economics in 1984 from the University ofic2lgo and a Masters
Business Administration in 1988 from the UniversifyChicago. Mr. Barnhart served on the Board okbBlors of Orbitz Worldwide from 20

to January 2009. We believe Mr. Barnhaxtensive executive experience and leadershils,skind prior public board experience provide
requisite qualifications, skills, perspectives, axgeriences to serve on our Board of Directors.

Jack E. Pricewas appointed to the Board of Directors in Octd#¥9. Mr. Price is Chairman of our Compensation @Gittiee and a member
our Nominating Committee. Mr. Price’s current teama Director expires at the 2011 annual sharet®laeeting. Mr. Price was President
Chief Executive Officer of NovaRay Medical Inc. fina2007 to March 2009. Prior to that, he was Pregidad Chief Executive Officer of VS
MedTech Ltd. from 2003 to 2006, and was Presidedt Rivision Chief Executive Officer of Philips Mexdil Systems, North America frc
1996 to 2003, having joined Philips Medical Systemd993 as Vice President and General Managerwhie also with General Elect
Medical Systems from 1988 101993, where he hele Weesident and General Manager positions. MreRgceived his undergraduate de
from the University of Oregon. Mr. Price is alsod@iman of The Radiological Society of North AmerBaard of Trustees. Mr. Price servec
the Board of Directors of NovaRay Medical, Inc.nfr@007 to 2009 and of Health Solutions Systems, fioen May 1, 2008 to March 20
We believe Mr. Prices extensive executive experience, leadership s&illd prior public company board experience prowiue requisit
qualifications, skills, perspectives, and experenio serve on our Board of Directors.

Bradley M. Tirpakjoined the Board of Directors in February 2010. Wirpak is a member of our Nominating Committee. Wirpak’s currer
term as a Director expires at the 2012 annual blokders’ meeting. Since 2008, Mr. Tirpak has beaeldemployed investor who manage
portfolio of equities, fixed income and private @gunvestments. Mr. Tirpak also advises senior aggment and members of public comg
boards of directors on corporate governance, glyatad capital allocation. In 2008, Mr. Tirpak wasSenior Vice President at Chil
Investment Company in London. From 2003 to 2007, Mrpak was a Portfolio Manager at Sigma Capitalndlgement, managing a $.
million equity portfolio within a large multstrategy investment fund, affiliated with S.A.C.p@al Advisors, L.P. From 2000 to 2003, |
Tirpak was a Portfolio Manager at Caxton Associafgem 1997 to 2000, Mr. Tirpak was an analyst tireh Vice President at Credit Sui
First Boston. From 1993 to 1996 Mr. Tirpak was filnender and president of Access Telecom, Inc. angp&Access de Mexico S.A. de C.
telecommunications companies. Mr. Tirpak holds & B.E. from Tufts University and an M.B.A. from Gigetown University. Pursuant to
Settlement Agreement dated February 4, 2010 betweeiCompany, Shareholder Advocates for Value Ecdraent (the “Committee anc
certain other parties, the Committee appointed Nhpak as its director nominee, and the Compangedito nominate and recommend
Tirpak for election to the Board as a Class Il Bicg at the June 15, 2010 annual shareholdeegting. Pursuant to the Settlement Agreer
the Company also agreed to appoint Mr. TirpakhasGommittee’'s nominee, to the Nominating Committee

Peter A. Michewas appointed to the Board of Directors in Febr2@¥0. Mr. Michel is a member of our Compensatind Audit Committee:
His current term as a Director expires at the 28mfiual shareholdersheeting. Since 2006, Mr. Michel has been the pesdicnd chie
executive officer of iISECUREtrac Corp., a leadereilectronic monitoring products and services fag torrections market using glo
positioning satellite technology, and is also cotisea director of ISECUREtrac Corp. From 2005 @98, Mr. Michel was an Operations Te
Member for Cerberus Capital Management, L.P. am@gpendent consultant providing operations tunmadoadvice and services. From N
23, 2005 to July 8, 2005, he served as presidehthief executive officer of General Fiber Commauaticns on an interim basis. That comg
filed for Chapter 7 Bankruptcy on July 8, 2005. iir@003 to 2004, Mr. Michel was the president anifcbxecutive officer of NE
Broadcasting, LLC, an outsourced media servicespamy specializing in remote television productidrliiee sports and entertainment,
from 1988 to 2001, Mr. Michael was chief executofécer of Brinks Home Security. Mr. Michel was afficer in the U.S. Navy, and wa:
staff assistant to the President of the UnitedeStdiom 1971 to 1973. Mr. Michel holds a B.A. inlifical science from Colgate University &
an M.A. in public administration from the Univessiof Virginia. Mr. Michel served on the Board ofBctors of AeroGrow International, i



(AERO.OB) from July 2008 to July 2009. Pursuanthie Settlement Agreement mentioned above, the Ctaesmippointed Mr. Michel as
director nominee, and the Company agreed to nomirad recommend Mr. Michel for election to the Bbas a Class | Director at the June
2010 annual shareholders’ meeting. Pursuant t&étteement Agreement, the Company also agreedpoiripMr. Michel, as the Committez’
nominee, to the Audit and Compensation Committees.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE FINANCIAL EXPERT

The Board of Directors has a standing Audit Comemritpresently consisting of each of Mr. Brooks (@han), Mr. Barnhart and Mr. Mich
The Companys Board of Directors has determined that Joel Bsaskhe Audit Committee financial expert servimgtbe Audit Committee :
defined by applicable SEC rules. The Board has détermined that Mr. Brooks is “independeas such term is defined by applicable !
rules.

CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT AND ETHICS
Our Board has adopted a Code of Ethics, which weended and restated in May 2006 and further ameimdeéelbruary 2010, and applies tc

executive officers, directors and employees of @menpany, including our Chief Executive Officer, €hDperating Officer, Chief Financ
Officer, and Controller. A copy of our Code of Busss Conduct and Ethics is accessible on the Cofigparbsite, www.usatech.com.
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SECTION 16(A) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLI ANCE

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of41%% amended, requires the Comparditectors and executive officers, and persons
own more than 10% of the CompasyCommon Stock, to file with the Securities and i&amge Commission reports of ownership and ch:
in ownership of Common Stock. Officers, directorsd agreater than 10% beneficial owners are requbgdSecurities and Exchar
Commission regulations to furnish the Company withies of all Section 16(a) forms they file.

Steven D. Barnhart filed one late Form 4 during2b&0 fiscal year.
Item 11. Executive Compensation.
Compensation Discussion And Analysis

During the 2008 and 2009 fiscal years, and throDgtober 2009, our Compensation Committee consistegteven Katz and William Vi
Alen, Jr. Effective October 2009, our Compensatimmmittee consisted of Mr. Katz, Mr. Van Alen aratkl Price. Effective February 20
our Compensation Committee consisted of Mr. Kate, Rfice and Peter Michel. Effective May 2010 antha current time, our Compensal
Committee is comprised of Jack Price, Steven Batnlaad Peter Michel. The Compensation Committeeesponsible for reviewing a
recommending compensation and compensation chaogethe executive officers of the Company. The cengation of the two oth
employees named in the Summary Compensation Tabbietermined by the executive officers. The Chigédutive Officer assists t
Committee in determining the compensation of dileotexecutive officers and the other executivecef do not have a role in determir
their own compensation. Our Chief Executive Officegularly provides information to the Compensati@ommittee. The Compensat
Committee considers each component of executivepeosation in light of total compensation. In coesidg adjustments to the tc
compensation of the executive officers, the Comatms Committee also considers the value of pressmmmpensation.

We have developed a compensation policy that isgded to attract and retain key executives respbadior our success and motiv
management to enhance long-term shareholder vBEhge Compensation Committee believes that compemsati the Compang executiv
officers should encourage creation of shareholaérevand achievement of strategic corporate objestnd the Committee seeks to aligr
interests of the Company’s shareholders and manageby integrating compensation with the Compaiayisual and longerm corporate at
financial objectives. We believe that providing @xecutive officers who have responsibility for tiempanys management and growth v
an opportunity to increase their ownership of Conypstock aligns the interests of the executiveceffs with those of the shareholders. Du
the 2007 fiscal year, we adopted the Long Term tgqlnicentive Program for our executive officers arder to provide them with t
opportunity to further increase the number of shanened by them. That program expired on June 300.2In order to be competitive w
compensation offered by other technology compaaig$ to motivate and retain executive officers, @mmpany intends to offer a tc
compensation package competitive with other teampol companies as well as take into account indalidtesponsibilities ar
performance. The annual compensation package faeacutives primarily consists of:

° a base salar
° stock options
° restricted stock awarc
° cash and stock bonus
° long-term stock incentive awart
° other benefit:
Base Salary

Base salary is the fixed component of our execudifieer's annual cash compensation and is set with theajadtracting talented executi
and adequately compensating and rewarding therseimices rendered during the fiscal year. Our etkezwfficers’ employment agreemel
specify the level of salary to which the officereistitled, subject to review of our board of digrstor Compensation Committee from tim
time. During September 2008, and in connection \lith execution of amendments to their employmenéergents, we increased eacl
Messrs. Jensen’s and Herbert's base salary by spmately twelve percent. During October 2007, weréased Mr. DeMedig’ base sala
approximately eighteen percent. The base salafiesiroexecutive officers reflect the individugllevel of responsibility and performance
recommending base salaries of our executive offiterthe board of directors, the Compensation Cdteealso considers changes in dt
and responsibilities, our business and financiallts, the relationship among base salaries paidtiiers within our Company, and
knowledge of base salaries paid to executive aficd other technology companies. The base salboiesach of Messrs. Sagady and St
are set forth in their respective employment ageyes) and were established by our President afteuskions with each employee.

As set forth in their respective September 2009 leympent agreements, upon the termination of Mrséats or Mr. Herbers employmer
under certain circumstances or upon certain chahgentrol events involving the Company, we haveead to pay them their base salary 1
period of two years following termination of empiognt. We believe that these provisions are an itapbrcomponent of the executige’
employment arrangements.
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Stock Options

Stock options serve to ensure that executive manegeis properly focused on shareholder value.kStqtions align management incenti
with shareholdes objectives because options granted at fair Vadwe value only if the stock price increases oweetA vesting schedule al
keeps the executives focused on long term perfocmand not short term gains. During the 2009 figealr, no stock options were issue
our executive officers or employees and no preWoissued stock options became vested. For thalfigears 2008 and 2007, various s
options became vested that were granted to ouruéixecofficers at the time the officers entereditiieir employment agreements in
2006. During fiscal year 2007, the Company graritedur executive officers piggy back registratioghts in connection with the sha
underlying the options granted to them in their lEapment agreements.

Cash and Stock Bonuses

In addition to base salary, we may award variabEhdonus awards to our executives as well asshagadlable under our stock compense
plans. The shares awarded under our stock compemgaéns are registered under the Securities A@983, as amended. During Septen
2009, and in conjunction with the execution of theenended and restated employment agreements, areledvan aggregate of 39,000 sh
as a bonus to Messrs. Jensen and Herbert. Duripigr8ber 2008, and based upon past performancenacehsideration of the execution
amendments to their employment agreements, we adand aggregate of 220,000 shares to our exeafficers under our stock plans. Shi
were awarded under our stock plans to Mr. Sagadingluhe 2009 fiscal year upon the recommendatiooun President and based on
performance, to Mr. Sagady during fiscal year 2@li8suant to the terms of his employment agreensrd,to each of Messrs. Sagady
Shirey during the 2009 fiscal year pursuant totéres of their employment agreements. In additi@sed upon performance, Messrs. Sa
and Shirey each earned cash bonuses during fieeal2p09, and Mr. Sagady earned a cash bonusél fisar 2010.

Long-Term Equity Incentive Program

During February 2007, at the recommendation of@bhepensation Committee, the board of directors tdbihe LongFerm Equity Incentiv
Program covering the Company'’s executive officeMessrs. Jensen, Herbert and DeMedio. The purpoded®lan is to ensure continuity
the Companys executives, encourage stock ownership by theuéixes, align the interests of the executives whtbse of the shareholders, .
provide incentives and rewards to the executives are largely responsible for the management aodtyrof the Company. The Plan expi
on June 30, 2010.

Under the Plan, each executive officer will be alear common stock of the Company in the event thmpgamy achieves target goals rela
to each of revenues, gross profit and EBITDA dueagh of the fiscal years ended June 30, 2007, 3n2008, and June 30, 2009. EBITD.
defined as earnings before interest, taxes, degifesj and amortization, and excludes mash stock payments/awards and stock or
granted to officers and members of the board afadins. During each such fiscal year, the numbegligible shares to be awarded to
executive is based upon the following weightind¥of eligible shares are determined by revenu@®; 8f eligible shares are determinec
gross profit; and 30% of eligible shares are deitgechby EBITDA.

If the target goals (100%) for revenues, grossiprahd EBITDA are achieved by the Company during &pplicable fiscal year, the execu
officers would be awarded the following number loaes:

Fiscal Year Ended June ¢

2007 2008 2009 2010
George R. Jensen, . 178,57( 178,57( -- 178,57(
Stephen P. Herbe 53,71 53,71 -- 53,71¢
David M. DeMedia 21,66 21,66:¢ - 21,66¢

On February 4, 2009, the board of directors apptode recommendation of the Compensation Committeé the final twelve mon
measuring period under the Plan be changed frorfisdtal year ended June 30, 2009 to the fiscal geded June 30, 2010. The foregoing
approved by the board of directors as the boardirettors did not believe it would be appropriaieéward senior management with bon
during the current economic slowdown.

If actual revenues, gross profit, or EBITDA for arficular fiscal year exceed the target goals, eaatutive would be awarded additic
eligible shares, up to an amount no greater th&%dlaf the number of eligible shares. If the acteslenues, gross profit, or EBITDA fo
particular fiscal year are less than the targetsg@ach executive would be awarded a lepserrata portion of the number of eligible shares
minimum target goals for revenues, gross profitEBITDA for a particular fiscal year are not acteey no eligible shares will be awarde:
each executive. Up to 952,298 shares of commork stece reserved for issuance under the Plan.
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Based upon the financial results of the Companyfferfiscal year ended June 30, 2007, the targdt(@00%) relating to revenues was met
the minimum target goals relating to gross profitl &BITDA were not met. Substantially all of theogfR® units sold during the fiscal ye
consisted of units pertaining to the MasterCardFRag seeding program with substantially reducdihgedrices resulting in reduced gr
profit and EBITDA.

Managemens goal was to have the maximum number of unitsajeyl in the field as quickly as possible. The Congagion Committe
agreed with management that given the current sthtiee Companys business, it was more beneficial to the Compamyaximize the numb
of ePorts® in the field as soon as possible.

As a result, during September 2007, the Compems&@ammittee recommended to the board of directmasthe selling price of all the eP¢
® sold during the fiscal year be “normalizety the current retail price. This normalizationulésd in increased revenues, gross profit
EBITDA for the ePort® units sold in the MasterCard PayPass seeding prograe board of directors has approved the recordatém of thi
Compensation Committee.

As a result of the normalization, a higher thamgéarevenue hurdle was met (110%), and lower thaget hurdles for each of gross pt
(85%) and EBITDA (85%) were also met, resultinghie issuance to the executive officers of a tot#41,249 shares under the Plan for
2007 fiscal year rather than a total of 101,578resharior to the normalization. The specific allbaa of the shares among the exect
officers is as follows: Mr. Jensen-169,641 shakérs;Herbert- 51,028 shares; and Mr. DeMedio- 20,588res.

Based upon the financial results of the CompanyHerfiscal year ended June 30, 2008, a higher atthan the target revenue hurdle was
(125%) and the minimum target hurdles relating msg profit and EBITDA were not met, resulting e tvesting of a total of 126,973 sh:
under the Plan as of June 30, 2008. The speclficatlon of the shares among the executive officeiss follows: Mr. Jense89,285 share
Mr. Herbert- 26,857 shares; and Mr. DeMedio- 10,884res.

As was the case in fiscal year 2007, during the8Z3@al year a portion of the eP@&tunits sold consisted of units pertaining to the tdeSart
PayPass seeding program with reduced selling presdting in reduced gross profit and EBITDA. Asesult, during September 2008,
Compensation Committee recommended to the boadirexdtors that the selling price of all the eP@®tsold during the fiscal year ended J
30, 2008 as part of the seeding program be “nomadlito the current retail price. This normalizationuiésd in increased gross profit ¢
EBITDA for the ePort® units sold in the MasterCard PayPass seeding progrhe board of directors has approved the recordatam of th
Compensation Committee.

As a result of the normalization, a lower than ¢éafdgurdle was met for gross profit (85%), resultimghe issuance to the executive officers
total of 191,729 shares under the Plan for the &l year rather than a total of 126,973 shamésr to the normalization. The spec
allocation of the shares among the executive afice as follows: Mr. Jensen-134,820 shares; Mrbele- 40,553 shares; and Mr. DeMedio-
16,356 shares.

Based upon the financial results of the CompanyHerfiscal year ended June 30, 2010, a lower thy@et goal (85%) relating to revenues
met and the minimum target goals relating to groséit and EBITDA were not met. As a result, thenGaany issued to the executive offic
of a total of 86,342 shares under the Plan for20#0 fiscal year, as follows: Mr. Jensen-60,716ed$1aMr. Herbert18,261 shares; and I
DeMedio- 7,365 shares.

Other Benefits

During the 2008, 2009 and 2010 fiscal years, owrcetive officers were entitled to the health caozerage, group insurance and o
employee benefits provided to all of our employé&asing these fiscal years, and pursuant to thajpleyment agreements, we maintaine
automobile allowance payment program for each of eéxecutive officers as well as for Messrs. Sagady Shirey. As required unt
their September 24, 2009 amended and restatedogmeht agreements, we agreed to pay the premiuma 2,000,000 face amount
insurance policy on Mr. Jensen and for a $1,500f866 amount life insurance policy on Mr. Herb®ve also agreed to pay the premiums
supplemental long-term disability policy for eadhMessrs. Jensen and Herbert over and above tsérexiongterm group disability plan
the Company. In September 2009, we agreed to maprémiums for a $750,000 face amount life insuegmalicy on Mr. DeMedio and for
supplemental long-term disability policy for Mr. Bledio over and above the existing long-term groigalaility plan of the Company.

As discussed elsewhere in this Form 10-K, the Campareed to pay for health insurance benefitafwvo year period following Mr. Jensen’

and Mr. Herbert's termination of employment undertain circumstances and for a one year periodviotig Mr. DeMedios termination ¢
employment by the Company without cause.
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Impact of Taxation and Accounting Considerations orExecutive Compensation

The Compensation Committee and the Board of diredtike into account tax and accounting conseq@enicthe compensation program
weigh these factors when setting total compensatimhdetermining the individual elements of anycei®e officer's compensation package.

As a result of the normalization of the sellingcps of the ePort® described above in September 2007, certain tangetlds were m
resulting in the vesting of a total of 241,249 sisaunder the Plan for the 2007 fiscal year rathan ta total of 101,578 shares prior to
normalization. The value of the number of the shale executives may apply to tax withholding wasxcess of the minimum statut
obligation and, as a result the Plan is classifiea liability award rather than an equity award.stich, during the first quarter of fiscal y
2008, the Company reclassified the $599,311 relmebe 101,578 shares that was previously recoirdedmmon stock to a short-term share-
based payment liability. As the price of the Comparshares was $8.45 on the date of the approvhkaidrmalization, a charge of $1,180,
was also recorded to compensation expense, reiatibe additional 139,671 additional shares, wittberesponding amount to the shtater
share-based payment liability for a total shibased payment liability of $1,779,531 as of Sepem#i, 2007. On September 28, 2007, a
Company’s share price was $8.38, the total shased payment liability related to fiscal year 2006 $1,769,754 ($599,311 compens:
expense in fiscal year 2007 and $1,170,443 inliheetmonths ended September 30, 2007). Of the 24 k[2ares vested for fiscal year 2!
the Company issued 225,249 shares of common statkhe remaining 16,000 shares were exchangedebgxbcutives and redeemed by
Company to settle tax withholding obligations phjdthe Company totaling $134,080 in connection i restricted stock bonuses previo
awarded and issued to them under their employmgmgieanents. As a result of the fact that a portibthe remaining 225,249 shares w
subject to redemption at September 30, 2007, thmpaay had recorded the entire fair value of theseaining shares as a short-term share
based payment liability as of September 30, 2064ty $1,635,674. On December 30, 2007 the rediemprovision lapsed, no further she
were redeemed and the final settlement resulteal ieduction of the short-term shdvased payment liability of $1,635,674, a reduciid
compensation expense of $446,452 and a creditrtonum stock of $1,189,222 (123,671 shares at $41d7181,578 shares at $5.90), as
share price on the date of settlement was $4.77.

As a result of the normalization of the sellingcpriof the ePort® described above in September 2008, there is arti@uali charge ¢
$287,517, as of September 3, 2008, required takEntby our Company in connection with the addél@hares issued to our executives u
the Plan. Of the total charge of $1,043,006 todter by the Company on account of the shares adiamdmnnection with the 2008 fiscal ye
$755,489 is reflected in our financial statementstlie 2008 fiscal year and the balance of $287,84 0f September 3, 2008, is to be refle
in our financial statements in the first quartettod 2009 fiscal year. The Company will adjust tbenpensation expense related to this a
for changes in the fair value of this award untibf settlement occurs.

As a result of the change of the last twelve man#asuring period under the Plan from the fiscat yemled June 30, 2009 to the fiscal !
ended June 30, 2010, the short-term accrued #@med payment liability of $107,458 as of DecemBgr 2008 was reversed, witt
corresponding reduction to compensation expendagitire three months ended March 31, 2009.

The Plan permits the executives to satisfy anyrnmedax withholding obligations by electing to redube number of shares otherwise isst
to them under the Plan. For the fiscal year 200&rdwthe executives did not elect to reduce thebmurof shares issued under the Plan re
to the income tax withholding obligations on tharPthares, however, Mr. Jensen and Mr. Herber¢lditt to exchange 16,000 shares to ¢
tax withholding obligations paid by the Companyatotg $134,080 in connection with the restrictedcktbonuses previously awarded
issued to them under their employment agreemamtrinection with the fiscal year 2008 award, ogddeber 30, 2008, the executives ele
to cancel 57,118 of the 191,729 shares awarddueto to satisfy $113,093 of related income tax wittiimg obligations in connection with 1
shares.
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COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT

The following “Compensation Committee Repostiall not be deemed incorporated by reference antofiling under the Securities Act
1933, as amended, or under the Securities Exchaogef 1934, as amended, except to the extentttteeCompany specifically incorpora
this information by reference, and shall not otlisenbe deemed filed under such Acts.

The Compensation Committee reviewed the above Cosgtien Discussion and Analysis and discussed dtsteats with Compar
management. Based on the review and discussioasCtmmittee has recommended to the Board of Diredioat this Compensati
Discussion and Analysis be included in the FornK1f@r the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010.

Respectfully submitted:

Jack E. Price, Chairman

Steven D. Barnhart
Peter A. Michel
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Summary Compensation Table

The following table sets forth certain informatiaith respect to compensation paid or accrued byChmpany during the fiscal years en
June 30, 2010, June 30, 2009 and June 30, 20G& koot the executive officers and employees ofdbmpany named below:

Change ir
Pension
Non- Value and
Equity Nonqualified
Incentive Deferred
Name and Stock Option Plan Compensatic All Other
Principal Fiscal Bonus Awards Awards Compensatic Earnings Compensatio  Total
Position Year Salary %)) ($)(4) ($)(4) %) (6] $)(5) €3]
(@) (b) ®)(©) (d) (e) ® (©) (h) 0) 1)

George R. Jensen, .

Chief Executive Officer &

Chairman of the Boar 201C $365,00( $ — $ 52,50 $ — $ — % — 3 38,67 $456,17!
200¢ $354,23. % — $488,40( $ — $ — % — 3 27,07 $869,70¢
200¢ $325,00( $171,00( $ — $ — 3 — 3 — $ 26,87 $522,87!

Stephen P. Herbert

Chief Operating Officer &

Presiden 201C $320,00( $ — $ 15,75C $ — 3% — % — $ 32,41. $368,16:
200¢ $310,57° $ — $377,40( $ — $ — % — 3 27,07% $715,05:
200¢ $285,00( $ 61,00C $ — $ — 3 — 3 — $ 26,87 $372,87!

David M. DeMedio

Chief Financial Officel 201C $195,00( $ — $ — $ — 3 — 3 — $ 28,941 $223,94:
200¢ $195,00( $ — $111,00C $ — $ — 3 — 3 26,35 $332,35:
200¢ $187,49¢ $ 18,00( $ — $ — $ — $ — 3 24,84¢ $230,34¢

Cary Sagady

Sr. VP Network Solutions (! 201C $185,00( $ 13,20¢ $ $ — $ — $ — $ 15,997 $214,20¢
200¢ $187,08: $ 29,83¢ $ 79,75! $ — 3 — 3 — 3 17,000 $313,67¢
200¢ $130,80( $ 90,82: $ $ — 3 — 3 — $ 9,10¢ $230,73(

Bruce Shirey

Former VP ePort Connect

Services (2 201C $169,61¢ $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $  228,34! $397,96(
200¢ $180,00( $ 35,63( $ — $ — % — $ — 3 80,97¢ $296,60¢
200¢ $145,38! $ — $ 50,400 $ — 3 — 3 — 3 45,10: $240,88t¢

Q) Employment as Sr. VP of Network Solutions commenmeduly, 2 2008. Prior to that date, Mr. Sagadg WB of Engineering

2 Employment as VP ePort Connect Services commeneédigust 14, 2007 and was terminated on June 4).:

3) Represents cash bonuses paid based upon such’s performance during the fiscal ye

4) Represents the grant date fair value of awaasputed in accordance with stosised compensation accounting rules (FASB
Topic 718). A discussion of assumptions used irtudating award values is included in Note 10 of ensolidated Financi
Statements
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(5) The following table shows each component of theirmwl above title¢“ All Other Compensatio”

Company Long-term

401(k) Disability Life
Matching Insurance Insurance Auto Relocatior
Fiscal Contribution: Premiums Premiums Allowance Payments Severanci Total
Name ancPrincipalPosition Year ($) (%) ($) ($) ($) $ $

George R. Jensen, Jr.

Chief Executive Officer &

Chairman of the Boar 201C $ 9,80C $ 544t $ 5558 $ 17,87% $ — $ — $ 38,67
200¢ $ 9,20C $ — $ — $ 1787t $ — $ — $ 27,07t
200¢ $ 9,000 $ — $ — $ 1787 $ — $ — $ 26,87

Stephen P. Herbe

Chief Operating Officer &

Presiden 201C $ 980C $ 335 $ 138 $ 17,87% $ — $ — $ 3241
200¢ $ 9,20C $ — $ — $ 1787t $ — $ — $ 27,07t
200¢ $ 9,00C $ — $ — $ 1787t $ — $ — $ 26,87t

David M. DeMedic

Chief Financial Office 201C $ 9,80 $ 951 $ 31 $ 17,87 $ — $ — $ 28,94!
200¢ $ 8,471 $ — $ — $ 1787 $ — $ — $ 26,35
200¢ $ 6,97¢ $ — $ — $ 1787t $ — $ — $ 24,84¢

Cary Sagad

Sr. VP Network Solution 201C $ 8,07 $ — $ 124 $ 7,80C $ — $ — $ 15,997
200¢ $ 9,20C $ — $ — $ 7800 $ — $ — $ 17,00(
200¢ $ 1,30¢ $ — $ — $ 7800 $ — $ — $ 9,10¢

Bruce Shirey

Former VP ePort Connect

Services 201C $ — $ — $ 124 $ 14,42: $ 22,83¢ $ 190,96: $ 228,34!
200¢ $ — $ — $ — $ 15,00 $ 6597t $ — $ 80,97¢
200¢ $ — $ — $ — $ 12,11f $ 32,98 $ — $ 45,10¢

Grants Of Plan-Based Awards Table

The table below summarizes the amounts of awagenl to our named executive officers and emploglagsg the fiscal year ended June

2010:
All
All Other
Other  Option Grant
Stock  Awards Date
Awards Numbel Fair
Numbel of Value
of Secur- Exercist of Stock
Estimated Future Payouts Un Shares ities or Base and
Non-Equity Incentive Plan  Estimated Future Payouts Un of Stock Under- Price of Option
Awards Equity Incentive Plan Awarc or lying Option (1)
Grant Thresh Thresh
Name Date old Target Maximurr old Target Maximurr Units Options  Awards Awards
@ (b) @) _($)() ®)(e) (G10) (#)(9) # () (@]0) (@I0) ®K ®0
George R
Jensen, Ji 9/10/200¢ — — — — — —  30,00¢ — — $52,50(
Stephen F
Herbert 9/10/200¢ — — — — — — 9,00( — —  $15,75(
David M.
DeMedio — — — — — — — — — — $ —
Cary Sagad 9/30/200¢ — — — — — — 5,00( — — $ 8,75(
Bruce Shirey — — — — — — — — — - $ —

@ Amount represents the grant date fair value detexchin accordance with ASC 71
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Total Option Exercises And Stock Vested

The following table sets forth information regamlioptions exercised and shares of common stockirechjupon vesting by our named
executive officers and employees during fiscal 2010

Option Awards Stock Awards
Number of Number of Value
Shares Value Shares Realized on
Acquired on Realized on  Acquired on Vesting
Name Exercise (#) Exercise ($)  Vesting (#) ($)(1)
@ (b) © d) e
George R. Jensen, Jr.| — % — 20,000 $ 28,00(
Stephen P. Herbert(: — 3 — 6,000 $ 8,40(
David M. DeMedia — $ — — 3 =
Cary Sagady(4 — $ — 5,000 $ 6,11:
Bruce Shirey(5 — 3 = 2,000 $ 3,56(
(1) For awards classified as equity, the value equalaber of shares multiplied by the market value lom ¥esting date. For awa

classified as liabilities, the value equals the hanof shares multiplied by the market value onsiiement date
(2) Represents 10,000 shares valued at $1.70 thatdvesst®ctober 1, 2009 and 10,000 shares valued. & $iat vested on April 1, 20:
3 Represents 3,000 shares valued at $1.70 that vest®dtober 1, 2009 and 3,000 shares valued ad$fiat vested on April 1, 201

4) Represents 1,250 shares valued at $1.70 that vest8gptember 30, 2009; 1,250 shares valued a2 $ia6 vested on December
2009; 1,250 shares valued at $1.07 that vestedaneiV31, 2010; and 1,250 shares valued at $0.5&¢iséed on June 30, 201

(5) Represents 2,000 shares valued at $1.78 that vestddgust 31, 200¢
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Outstanding Equity Awards At Fiscal Year-End

The following table shows information regarding xeeeised stock options and unvested equity awaasted to the executive officers as of
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010:

Option Awards Stock Awards
Equity
Incentive
Equity Plan
Incentive Awards:
Plan Market or
Equity Awards: Payout
Incentive Number o Value of
Number o Plan Unearned Unearned
Securities ~ Awards: Market Shares, Shares,
Number of Underlyinc  Number of Number o Value of Units or Units or
Securities Unexer- Securities Shares or  Shares or Other Other
Underlying cised Underlying Units of Units of Rights Rights
Unexercise Options(# Unexercise Option Option Stock Tha Stock Tha ThatHave That Have
Options(#) Unexercis- Unearned Exercise  Expiration Have Not Have Not Not Vested Not Vested
Name Exercisable able Options(#) Price($) Date Vested(#) Vested($) # (%)
@ (b) (©) (d) (e) () )] (h) () ()}
George R
Jensen, Jr.,
Chief
Executive
Officer &
Chairman of
the Board (1, — — — — — — — 150,00 $ 75,00(
25,00( — — $ 7.5C 05/10/201: — — — —
25,00( — — 8 7.5C 06/28/201. — — — —
25,00( — — 3 7.5C 06/29/201. — — — —
Stephen P.
Herbert, Chie
Operating
Officer &
President (1 — — — — — — — 3,00 $ 1,50C
6,00( — — $ 7.5C 05/10/201: — — — —
6,00( — — 8 7.5C 06/28/201. — — — —
6,00( — — $ 7.5C 06/29/201. — — — —
David M.
DeMedio,
Chief
Financial
Officer (1) 2,33¢ — — 8 7.5C 05/10/201. — — — 3 =
2,33 — — $ 7.5C 06/28/201: — — — —
2,33 — — $ 7.5C 06/29/201. — — — —

Reflects shares issuable to Mr. Jensen undegrhployment agreement10,000 shares that are expected to vest on Ocfigkp1(
and 140,000 shares only issuable upon the occuwereina USA Transaction; reflects shares issuabteeuMr. Herberts employmer
agreement that have not vested as of June 30, Z0&0options expiring on May 10, 2011, June 28 2@hd June 29, 2013 vestec
May 11, 2006, June 30, 2007 and June 29, 2008 ctsply.

(1)

Executive Employment Agreements

George R. Jensen, Jr.

On May 11, 2006, the Company and Mr. Jensen entatecan Amended and Restated Employment Agreemaistiant to which the term
Mr. Jensen’s employment with the Company was exddrd June 30, 2009. Effective May 11, 2006, Mnséas base salary was increase
$325,000 per annum. The Agreement requires Mr.efetts devote his full time and attention to theibess and affairs of the Company,
obligates him not to engage in any investmentstivides which would compete with the Company dgrthe term of the Agreement and fi
period of one year thereafter. Mr. Jensen was gdatite right (exercisable at any time prior to &@h day following the commencemen
each fiscal year) to elect to have -half of his base salary for each of the fiscal gemrded June 30, 2007, June 30, 2008, and Jurg@¢



paid in shares of common stock rather than cashJktisen has elected to receive shares in lieashf for onéhalf of his base salary for t
fiscal year ended June 30, 2007. As a result dfi gliection, 22,080 shares will be issued to himictvlwill vest as follows: 5,520 on July
2006; 5,520 on October 1, 2006; 5,520 on Janua®PQ7; and 5,520 on April 1, 2007. Mr. Jensen was granted 75,000 shares of comi
stock and an additional amount of options to pusehap to 75,000 shares of common stock at $7.58@e. The 75,000 shares of com
stock vest as follows: 25,000 on June 1, 2006;®@bdnh January 1, 2007; and 25,000 on June 1, Z0@/options vest as follows: 25,000
May 11, 2006; 25,000 on June 30, 2007; and 25,000ume 30, 2008. The options may be exercisedyatime within 5 years of vesting.
October 2006, the Company granted to Mr. Jensegypack registration rights under the 1933 Act for shares described above for a pe
of five years following the vesting of any such @sand the shares underlying any of the optiossriteed above for a period of five ye
following the vesting of any such options.
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During September 2008, Mr. Jensen and the Compateyezl into an amendment to his employment agreemesuant to which the term
Mr. Jensers employment with the Company was extended frone By 2009 until June 30, 2011, and his annual balsey was increased
$365,000 effective October 1, 2008. In addition, Mensen was also granted 110,000 shares of corstock under the 2008 Stock Incen
Plan which vest as follows: 36,000 on Septembef@88; 37,000 on January 15, 2009; and 37,000 oe 30, 2009.

On September 24, 2009, Mr. Jensen and the Compwdased into an Amended and Restated Employmentehgeat which replaced his pr
employment agreement. The Agreement extended thedeMr. Jensers employment with the Company from June 30, 201il 8aptembe
30, 2012 and will automatically continue from yeéaryear thereafter unless terminated as of theoénlde original term or any such one y
renewal period by the Company or Mr. Jensen bgagdt|90days notice. The period during which Mr. Jensendgreed not to compete w
the Company following his termination of employméat been increased from one year to two yearsJéhsen was granted 30,000 shar
common stock under the 2008 Stock Incentive Plaiciwhest as follows: 10,000 on October 1, 20090@0,0n April 1, 2010; and 10,000
September 30, 2010. The Company has agreed tonadtdi pay the premiums for a term life insurandécpadn the amount of $2,000,000
the life of Mr. Jensen while he is employed by @@mpany. Mr. Jensen has the right to designatéeheficiary of the policy. The Compe
has agreed to obtain and pay the premiums for plemygntal long term disability policy covering Miensen over and above the existing long-
term group disability plan of the Company. If hakibecome disabled while employed by the Compémgy policy would provide for montr
disability coverage of up to 65% of his monthly d@®@mpensation payable to age 65 or death. If dhieypwould not provide at least 65%
his monthly base salary, then the Company has dgoemake monthly payments to Mr. Jensen in an amegual to the difference betwse
the monthly benefit provided under such policy &586 of Mr. Jensen’s monthly base salary; providemyever, that the Comparsytota
obligation shall not exceed $110,000. Mr. Jensba%e salary was not changed from the prior emplayieigreement.

The September 24, 2009 Agreement also providesiftivtit Jensen would terminate his employment vilte Company for good reason
defined in the Agreement), or if the Company waigldninate his employment without cause (as definatle Agreement), then the Comp
would continue to pay to him his then annual badarg for a period of two years following the temaiion of his employment (or, if grea
the remaining term of his employment). In additiopon any such termination of Mr. Jenseemployment, the Company has agreed,
cost, to continue to provide Mr. Jensen with heaiurance benefits for a period of 2 years sulisthnsimilar to those which he had b
receiving immediately prior to the date of termioat The term good reason as defined in the Agre¢nrecludes: (A) a material breach of
terms of the Agreement by the Company; (B) thegassent by the Company to Mr. Jensen of duties niadtiemconsistent with his authoritie
duties, responsibilities, and status as the Chiefchtive Officer of the Company, or a material r&téhn or alteration in the nature or statu
his authority, duties, or responsibilities; (C) tBempany materially reduces Mr. Jenserate of annual base salary below the level iac
immediately before such reduction; or (D) a mategduction by the Company in the kind or levekafiployee benefits to which Mr. Jense
entitted immediately prior to such reduction witietresult that his overall benefit package is $igantly reduced unless such failure
continue a plan, policy, practice or arrangementaies to all plan participants generally. As adition to Mr. Jensen receiving any paym
or benefits upon his termination of his employmientgood reason, Mr. Jensen shall have executedialhgred (and not revoked) a releas
any and all claims, suits, or causes of actionregahe Company and its affiliates in form reasdyabceptable to the Company.

The September 24, 2009 Agreement also providesathatcondition of the consummation of a USA Tratisa (as defined in the Agreeme
the successor to the Company’s business or assetklvagree to assume and perform Mr. Jessemployment agreement. If any s
successor would not do so, Mr. Jenseaimployment would terminate on the date of thesesommation of the USA Transaction, and
Company would continue to pay to Mr. Jensen his tinual base salary for a period of two yearewahg the termination of his employm
(or, if greater, the remaining term of his employmend, at its cost, for a period of two years ldawontinue to provide Mr. Jensen with he
insurance benefits substantially similar to thoddéctv he is receiving immediately prior to the datéermination.

As provided in his prior employment agreement, uffus occurrence of a USA Transaction, the Compaitlyisgue to Mr. Jensen 140,C
shares of common stock subject to adjustment fockssplits or combinations (“Jensen Sharel). Jensen is not required to pay

additional consideration for the Jensen Shareshdttime of any USA Transaction, all of the JenSéiares are automatically deemed t
issued and outstanding immediately prior to any USAnsaction, and are entitled to be treated asoimgr issued and outstanding share
common stock in connection with such USA Transactithe Jensen Shares are irrevocable and fulle@ebiive no expiration date, and

not be affected by the termination of Mr. Jensemgloyment with the Company for any reason whatsoev

The term USA Transaction is defined as (i) the &itjon of fifty-one percent or more of the thentstanding voting securities entitled to vote
generally in the election of Directors of the Compéy any person, entity or group, or (ii) the ap@l by the shareholders of the Company of
a reorganization, merger, consolidation, liquidatior dissolution of the Company, or the sale,dfan lease or other disposition of all or
substantially all of the assets of the Companyjiipra change in the composition of the Board dfdators of the Company over a period of
twelve (12) months or less such that the contindlingctors fail to constitute a majority of the Boa
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Stephen P. Herbert

On May 11, 2006, the Company and Mr. Herbert edtér®® an Amended and Restated Employment Agreepasuant to which the term
Mr. Herbert's employment with the Company was ed&zhto June 30, 2009. Effective May 11, 2006, Merliérts base salary was increa
to $285,000 per annum. The Agreement requires Mrbett to devote his full time and attention to Ibfusiness and affairs of the Company
obligates him not to engage in any investmentsctivides which would compete with the Company darihe term of the agreement and f
period of one year thereafter. In the event thetSsA Transaction (as defined in Mr. Jenseemployment agreement) shall occur, then
Herbert has the right to terminate his agreemenh80 days notice to USA. Mr. Herbert was grante@®0 shares of common stock ant
additional amount of options to purchase up to @8,6hares of common stock at $7.50 per share. Ulg®6 shares of common stock ves
follows: 16,667 on June 1, 2006; 16,667 on Jan®aB007; and 16,666 on June 1, 2007. The optioasagefollows: 6,000 on May 11, 20
6,000 on June 30, 2007; and 6,000 on June 30, db@Boptions may be exercised at any time withiyreérs of vesting. In October 2006,
Company granted to Mr. Herbert piggyback registratiights under the 1933 Act for the shares deedribove for a period of five ye
following the vesting of any such shares and thereshunderlying any of the options described alfova period of five years following t
vesting of any such options.

During September 2008, Mr. Herbert and the Compangred into an amendment to his employment agnetepugsuant to which the term
Mr. Herberts employment with the Company was extended frone B 2009 until June 30, 2011, and his annual salsey was increased
$320,000 effective October 1, 2008. In addition, Merbert was also granted 85,000 shares of constamk under the 2008 Stock Incen
Plan which vest as follows: 28,000 on Septembe2@88; 28,000 on January 15, 2009; and 29,000 oe 30, 2009.

On September 24, 2009, Mr. Herbert and the Compatsred into an Amended and Restated Employmergehgent which replaced his pi
employment agreement. The Agreement extended tireadeMr. Herberts employment with the Company from June 30, 201l 8aptembe
30, 2012 and will automatically continue from yeéaryear thereafter unless terminated as of theoénlde original term or any such one y
renewal period by the Company or Mr. Herbert bieast 90edays notice. The period during which Mr. Herbers bhgreed not to compete w
the Company following his termination of employméas been increased from one year to two yearsHehbert was granted 9,000 share
common stock under the 2008 Stock Incentive Plaithviiest as follows: 3,000 on October 1, 2009; 3,06 April 1, 2010; and 3,000
September 30, 2010. The Company has agreed tanaotdi pay the premiums for a term life insurandépan the amount of $1,500,000
the life of Mr. Herbert while he is employed by tempany. Mr. Herbert has the right to designagebtbneficiary of the policy. The Comp:
has agreed to obtain and pay the premiums for plegntal long term disability policy covering Mierbert over and above the existing long-
term group disability plan of the Company. If haklbecome disabled while employed by the Compémgy policy would provide for montt
disability coverage of up to 65% of his monthly @é@®mpensation payable to age 65 or death. Mr.dtestbase salary was not changed 1
the prior employment agreement.

The September 24, 2009 Agreement also providesiftivit Herbert would terminate his employment witte Company for good reason
defined in the Agreement), or if the Company wagldninate his employment without cause (as defingtle Agreement), then the Comp
would continue to pay to him his then annual badarg for a period of two years following the temaiion of his employment (or, if grea
the remaining term of his employment). In additiappn any such termination of Mr. Herberémployment, the Company has agreed,
cost, to continue to provide Mr. Herbert with hkahsurance benefits for a period of 2 years sultisiéy similar to those which he had b
receiving immediately prior to the date of termioat The term good reason as defined in the Agre¢nrecludes: (A) a material breach of
terms of the Agreement by the Company; (B) thegassent by the Company to Mr. Herbert of duties mallg inconsistent with h
authorities, duties, or responsibilities, or a mataeduction or alteration in the nature or statd his authority, duties, or responsibilities)
the Company materially reduces Mr. Herbeiriate of annual base salary below the level iactfinmediately before such reduction; or (I
material reduction by the Company in the kind @eleof employee benefits to which Mr. Herbert isiged immediately prior to such reduct
with the result that his overall benefit packagsignificantly reduced unless such failure to coumi a plan, policy, practice or arranger
pertains to all plan participants generally. Asandition to Mr. Herbert receiving any payments @néfits upon his termination of

employment for good reason, Mr. Herbert shall hexecuted and delivered (and not revoked) a relebaey and all claims, suits, or cause
action against the Company and its affiliates ilmfeeasonably acceptable to the Company.

The September 24, 2009 Agreement also providesathatcondition of the consummation of a USA Tratiea (as defined in the Agreeme
the successor to the Company’s business or assetil vagree to assume and perform Mr. HerBegthployment agreement. If any s
successor would not do so, Mr. Herbemployment would terminate on the date of consatiom of the USA Transaction, and the Comg
would continue to pay to Mr. Herbert his then baakary for a period of two years following the témation of his employment (or, if great
the remaining term of his employment), and, atdst, for a period of two years would continue tovide Mr. Herbert with health insurar
benefits substantially similar to those which heeseiving immediately prior to the date of terntioa. The provision of Mr. Herbes' priol
employment agreement that granted him the righétminate his employment with the Company in thengwof a USA Transaction has b
revoked.
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David M. DeMedio

On May 11, 2006, the Company and Mr. DeMedio enténeo an amendment to his Employment Agreemerdyamnt to which the term of \
DeMedio’s employment with the Company was extended to 30n2008, and which has subsequently been autamiptéextended to June !
2011. Effective May 11, 2006, Mr. DeMedsobase salary was increased to $165,000 per anndrafiective October 1, 2007, his base s:
was increased to $195,000 per annum. Mr. DeMedis granted options to purchase up to 7,000 share®minon stock at $7.50 |
share. The options vest as follows: 2,334 on Magy2006; 2,333 on June 30, 2007; and 2,333 on JOn2a®8. The options may be exerc
at any time within 5 years of vesting. In Octob80@, the Company granted to Mr. DeMedio piggybaakistration rights under the 1933 .
for the shares underlying any of the options descriabove for a period of five years following tlesting of any such options. In the event
a USA Transaction (as defined in Mr. Jensesmployment agreement) shall occur, then Mr. Deblbds the right to terminate his agreer
upon 30 days notice to the Company.

During September 2008, Mr. DeMedio and the Compamtgred into an amendment to his employment agmneemeasuant to which he w
granted 25,000 shares of common stock under th8 30fck Incentive Plan which vest as follows: 8,@d0September 15, 2008; 8,00C
January 15, 2009; and 9,000 on June 30, 2009.

On September 24, 2009, the Company agreed to obtaipay the premiums for a term life insurancécgah the amount of $750,000 on
life of Mr. DeMedio while he is employed by the Cpamy. Mr. DeMedio has the right to designate theeffieiary of the policy. The Compa
has agreed to obtain and pay the premiums for plemental long term disability policy covering MdeMedio over and above the exis!
longterm group disability plan of the Company. If heallbecome disabled while employed by the Compaémy,policy would provide f
monthly disability coverage of up to 65% of his rtitdyp base compensation payable to age 65 or ddditr. DeMedio’s employment with tt
Company would be terminated without cause, the Gomhas agreed, at its cost, to continue to proMdeDeMedio with health insuran
benefits substantially similar to those which heeseiving immediately prior to the date of terntioa for a one year period following st
termination.

Potential Payments Upon Termination Or Change Of Cotrol

As described above and herein, each of the emplolyagreements of our executive officers includevizions for the payment and/or
provision of benefits to the executives upon teation of employment under certain conditions or@AUrransaction.

The term USA Transaction means: (i) the acquisitiriifty-one percent or more of the then outstanding vosiecurities entitled to vc
generally in the election of Directors of the Compéy any person, entity or group, or (ii) the apfa by the shareholders of the Compar
a reorganization, merger, consolidation, liquidatior dissolution of the Company, or the sale, 4¢fan lease or other disposition of al
substantially all of the assets of the Companyjigra change in the composition of the Board dfe@tors of the Company over a periot
twelve (12) months or less such that the contindlingctors fail to constitute a majority of the Boa
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The following table describes the stock awardsabii by us to each of our executive officers ugom accurrence of a USA Transac
assuming that such USA Transaction occurred on 30n2010, when the closing price per share ofXbmpany’s common stock was $0.50:

Upon

Occurrence
of

USA
Name Transactior
George R. Jensen, . $ 100,358(1
Stephen P. Herbe $ 9,131(2
David M. DeMedic $ 3,683(3

@ Represents (i) 60,716 shares issuable to Mr. Jdnsé¢he fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 pursuatitet Lon-Term Equity Incentiv
Program; and (ii) 140,000 shares issuable to Mrsdie upon the occurrence of a USA Transac

2 Represents 18,261 shares issuable to Mr. Herhetthiédfiscal year ended June 30, 2010 pursuafitet@bmpan’s Lon¢-Term Equity
Incentive Programr

3) Represents 7,365 shares issuable to Mr. DeMedithe fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 purstgatiie Company’s Longerm Equit
Incentive Programr

As described above under “Executive Employment Agrents”,the September 24, 2009 employment agreement bettheeBompany ar
Mr. Jensen provides that the Company is requiregréwide Mr. Jensen with certain payments and bsnepon the termination by t
Company of his employment without cause or uportéhmination by Mr. Jensen of his employment foodjoeason or upon termination of
employment if a successor to the Comparyisiness or assets does not agree to assumerdoichphis employment agreement as a conc
to the consummation of a USA Transaction. Assuntivag any such termination occurred on June 30, 2846 these provisions had bee
effect on such date, and assuming there would & tlean two years remaining in his term of emplayn&ir. Jensen would receive
aggregate cash payment of twice his annual baseysat $730,000, and the Company would pay heahrance premiums for a two y
period following termination in the aggregate amoofn$28,296. The aforesaid premium amount is basedn estimated monthly premiun
$1,179.

As described above under “Executive Employment Agrents”,the September 24, 2009 employment agreement bettheeBompany ar
Mr. Herbert provides that the Company is requirecptovide Mr. Herbert with certain payments anddfige upon the termination by t
Company of his employment without cause or upontéhneination by Mr. Herbert of his employment farogl reason or upon terminatior
his employment if a successor to the Compsrhsiness or assets does not agree to assumesdonthphis employment agreement ¢
condition to the consummation of a USA Transacti@ssuming that any such termination occurred ore B 2010, and these provisions
been in effect on such date, aamgsuming there would be less than two years rengaini his term of employment, Mr. Herbert would ese
an aggregate cash payment of twice his annualdsaey or $640,000, and the Company would pay héadturance premiums for a two y
period following termination in the aggregate amoofn$54,744. The aforesaid premium amount is basedn estimated monthly premiun
$2,281.

As described above under “Executive Employment Agrents”, if Mr. DeMedics employment with the Company would be terminatgthl
Company without cause, the Company would pay healbrance premiums for a one year period followiagmination in the aggreg:
amount of $14,148. The aforesaid premium amoubased on an estimated monthly premium of $1,179.

The August 2007 employment agreement of Bruce $lpirevides that upon the termination or expiratdrnis employment with the Compe
for any reason whatsoever (other than his voluntasignation), he is entitled to receive a severgrayment equal to one times his then ar
base salary payable in twelve equal monthly insiafits. Mr. Shireys employment was terminated by the Company on durgd10. Th
Company will pay to Mr. Shirey his annual base ralsf $180,000 over a twelve month period. In addit and in exchange for cert
agreements made by Mr. Shirey for the benefit ef@lompany in connection with his termination of émgment, the Company agreed to
to him the sum of $10,384.62.

Compensation Committee Interlocks And Insider Parttipation

During the fiscal year 2010, Steven Katz, WillianarVAlen, Jr., Jack Price, Steven Barnhart and Rdiehel served at various times
members of the Compensation Committee of our bo&irectors. No member of the Compensation Conemitvas an employee or forr
employee of our company or any of our subsidiade$iad any relationship with us requiring disclesherein.

During the last fiscal year, none of our executdfficers served as: (i) a member of the compensat@mmmittee (or other committee of
board of directors performing equivalent functiamsin the absence of any such committee, theeehtiard of directors) of another entity,
of whose executive officers served on our Compéms&ommittee; (ii) a director of another entityyeoof whose executive officers servec
our Compensation Committee; or (ii) a member & ttompensation committee (or other committee ofltbard of directors performil
equivalent functions or, in the absence of any ssmhmittee, the entire board of directors) of aroténtity, one of whose executive offic
served as a director on our board of directors.
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Compensation Of Directors

Members of the board of directors receive casheauity compensation for serving on the board aators, as determined from time to time
by the Compensation Committee with subsequent &pptbereof by the board of directors.

Director Compensation Table

The table below summarizes the compensation eanngdid in cash by the Company to non-employeedbirs during the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2010.

Change in
Pension
Value and
Non-Equity  Nonqualified
Fees Earne Incentive Deferred All Other
or Paid in  Stock Awards Option Compensatic Compensatic Compensatic
Name Cash($) (%) Awards($) Plan($) Earnings($) (%) Total($)
@) (b) (©) (d) (e) U] )] (h)
Steven D. Barnha $ 22,50C $ — — $ — 3 — $ — % 22,50(
Joel Brooks $ 30,00C $ — — $ — 3 — $ — 3 30,00(
Steven Katz (1 $ 28,75( $ — % — 3 — $ — 3 — 8 28,75(
Douglas M. Luria $ 20,00C $ — — $ — $ — 3 — $ 20,00(
Stephen W. McHugh (z  $ 7,50C $ — — 3 — $ — $ — 3 7,50(
Peter A. Miche $ 20,00 $ — % — 3 — $ — $ — 8 20,00(
Jack E. Prict $ 22,50C $ — — $ — $ — $ — % 22,50(
Bradley M. Tirpak $ 10,000 $ — — $ — 3 — $ — $ 10,00(
William L. Van Alen, Jr (3 $ 20,000 $ — % — $ — $ — 3 — 8 20,00(

(1) Mr. Katz resigned as a Director on May 13, 2010

(2) Mr. McHugh resigned as a Director on October29.

(3) Mr. Van Alen resigned as a Director on Februgrg2010.

During fiscal year 2010, and included in the abtalde, we paid the following fees during the fisgahr:

« Director: each of Messrs. Brooks and Lurio $20,000, Katz $17,500, each of Messrs. Barnhart andeP#15,000, each
Messrs. Van Alen, Michel and Tirpak $10,000 and McHugh $5,000

o Audit Committee: Mr. Brooks $10,000, Mr. Barnh&it,500, each of Messrs. Van Alen and Michel $5,800 each of Mess
McHugh and Katz $2,50(

« Compensation Committee: Mr. Katz $8,750, Mr. P8e500 and each of Messrs. Van Alen and MichelCi%,0
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Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial @vners and Management and Related Shareholder Matter

Common Stock

The following table sets forth, as of June 30, 20tb@ beneficial ownership of the common stock aéheof the Compang’ directors ar
executive officers, the other employees named énstimmary compensation table set forth above, dsawdy the Compang’directors ar
executive officers as a group. Except as set fbeflow, the Company is not aware of any beneficimher of more than five percent of
common stock. Except as otherwise indicated, theg2my believes that the beneficial owners of themon stock listed below, based
information furnished by such owners, have sole&ment and voting power with respect to such shatéject to community property le

where applicable:

Name and Address of Beneficial Owner

Number of Shares ¢

Common Stock

Beneficially Owned(2

Percent of Clas

George R. Jensen, Jr.

100 Deerfield Lane, Suite 140
Malvern, Pennsylvania 193!
Stephen P. Herbert

100 Deerfield Lane, Suite 140
Malvern, Pennsylvania 193¢
David M. DeMedio

100 Deerfield Lane, Suite 140
Malvern, Pennsylvania 193!
Douglas M. Luric

2005 Market Street, Suite 2340
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 191
Bradley M. Tirpak

50 Orchard Street, Apt #5

New York, New York 1000:
Steven D. Barnha

1143 N. Sheridan Road

Lake Forest, lllinois 6004

Joel Brooks

303 George Street Suite 140
New Brunswick, New Jersey 089
Peter A. Miche

1109 Gatewood Drive
Alexandria, Virginia 2230°

Jack E. Prict

12942 NE 24th Street
Bellevue, Washington, 980(
Cary Sagady

100 Deerfield Lane, Suite 140
Malvern, Pennsylvania 193!
Bruce Shirey

100 Deerfield Lane, Suite 140
Malvern, Pennsylvania 193!
S.A.C. Capital Associates, LLC
72 Cummings Point Road
Stamford, Connecticut 069(

Wellington Management Company, LLP

75 State Street
Boston, Massachusetts 021

All Directors and Executive Officers

As a Group (9 person

258,395 shares(3)

194,135 shares(4)

67,878 shares(5)

32,778 shares(t

134,140 shares(

31,538 share

0 share:

0 share:

0 share:

5,550 shares

4,000 shares

2,305,826 shares(8)

6,170,600 shares(9)

719,854 shares

1.01%

9.04%

24.20%

2.82%

* Less than one percent (1

Q) Beneficial ownership is determined in accordancth whe rules of the Securities and Exchange Comonisand derives from eith
voting or investment power with respect to secesitiShares of common stock issuable upon convedfidhe preferred stock,
shares of common stock issuable upon exercise whnta and options currently exercisable, or esafdle within 60 days of June

2010, are deemed to be beneficially owned for psepdiereot

2 The percentage of common stock beneficially owsdubised on 25,497,155 shares outstanding as o30ui2810
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3)

(4)

(5)

(6)
(7)
(8)

(9)

Includes 2,000 shares of common stock beneficialiywed by his spouse, 35,429 shares owned by Gdorgensen, Jr. Gran
Retained Unitrust dated July 14, 2003 over which 3&nsen retains beneficial ownership. Include3BDshares vested at June
2010 under the Long Term Equity Incentive ProgrdBP00 shares underlying vested stock options,005sbares issuable upon
exercise of warrants and 450 shares underlyingeped stock. Does not include the right grantefitoJensen under his Employm
Agreement to receive common stock upon the occaereha USA Transaction. S*Executive Employment Agreeme”.

Includes 31,010 shares of common stock beneficaadiped by his child and 27,440 shares of commotkdbeneficially owned by h
spouse. Includes 18,263 shares vested at JunéB0,uhder the Long Term Equity Incentive Progrard 48,000 shares underlyi
vested stock options

Includes 7,366 shares vested at June 30, 2010 teléong Term Equity Incentive Program and 7,088res underlying vested st
options.

Includes 12,000 shares underlying vested stoclongtnd 6,874 shares issuable upon the exercisarcdnts
Includes 10 shares underlying preferred st

Includes 355,400 shares underlying common stockamts. Based upon a Schedule 13G/A filed with theuBities and Exchan
Commission on February 16, 2010, S.A.C. Capitaligahs, L.P., S.A.C. Capital Advisors, Inc., S.ACapital Associates, LLC, a
Steven A. Cohen, each have shared voting and mesgtpower with respect to such shares. The addfeSsA.C. Capital Advisor
L.P., S.A.C. Capital Advisors, Inc. and Mr. Coheras indicated in the table. The address of S.Bd&pital Associates, LLC is P.
Box 58, Victoria House, The Valley, Anguilla, Beti West Indies. Each of S.A.C. Capital Advisor®.L.S.A.C. Capital Advisot
Inc. and Mr. Cohen disclaim beneficial ownershiptafse share

Based upon a Schedule 13G/A filed with the Seasiind Exchange Commission on December 10, 200&ctineg the beneficii
ownership of our common stock by Wellington ManagatmCompany, LLP, which has shared voting autharityr 4,516,000 shat
and shared dispositive power over 6,170,600 sharelides 2,260,400 shares underlying warrantse@apon a Schedule 13G fi
with the Securities and Exchange Commission onuelprl2, 2010, Wellington Trust Company, N.A., aaestment advisory clie
of Wellington Management Company, LLP, has sharetihg authority and shared dispositive power ovéd69,100 of such shal
(828,900 of which represent shares underlying wsje

Preferred Stock

Other than 1,000 shares and 45,000 shares of mrdfstock owned by Mr. Tirpak and Mr. Jensen, retpely, there were no shares
preferred stock that were beneficially owned adwfe 30, 2010 by the Compasylirectors, executive officers, or the other erppés name
in the Summary Compensation Table set forth above.

62




Table of Content
| tem 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transamns, and Director Independence.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, andyaunt to the Settlement Agreement described aktheeCompany paid approximat
$1,031,000 of legal fees and an additional $130,6D0elated expenses incurred by Shareholder Adescéor Value Enhancement (
"Committee™) in connection with the proxy contestlaelated litigation involving the annual sharelest’ meeting of the Company origina
scheduled for December 15, 2009. Bradley M. TirgaRjrector, and another shareholder of the Companye the members of the Commit

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, the @my incurred professional fees of approximately@@00 in connection with legal servi
rendered to the Company by Lurio & Associates, Padaw firm of which Douglas M. Lurio, a Directds, President. Of such professional f
approximately $230,000 was attributable to the proontest and related litigation.

REVIEW, APPROVAL OR RATIFICATION OF TRANSACTIONS WI TH RELATED PERSONS

Our policy is that all related party transactiondich are required to be disclosed under Iltem 40Regulation SK promulgated under tl
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, are to bewedeand approved by the Audit Committee for anysfiids conflicts of interest. This policy
evidenced in the Charter of the Audit Committe¢hef Board of Directors of the Company.

DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The Board of Directors has determined that JoebBsp Steven D. Barnhart, Jack E. Price, BradleyTiWpak and Peter A. Michel, whi
members constitute a majority of the Board of Diiex, are independent in accordance with the agplliclisting standards of The NASD,
Stock Market, Inc.

The Board of Directors has a standing Audit ConmemitiNominating Committee, and Compensation Comenitte

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors prase consists of Mr. Brooks (Chairman), Mr. Barnhaand Mr. Michel. The Aud
Committee recommends the engagement of the Compamgépendent accountants and is primarily respnsgor approving the servic
performed by the Company’s independent accountdatsreviewing and evaluating the Compasiaccounting principles, reviewing
independence of independent auditors, and reviethiegadequacy and effectiveness of the Compaimgernal controls. The Audit Commit
operates pursuant to a charter that was last ardeartte restated by the Board of Directors on Aptil 2006, a copy of which is accessible
the Company’s website, www.usatech.com.

The Compensation Committee of the Board of Direcfesently consists of Mr. Price (Chairman), Marrhart and Mr. Michel. The Board
Directors has determined that each of the curreambers of the Compensation Committee is indeperideatcordance with the applica
listing standards of The Nasdaq Stock Market, Ttee Committee reviews and recommends compensatiorc@mpensation changes for
executive officers of the Company and administees@ompanys stock option and restricted stock grant plang Cbmpensation Commiti
operates pursuant to a charter that was adoptetidbfBoard in September 2007, a copy of which iessible on the Compars/website
www.usatech.com.

The Nominating Committee of the Board of Directaras established in November 2009, and presentlgisisnof Mr. Barnhart (Chairma
Mr. Price and Mr. Tirpak. The Board of Directorsstdetermined that each of the current memberseofittiminating Committee is indepenc
in accordance with the applicable listing standasfi§he Nasdaq Stock Market, LLC. The Committeeomamends to the entire Board
Directors for selection any nominees for directne Nominating Committee operates pursuant to atehthat was adopted by the Boart
Directors on November 3, 2009, a copy of whichdsessible on the Company’s website, www.usatech.com
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| tem 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services.

AUDIT AND NON-AUDIT FEES

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 and 2@@3 in connection with services rendered by NMd&ly & Pullen, LLP were as set fc

below:

Fiscal

2010
Audit Fees $ 195,00(
Audit-Related Fee 50,00(
Tax Fees 85,00(
All Other Fees —
TOTAL $ 330,00(

Fiscal
2009
$ 235,00(
124,00(
$ 359,00(

Audit fees consisted of fees for the audit of oonwal financial statements and review of quartérigncial statements as well as serv
normally provided in connection with statutory amdjulatory filings or engagements, consents anidtasse with and reviews of Comp:

documents filed with the Securities and Exchange@ssion.

Audit related fees were primarily incurred in coatien with our equity offerings, and fees in conti@t with attending the annual shareholi

meeting.

Tax fees related to the review of our analysisheftiming and extent to which the Company canagtifuture tax deductions in any year, wl
may be limited by provisions of the Internal Reveriiode regarding changes in ownership of corparatjpe. IRS Code Section 382).

AUDIT COMMITTEE PRE-APPROVAL POLICY

The Audit Committee’s policy is to pre-approve alldit and permissible namidit services provided by the independent regidtgrublic

accounting firm on a case-by-case basis.
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P ART IV

| tem 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules.

Exhibit

Number Description

3.1 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation 8fALfiled January 26, 2004 (Incorporated by refeestacExhibit 3.1.19 1
Form 1(-QSB filed on February 12, 200

3.1.1 First Amendment to Amended and Restated Articlednobrporation of USA filed on March 17, 2005 (Imporated b
reference to Exhibit 3.1.1 to Forn-1 Registration Statement No. -124078).

3.1.2 Second Amendment to Amended and Restated Arti¢léscorporation of USA filed on December 13, 200ac6rporated b
reference to Exhibit 3.1.2 to Forn-1 Registration Statement No. -130992).

3.1.3 Third Amendment to Amended and Restated Articledngbrporation of USA filed on July 25, 2007. (Imporated b
reference to Exhibit 3.1.3 to Form-K filed September 23, 200¢

3.14 Fourth Amendment to Amended and Restated Articfelx@orporation of USA filed on March 6, 2008. (brporated b
reference to Exhibit 3.1.4 to Form-K filed September 23, 200¢

3.2 Amended and Restated -Laws of USA (Incorporated by reference to Exhihfii)3o Form1(-Q/A filed on February 2
2010).

4.1 Securities Purchase Agreement between the Compah@.#.C. Capital Associates, LLC dated March BO72(Incorporate
by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Forr-K filed on March 15, 2007’

4.2 Form of Warrant No. SA-001 issued to S.A.C. Capital Associates, LLC (Ipooated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to For-K
filed on March 15, 2007

4.3 Registration Rights Agreement between the CompandySaA.C. Capital Associates, LLC dated March BQ72(Incorporate
by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to Forr-K filed on March 15, 2007’

4.4 Form of Securities Purchase Agreement dated Octbhe2007 between the Company and each of the Biyesorporated
reference to Exhibit 4.1 of Forn-K filed October 17, 2007

45 Form of Registration Rights Agreement dated Octder2007 between the Company and each of the Bifyesorporated
reference to Exhibit 4.2 of Forn-K filed October 17, 2007

4.6 Common Stock Purchase Warrant issued to WilliamrBaCo., LLC, dated October 17, 2007 (Incorporatsdreference f
Exhibit 4.34 of Form -1 filed November 16, 2007

10.1 Amended And Restated Employment and Nemmpetition Agreement between USA and Stephen Fbétfedated May 1
2006 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.E¢éom 1(-Q filed on May 15, 2006,

10.2 Amended And Restated Employment and NMompetition Agreement between USA and George Rsefendr. dated May 1
2006 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.Eéom 1(-Q filed on May 15, 2006,

10.3 Agreement of Lease between Pennswood Spring Miloistes, as landlord, and the Company, as tedatdd Septemb
2002, and the Rider thereto (Incorporated by refegeo Exhibit 10.21 to Form -KSB filed on September 28, 200.

10.4 Agreement of Lease between Deerfield Corporate é2ehtAssociates LP, as landlord, and the Compasyemant, date
March 2003 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibi22do Form 1-KSB filed on September 28, 200:

10.5 Amendment to Office Space Lease dated as of Aprd0D5 by and between the Company and Deerfielgpp@ate Cente
Associates, LP. (Incorporated by reference to Ekfilr19.1 to Form -1Registration Statement No. -124078)

10.6 Employment and Nc-Competition Agreement between USA and David M. DdMelated April 12, 2005 (Incorporated

reference to Exhibit 10.22 to Forn-1 Registration Statement No. -124078).
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10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

10.25

10.26

First Amendment to Employment and MCompetition Agreement between USA and David M. DdMelated May 11, 20(
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Fd€-Q filed on May 15, 2006

Option Certificate (No. 200) dated April 12, 2005favor of David M. DeMedio (Incorporated by refiece to Exhibit 10.23 "
Form &-1 Registration Statement No. -124078).

Option Certificate (No. 201) dated May 11, 2006awor of George R. Jensen, Jr. (Incorporated bgreefce to Exhibit 10.:
to Form 1K filed on September 28, 200¢

Option Certificate (No. 202) dated May 11, 2008awor of Stephen P. Herbert. (Incorporated by exiee to Exhibit 10.21
Form 1(-K filed on September 28, 200¢

Option Certificate (No. 203) dated May 11, 2006awor of David M. DeMedio. (Incorporated by refecerto Exhibit 10.21
Form 1(-K filed on September 28, 200¢

Option Certificate (No. 204) dated April 21, 2006favor of William W. Sellers. (Incorporated by eeénce to Exhibit 10.:
to Form 1K filed on September 28, 200¢

Option Certificate (No. 205) dated April 21, 2006favor of William L. Van Alen, Jr. (Incorporated leference to Exhik
10.21 to Form 1-K filed on September 28, 200¢

Option Certificate (No. 206) dated April 21, 20@6favor of Steven Katz. (Incorporated by referetucExhibit 10.21 to For
10K filed on September 28, 200¢

Option Certificate (No. 207) dated April 21, 2006favor of Douglas M. Lurio. (Incorporated by reface to Exhibit 10.21
Form 1(-K filed on September 28, 200¢

Option Certificate (No. 208) dated April 21, 20G6favor of Albert Passner. (Incorporated by refeeeto Exhibit 10.21
Form 1(-K filed on September 28, 200¢

Option Certificate (No. 209) dated July 20, 2008awor of Stephen W. McHugh. (Incorporated by refere to Exhibit 10.Z
to Form 1K filed on September 28, 200¢

USA Technologies, Inc. 2008 Stock Compensation Rlanorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Fo8-8 filed
September 24, 200¢

Amendment to Agreement of Lease between E-Spring Mill Drive, L.P., as landlord, and the Compaas tenant, dat
January 15, 2007 (Incorporated by reference toltixh0.1 to Form 1-Q filed on February 13, 2007

Second Amendment to Employment and -Competition Agreement dated March 13, 2007, betwherCompany and Da\
M. DeMedio (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit3®to Form -1 filed April 12, 2007)

Form of Indemnification Agreement between the Conypand each of its officers and Directors (Incogted by reference
Exhibit 10.1 to Form 1-Q filed May 14, 2007)

Supply and Licensing Agreement dated as of Febrd&y2007 between Codasla Enterprises, Inc. and the Comp:
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.36 to F&-1 filed on June 6, 2007

First Amendment to MasterCard PayPass Participatgneement dated August 17, 2007 between the CompaasterCar
International Incorporated and Coca Cola Enterprise. And Its Bottling Subsidiaries. (Incorporateyl reference to Exhik
10.26 to Form 1-K filed September 27, 2007

Third Amendment to Employment and MCompetition Agreement between the Company and DMideMedio date
September 22, 2008. (Incorporated by referencexhibi 10.29 to Form 1-K filed September 24, 200¢

Amended and Restated Employment and -Competition Agreement between the Company and @eRrglensen, Jr., da
September 24, 2009. (Incorporated by referencexhibi 10.30 to Form 1-K filed September 25, 200¢

Amended and Restated Employment and -Competition Agreement between the Company and 8$teph Herbert dat
September 24, 2009. (Incorporated by referencelibi 10.31 to Form 1-K filed September 25, 200¢
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10.28

10.29
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**23.1

**31.1

**31.2

**32

Letter from the Company to David M. DeMedio datezp®mber 24, 2009. (Incorporated by reference toildx10.32 t(
Form 1(-K filed September 25, 200¢

Settlement Agreement dated February 4, 2010 byamdng USA Technologies, Inc., Shareholder Advocé&ims Value
Enhancement, Bradley M. Tirpak, Craig W. Thomag] eertain other parties (Incorporated by referetac&xhibit 10.1 t
Form &K filed on February 5, 2010

Purchase Agreement between the Company and Lirark Capital, LLC dated July 27, 2010 (Incorporabgdeference 1
Exhibit 10.1 to Form -K filed on July 27, 2010;

Registration Rights Agreement between the Compamtlylancoln Park Capital, LLC dated July 27, 2010c@rporated k
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Forn-K filed on July 27, 2010

List of significant subsidiaries of the Companyddnporated by reference to Exhibit 21 to For-1 filed on March 16, 2010
Consent of McGladrey & Pullen, LLP, Independent Beged Public Accounting Firn

Certifications of Chief Executive Officer pursudaatRule 13-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1!
Certifications of Chief Financial Officer pursuantRule 13-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1!

Certifications by the Chief Executive Officer andi€f Financial Officer pursuant to 18 USC Sectid3bQ, as adoptt
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbi-Oxley Act of 2002

** Filed herewith
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Item 15(a).

SCHEDULE I

USA TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2010, 2009 AND 2008

Deductions
uncollectible
Balance a Additions receivables Balance
beginning charged to  written off, net atend
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE of period earnings of recoveries of period
June 30, 201 $ 42,000 $ (1,000 $ - $ 41,00(
June 30, 200 $ 215,000 $ (17,000 $ 156,000 $ 42,00(
June 30, 200 $ 142,000 $ 138,000 $ 65,000 $ 215,00(
Balance at Additions Deductions Balance
beginning chargedto  Shrinkage ant at end
INVENTORY of period earnings obsolescenc of period
June 30, 201 $ 596,000 $ 171,000 $ 26,000 $ 741,00(
June 30, 200 $ 418,000 $ 390,000 $ 212,000 $ 596,00(
June 30, 200 $ 317,00 $ 253,000 $ 152,000 $ 418,00(
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SIGNATURES

In accordance with Section 13 or 15(d) of the ExgeaAct, the registrant has duly caused this refoibe signed on its behalf by
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

USA TECHNOLOGIES, INC

By: /s/ George R. Jensen,

George R. Jensen, Jr., Chairn
and Chief Executive Office

In accordance with the Exchange Act, this repostiieen signed below by the following persons oralieti the registrant and in the capaci
and on the dates indicated.

SIGNATURES TITLE DATE
/s| George R. Jensen, Chairman of the Board of Directors SeptemterZd10
George R. Jensen, . and Chief Executive Office

(Principal Executive Officer

/s/ David M. DeMedic Chief Financial Officer (Principal Septembédr, 2010
David M. DeMedic Accounting Officer)

/s/ Stephen P. Herbe Chief Operating Officer, Preside September 21, 201
Stephen P. Herbe and Directol

/s/ Douglas M. Luric Director September 21, 201

Douglas M. Luric

/s/ Joel Brook: Director September 21, 201
Joel Brooks
/s/ Steven D. Barnha Director September 21, 2010

Steven D. Barnha

/sl Jack E. Pric Director September 21, 2010
Jack E. Prict

Director September __, 2010

Bradley M. Tirpak

/s/ Peter A. Miche Director September 21, 201
Peter A. Miche
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Exhibit 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm
We consent to the incorporation by reference irRbgistration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-14065T)SA Technologies, Inc. of our report

dated September 21, 2010, relating to our auditseotonsolidated financial statements and thenfiiz statement schedule which appear in
this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year endede 30, 2010.

/sl McGladrey & Pullen, LLF

New York, NY
September 21, 201




Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
(18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350)

I, George R. Jensen, Jr., Chief Executive Offidghe registrant, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fK)SA Technologies, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaioretny untrue statement of a material fact or dnftate a material fact necessary to r
the statements made, in light of the circumstanceter which such statements were made, not mislgadith respect to the period coverec
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respt
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the issuer as of, and for, the parjpétsented in this report;

4. The registrans other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contasld procedures (as define:
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) arefriat control over financial reporting (as defineadExchange Act Rules 13E5(f) anc
15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresiused such disclosure controls and procedores designed under our supervisiol
ensure that material information relating to thgisgant, including its consolidated subsidiarissinade known to us by others within th
entities, particularly during the period in whidhig report is being prepared,;

b. Designed such internal control over financigdarting, or caused such internal control over foahreporting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance riegattie reliability of financial reporting and thgreparation of financial statements
external purposes in accordance with generallygedeaccounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeanisclosure controls and procedures and preseéntéuis report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and prores) as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based upon such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the tegid’s internal control over financial reportingat occurred during the issugmost rece!
fiscal quarter (the issuerfourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbrg that has materially affected or is reasondibisly to materially
affect, the issuer’s internal control over finahegporting; and

5. The issueB other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdsh on our most recent evaluation, of internal mbmver financial reporting -
the auditors and the audit committee of the issugoard of directors (or persons performing thewedent functions):

a. all significant deficiencies and material wealses in the design or operation of internal costmler financial reporting which ¢
reasonably likely to adversely affect the issuabgity to record, process, summarize and repasrfcial information; and

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that invelveanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the issues’internal contrc
over financial reporting.

Date: September 21, 20 /s/ George R. Jensen,

George R. Jensen, {
Chief Executive Office




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
(18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350)

I, David M. DeMedio, Chief Financial Officer of thregistrant, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fK)SA Technologies, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaioretny untrue statement of a material fact or dnftate a material fact necessary to r
the statements made, in light of the circumstanceter which such statements were made, not mislgadith respect to the period coverec
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respt
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the issuer as of, and for, the parjpétsented in this report;

4. The registrans other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contasld procedures (as define:
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) arefriat control over financial reporting (as defineadExchange Act Rules 13E5(f) anc
15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresiused such disclosure controls and procedores designed under our supervisiol
ensure that material information relating to thgisgant, including its consolidated subsidiarissinade known to us by others within th
entities, particularly during the period in whidhig report is being prepared,;

b. Designed such internal control over financigdarting, or caused such internal control over foahreporting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance riegattie reliability of financial reporting and thgreparation of financial statements
external purposes in accordance with generallygedeaccounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeanisclosure controls and procedures and preseéntéuis report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and prores) as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based upon such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the tegid’s internal control over financial reportingat occurred during the issugmost rece!
fiscal quarter (the issuerfourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbrg that has materially affected or is reasondibisly to materially
affect, the issuer’s internal control over finahegporting; and

5. The issueB other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdsh on our most recent evaluation, of internal mbmver financial reporting -
the auditors and the audit committee of the issugoard of directors (or persons performing thewedent functions):

a. all significant deficiencies and material wealses in the design or operation of internal costmler financial reporting which ¢
reasonably likely to adversely affect the issuabgity to record, process, summarize and repasrfcial information; and

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that invelveanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the issues’internal contrc
over financial reporting.

Date: September 21, 20 /s/ David M. DeMedic

David M. DeMedio,
Chief Financial Office




Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
(18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350)

In connection with the accompanying Annual Repdtt 8A Technologies, Inc., (the “Company”) on For@HK for the period ende
June 30, 2010 (the “Report”), |, George R. Jen3enChief Executive Officer of the Company, herebytify that to my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeotsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExgeAct of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faigyesents, in all material respects, the financtaldition and results of operations of
Company.

/s/ George R. Jensen,

George R. Jensen, .
Chief Executive Office




CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
(18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350)

In connection with the accompanying Annual Repdtt 8A Technologies, Inc., (the “Company”) on For@HK for the period ende
June 30, 2010 (the “Report”), |, David M. DeMedithief Financial Officer of the Company, hereby ifgithat to my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeotsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exg®Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faigyesents, in all material respects, the financtaldition and results of operations of
Company.

/s/ David M. DeMedic

David M. DeMedic
Chief Financial Office!




